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Management Services/Finance
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DEPARTMENT
FINANCE DIVISION Incorporated 1888 Farrah Jenner
35 Cajon Street, Redlands, CA 92373 Assistant Finance Director

December 18, 2018

To the Members of the City Council and Citizens of the City of Redlands:

It is the policy of the City of Redlands to annually publish a complete set of financial statements
presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of certified public accountants.
Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial statements
of the City of Redlands (the City) for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of
all the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, management of the City has established a comprehensive internal control
framework that is designed both to protect the City’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to
compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City’s financial statements in
conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their
benefits, the City’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from
material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The City’s financial statements have been audited by Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP, an
independent firm of certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City for the Fiscal Year ended
June 30, 2018, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements;
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded,
based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion
that the City’s financial statements for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018, were fairly
presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first
component of the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was part of a broader, federally
mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not
only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited City’s internal
controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports
are available in the City’s separately issued Single Audit Report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors.



PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

The City of Redlands, incorporated in 1888, is located 63 miles east of Los Angeles, 110 miles
north of San Diego, and 500 miles southeast of San Francisco. It lies within the San Bernardino
Valley in the southwestern portion of San Bernardino County, covering an area of 36 square
miles, within the heart of the Inland Empire. It serves a population of 70,851 residents.

The City was incorporated under the general laws of the State of California and enjoys all the
rights and privileges applicable to a General Law City. It is a municipal corporation governed by
a five-member city council in which all policy-making and legislative authority is vested. The
City Council is responsible, among other things for passing ordinances, adopting the budget,
appointing committees, and hiring both the City Manager and City Attorney. The City Manager
is the chief administrative officer of the City and as such is responsible for carrying out the
policies and ordinances of the City Council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City,
and for appointing department heads. The Council is elected on a non-partisan basis. Council
members serve four-year staggered terms, with elections occurring every two years. The mayor
is currently elected by a majority vote of the Council. Adopted in 2017, Ordinance No. 2848,
amended the Redlands Municipal Code to change the City’s electoral system for City Council
Members from at-large to by-district elections.

The City provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection, animal control,
emergency medical aid, building safety regulation and inspection, street lighting, landscaping,
sewer and water utilities, solid waste collection and disposal, land use planning and zoning,
housing and community services, maintenance and improvement of streets and related
structures, traffic safety maintenance and improvement, and a full range of recreational and
cultural programs for citizen participation, as well as being the home of the historic A. K. Smiley
Public Library.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City’s financial planning and control. Prior
to the beginning of the Fiscal Year, the City Manager submits a budget for the upcoming year to
the City Council. Public hearings are held before final approval of the budget. The City
Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund;
however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the
City Council. The City maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with provisions
embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the City Council. Activities of the
general fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds, capital projects funds, enterprise funds
and internal service funds are included in the annual budget. The level of control (level at
which expenditures may not exceed budget) is the fund. The City also maintains an
encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control.
Encumbered amounts lapse at year-end; however encumbrances may be re-appropriated each
year by separate action of the City Council. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this
report for each individual governmental fund for which an appropriated annual budget has
been adopted. For the general fund and major special revenue funds, this comparison is
presented as part of the required supplementary information in the accompanying financial
statements. For governmental funds that have appropriated annual budgets, other than the
general fund and major special revenue funds, this comparison is presented in the
supplementary section of the accompanying financial statements.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK
The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is

considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City
operates.
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Local economy. City of Redlands’ economy is based largely in the service and trade sectors
(health care, retail trade, government, and education) and light manufacturing. The region has
a varied manufacturing and industrial base that has added to the relative stability of the
unemployment rate over the years. However, during the downturn in the economy, the
unemployment rate rose to a high in 2010 of 10.5%, declining in the following years to reach
4.7% by 2014. In 2015, the unemployment rate decreased again to 3.0% and for 2016 it was up
slightly at 3.3%. The City, in keeping with the current patterns observed nationwide, is
experiencing close to its lowest level of unemployment during the last ten years — presently
measured at 3.1%.

The City has land available for industrial/commercial/office use with only a portion of these
areas utilized. Major industries with headquarters or divisions located within the City’s
boundaries or in close proximity include computer hardware and software manufacturers,
electrical controls, furniture manufacturing, and automobile component manufacturers, and
several financial and insurance institutions. Major employers in the City, or within the vicinity,
include the Redlands Unified School District, ESRI (Environmental Systems Research Institute),
Redlands Community Hospital, Amazon Fulfillment Center, Beaver Medical Group, City of
Redlands, the University of Redlands, La Z-Boy, Inc., Loma Linda University Behavioral Medical
Center. A number of large warehouse distribution centers were developed in past years in
County “pocket” areas completely surrounded by the City. Some of those major County pocket
employers include Burlington Coat Factory Distribution Center, Superior Building Products and
Caddo Hardware, with each providing additional job opportunities to the community.

The City’s property tax base had showed steady growth from Fiscal Year 2000-2001, increasing
from $3.2 billion in that year to $7.6 billion in Fiscal Year 2008-2009. However, starting in the
2009-2010 tax roll, the City of Redlands experienced a net taxable value decrease of 6.3% over
the following three fiscal years until the 2012-2013 tax roll when next taxable value began to
regain ground. After three years of decreases, the City experienced net taxable value increases
over each of the following five years respectively starting in Fiscal Year 2012-2013:

FY 2012-2013 - 3.2%
FY 2013-2014 - 2.7%
FY 2014-2015 - 5.5%
FY 2015-2016 - 5.1%
FY 2016-2017 - 5.6%

This year’s gains are again measured at approximately 5.6% for FY 2017-2018, showing six
straight years of growth. Accordingly, it is anticipated that the City will exceed $10 billion in net
assessed value within the next two years if this trend remains in place.

The following land use categories experienced the significant increases in assessed value
increase between the prior Fiscal Year (2016-2017) and Fiscal Year 2017-2018:

e Industrial = 12% growth

e Institutional—-5.5% growth

e Commercial —5.3% growth

e Residential = 5.3% growth

The housing market remained constant in term of sales volume in 2017-2018, but the sale of
homes in large new developments priced lower than the City’s other housing stock has caused
median sale prices to slow in terms of growth (up 1.9% calendar year 2017, compared to
vigorous growth of 11.7% in the preceding year). The primary driver of growth in assessed
home value was reassessment due to prior year transfers of ownership, constituting 48% of the
City’s overall growth in the residential land use category.
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In addition to the stability and growth of the local housing market, there were many other
notable additions to the business landscape, including the Redlands Packinghouse District, a
commercial center at Eureka Street and the I-10 freeway. The first store to open in the packing
house-themed retail and restaurant center was its anchor tenant, Sprouts Farmers Market, a
30,000-square-foot grocery store. A second co-anchor store, PetSmart, opened 4 months later
featuring 18,000 square feet of retail space and services such as pet training and full-service
grooming in addition to an in-store adoption center that partners with local animal welfare
organizations in the Redlands community. Complimenting these two anchor tenants, new
restaurants opened their doors as well, including the Luna Grill, and Jersey Mike’s Subs. Two
fitness-based business, Orangetheory Fitness and Club Pilates, are also open for business and
are both brand new to Redlands.

Other notable businesses openings in fiscal year 2017/2018 also included:

e In June, Garner Holt Productions (GHP) began its move to a new facility in Redlands to
accommodate its growing business. GHP is the world’s largest designer and builder of
animatronics for theme parks, movie studios, and attractions around the world. The
120,000-square-foot building in Redlands accommodates all elements of GHP’s
production, including creative design, engineering, machining, plastics, paint and
electronics.

e Several new restaurants also opened: Olive & Citrus, a California seasonal farm-to-table
fine dining restaurant that was also awarded a Beautification Award for the adaptive
reuse of the City’s historic Heritage Hall building built in 1922, and the Copehouse & Bar
Bistro, an American restaurant & bar located in the historic 1903 Cope building in
downtown, featuring hand-crafted cocktails, weekend brunches, and patio dining in the
newly revitalized Orange Street Alley. Other new restaurants included: D’Vine Place,
The Breakfast Shack, and The Blazin’ Crab.

e One Legacy opened California’s first dedicated transplant recovery center in Redlands, a
40,000-square-foot facility designed to improve organ donation outcomes and reduce
recovery costs.

During FY 2017-18, many development projects were started that will positively impact sales
tax and property tax bases in the City. These projects include:

e The Redlands Packing Plant — the adaptive reuse of a building that historically housed
the Mutual Orange Company packing plant during the first several decades of the
twentieth century. The development will renovate the existing building into a retail and
educational hub for the local food economy. Amenities will include artisanal food retail,
micro-restaurants, a tap room/brew room, and a Farmer’s Market.

e WoodSpring Suite Hotel - A new hotel with 123 guest rooms, approximately 48,224
square feet of floor area, a parking lot, and related site improvements on a vacant 2.7-
acre lot.

To accommodate retail and commercial growth, the Municipal Utilities and Engineering
Department (MUED) has successfully completed the fourth of five segments of the Pavement
Accelerated Rehabilitation Implementation Strategy (PARIS), bringing the total replacement to
over 360 lane miles of street infrastructure. The final segment will result in the resurfacing of
over 400 lane miles and is projected to conclude in calendar year 2019. Adding to the non-
motorized transportation infrastructure, a total of 16 miles of bike lane were added, 3 more
miles were replaced, and the plans and specifications for the third phase of the Orange Blossom
Trail were completed. Once constructed, this segment will complete nearly four miles of the
planned 7.6-mile-long trail — the expenses for which were entirely grant-funded. The Quality of
Life Department completed several renovations throughout City parks, including the installation
of Service Club Entryway Monument Signs at Ford Street and Redlands Boulevard, the
installation of a permanent pedestrian bridge at Jennie Davis Park for use year-round, and a
rehabilitation project in Triangle Park including the replacement of an historic tree.
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The Quality of Life Department also contributed significant efforts in improving essential
infrastructure in the City. The streets division removed and replaced approximately 2,281
square feet of sidewalk and 314 linear feet of curb and gutter at 20 locations. The citrus
division acquired property for the development of two new groves—approximately 12 acres.
The Hillside Memorial Cemetery introduced more offerings for its customers, including glass
front niches in the Redlands Mausoleum, Sunset Lawn offering 500 basic-priced single lots, and
the expansion of four additional cremation garden areas. Through these and other efforts, the
cemetery achieved continued revenue growth of 37% higher than projections, contributing to
fiscal sustainability.

The City of Redlands Redevelopment Agency — and all redevelopment agencies in California —
were dissolved under AB1X 26 (and subsequently AB1484), effective as of February 1, 2012,
and the City of Redlands, as “Successor Agency,” assumed responsibilities for winding down the
operations of the Redevelopment Agency. As such, the Successor Agency for the former
Redevelopment Agency for the City of Redlands has the responsibility of paying off existing
debts and obligations including the disposal of all assets and properties of the former
Redevelopment Agency. The City of Redlands elected not to assume the responsibility for
administering the former Redevelopment Agency’s housing functions.

To date, the Successor Agency has complied with the requirements of AB1X 26/AB and 1484 by
submitting its Enforceable Obligation Payment Schedule (EOPS), Recognized Obligation
Payment Schedules (ROPS), and other required documents. Successor Agency and City staff
continue to respond to the ever-changing requirements of the State of California Department
of Finance (DOF) and were notified pursuant to a letter from the Attorney General, dated
August 25, 2014, that the DOF concurs that a loan of $3,157,400 made from the City to the
Successor Agency in July, 2012, was for enforceable obligations of the Successor Agency from
July 2012 through December 2012, including the principal and interest on tax allocation bonds
which were due on August 1, 2012. That loan was repaid in full by the Successor Agency in fiscal
year 2014/2015.

On September 8, 2015, the DOF approved the Successor Agency’s Long-Term Property
Management Plan. Since that time the Successor Agency has transferred ownership of
properties designated for a governmental purpose to the City and has been actively working
towards disposing of those properties not specified for a governmental purpose in accordance
with this Plan. Further discussion about the Successor Agency can be found in Note 14 of the
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

Long-term financial outlook/planning. Prior to and over the last decade, Redlands, along with
many other cities, has faced the cascading impacts of national economic downturns further
compounded by State-level budget crises. The most significant downturn, beginning circa June
2008, had dramatic impacts on the City’s local economy and the resources available to fund
general municipal services. As the recession deepened the State took action to ease its own
budget shortfall through the implementation of public safety realignment, the “borrowing” of
local revenues through a complex series of revenue exchanges, and the dissolution local
redevelopment agencies. During this same time, the California Public Employees Retirement
System, CalPERS, reported losses of roughly $100 billion and immediately required local
government employers to significantly increase their contributions in order to compensate.
And certainly, the City itself faced sharp declines in sales taxes and development revenues,
along with declines in property taxes, franchise fees, and other taxes as a result of the poor
economic climate.

However, through this timeframe the City, led by the City Council, City Manager and executive
staff, remained focused on financial policy decisions to balance the budget, established
minimum reserve levels, explored enhanced revenue opportunities, reorganized service



delivery and developed capital improvement plans. From Fiscal Year 2008-2009 to 2011-2012,
City staff were furloughed and staffing models were reevaluated for savings and streamlining.
Departmental budgets were reduced wherever possible and an early retirement incentive
program was established. These actions, along with improvements in the economy that
boosted general fund revenues, resulted in savings to the General Fund, maintenance of service
levels and a General Fund unassigned fund balance that grew from $1.4 million in FY 2006-2007
to $7.8 million in FY 2011-2012.

In subsequent fiscal years, the national and local economies continued to recover and expand.
Gradually, General Fund revenues expanded each year, from $51 million in FY 2012-2013 to
$63.7 million in FY 2016-2017. Despite improvements seen in the economy during each fiscal
year, the City did not falter in its efforts to monitor expenditures and make reductions where
possible. At June 30, 2017, the City General Fund unassigned fund balance was measured at
$13.9 million. This amount was reduced through the City’s fund balance policy by transferring
approximately $650,000 of the $13.9 million to reserves and various fund balance assignments
during the mid-year General Fund review in January 2018.

With continued cost-savings and a steady economy, the General Fund reported unassigned
fund balance of $13.6 million at the close of Fiscal Year 2017-2018. Further review of the
General Fund is included within Management’s Discussion and Analysis which follows the
independent auditor’s report.

In looking forward to the coming fiscal years, there are several macroeconomic trends to
examine as they pertain to the financial outlook for the City. The National League of Cities
conducts an annual survey of city fiscal conditions. This year’s survey suggests that cities, on a
national level, are approaching the limits of fiscal expansion and that all major tax sources grew
at a slower pace in Fiscal Year 2016-17 than in FY 2015-16 and the same is expected for FY
2017-18, as growth is expected to experience a year-over-year slow down. As well, the survey
indicates that for cities overall, growth in general fund expenditures is outpacing growth in
general fund revenues. The survey goes on to conclude that, although the fiscal health of cities
is not yet declining, these conditions echo several cautionary signals from previous economic
downturns. According to the 2018-19 May Revision to the Governor’s Budget, the current
economic recovery is approaching the longest in modern history. The state’s unemployment
rate also hit an all-time low of 4.3%. According to historical analysis, recessions usually follow
periods of extremely low unemployment numbers. Other factors include uncertainty
surrounding the impacts of federal tax reform on local revenues.

Counter-balancing these influences, consider the next economic contraction, there are factors
that position the City well against such a backdrop. At the local level, the City Council has
adopted several policy documents that govern balanced budgets and the creation & use of
reserves in the City’s General Fund. The City’s Rainy Day / Contingency reserve is at $8.3
million, its unassigned fund balance is at $13.6 million, and its fund balance reserve assigned
towards capital projects is at $4.1 million. A renewed Strategic Plan has been created and
includes key objectives related to fiscal accountability and economic development. Overall, the
City continues to prioritize the sustainability of its enterprise operations, information
technology infrastructure, and land use planning. The City’s General Plan document has been
adopted and includes themes that focus on a prosperous economy, a diversified economic
base, the retention of existing businesses, and the expansion of opportunities to attract
advanced manufacturing and technology companies to the City. At the statewide level, several
recent ballot measures have served to strengthen the state’s fiscal health which creates greater
financial certainty for local governments. Adding to this are constitutional protections that
have been put in place that prohibit the state from shifting property and other taxes away from
cities or from transferring responsibility for state-funded programs to cities. At the national
level, the U.S. Supreme Court issued a decision in the case of South Dakota v. Wayfair that
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overturned a previous ruling that exempted out-of-state retailers from collecting and remitting
sales tax. As online sales continually constitute a greater proportion of consumer spending, this
decision clears the way for the state and local governments to implement sales and use tax laws
on remote sales. So while the economic trend of fiscal expansion may begin to reverse, the City
is well positioned at local, state and national levels and is bolstered by the strategic leadership
of the City Council, City Manager and executive staff.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded
a Certificate of Achievement of Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Redlands for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017. This was the
fifteenth consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious award. In order to
be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another certificate.

The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report was made possible by the
dedicated service of the entire staff of the Finance division. Special recognition is due to
Assistant Finance Director, Farrah Jenner; Fiscal Manager, James Garland; and Senior
Accountants, Denise Camarillo and Marie Datuin, for their efforts in overseeing the compilation
of the accounting data and interfacing with our auditors; and to the accounting firm of
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP, and to the City Manager’s Office. Credit also must be given to
the City Manager, Mayor and the City Council for their unfailing support for maintaining the
highest standards of professionalism in the management of the City’s finances.

Respectfully submitted,

Danielle Garcia
Management Services / Finance Director
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Certified Public Accountants

VALUE THE

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
City of Redlands, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Redlands, California (City) as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

1

10681 Foothill Blvd., Suite 300, Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 909.466.4410 909.466.4431 vtdcpa.com



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the City adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions,
effective July 1, 2017. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis on pages 5 through 20, the budgetary comparison schedules on pages 90 and 91, the schedule of
changes in the net pension liability and related ratios of the agent multiple-employer pension plan on page 92, the
City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability of the cost-sharing pension plan on page 95, schedule of
contributions on pages 93 and 95, the schedule of changes in total OPEB liability and ratios of the other post-
employment benefit plan on page 96, and the notes to the required supplementary information on page 98 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements and schedules and the statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 17, 2018, on
our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulation, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.
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Rancho Cucamonga, California
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THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The information contained in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) introduces
the basic financial statements and provides an analytical overview of the City of Redlands
financial activities and performance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. Please read the
MD&A in conjunction with the transmittal letter and financial statements identified in the
accompanying table of contents.

Using the Accompanying Financial Statements

This annual CAFR consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and
present a longer-term view of the City’s finances. Also included in the accompanying report are
fund financial statements. For governmental activities, the fund financial statements tell how
these services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund
financial statements also report the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide
statements by providing information about the City’s most significant funds. The remaining
statements provide financial information about activities for which the City acts solely as a
trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the government.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The annual report consists of four parts — management’s discussion and analysis (this section),
the basic financial statements, required supplementary information, and an optional section that
presents combining statements for non-major governmental funds and internal service funds. The
basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the

City:

e The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both
long-term and short-term information about the City’s overall financial status.

e The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the
City government, reporting the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide
statements.

e The governmental funds statements tell how general government services like public
safety were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.

e Proprietary fund statements offer short- and long-term financial information about
the activities the government operates like businesses, such as the water system.

e Fiduciary fund statements provide information about fiduciary relationships — like the
agency funds of the City — in which the City acts solely as agent or trustee for the
benefit of others, to whom the resources in question belong.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial
statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information that provides additional financial and budgetary information.



Figure A-1 summarizes the major features of the City’s financial statements, including the
portion of the City government they cover and the types of information they contain. The
remainder of this overview section of management’s discussion and analysis explains the
structure and contents of each of the statements.

Major Features of the City’s Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide

Figure A-1

Fund Statements

Governmental Funds

Proprietary Funds

Fiduciary Funds

Statements

Scope Entire City The activities of the Activities the City Instances in which the
government (except City that are not operates similar to City is the trustee or
fiduciary funds) and proprietary or fiduciary  private businesses agent for someone

the City’s component
units

else’s resources

Required financial
statements

e  Statement of net
position

e  Statement of
activities

e  Balance sheet

e  Statement of
revenues,
expenditures and
changes in fund
balances

e  Statement of net
position

e  Statement of
revenues,
expenses and
changes in net
position

e  Statement of cash
flows

Statement of
fiduciary net
position

e  Statement of
changes in
fiduciary net
position

Accounting basis and
measurement focus

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Modified accrual
accounting and current
financial resources
focus

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Type of asset, deferred
outflow of resources,
deferred inflow of
resources, and liability
information

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and capital,
and short-term and
long-term

Only assets and
deferred outflows of
resources expected to
be used up and
liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources
that come due during
the year or soon
thereafter; no capital
assets or long-term
debt included

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and capital,
and short-term and
long-term

All assets and
liabilities, both short-
term and long-term

Type of financial
inflow and outflow
information

All revenues and
expenses during the
year, regardless of
when cash is received
or paid

Revenues for which
cash is received during
or soon after the end of
the year; expenditures
when goods or services
have been received and
payment is due during
the year or soon
thereafter

All revenues and
expenses during the
year, regardless of
when cash is received
or paid

All revenues and
expenses during the
year, regardless of
when cash is received
or paid




Reporting the City as a Whole

The accompanying government-wide financial statements include two statements that present
financial data for the City as a whole. One of the most important questions asked about the
City’s finances is, “Is the City, as a whole, better off or worse off as a result of the year’s
activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information
about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These
statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is
similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year’s
revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City’s net position and its changes. You can think of the City’s
net position — the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of
resources and liabilities — as one way to measure the City’s financial health, or financial position.
Over time, increases and decreases in the City’s net position may be one indicator of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other nonfinancial
factors, however, such as changes in the City’s property tax base and the condition of the City’s
roads, to assess the overall health of the City.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, City services are divided into
two kinds of activities:

e Governmental activities — Most of the City’s basic services are reported here. Sales taxes,
property taxes, state subventions, and other revenues finance most of these activities.

¢ Business-type activities — The City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of
the cost of the services accounted for in these funds.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the City’s most significant
funds — not the City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law or by
bond covenants. However, City Council establishes many other funds to help it control and
manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting administrative
responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants or other money. The City’s two kinds of funds —
governmental and proprietary — use different accounting approaches.

e Governmental funds — Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds,
which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year
end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method
called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other current financial
assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a
detailed current-term view of the City’s general government operations and the basic services
it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or
fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs.
We describe the relationship or differences between governmental activities (reported in the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in a
reconciliation on the page following the fund financial statements.



e Proprietary funds — When the City charges customers for the services it provides — whether
to outside customers or to other units of the City — these services are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are
reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the City’s
enterprise funds (a component of proprietary funds) are part of the business-type activities
we report in the government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional
information for proprietary funds, such as statement of cash flows. The City’s internal
service funds (the other component of proprietary funds) reports activities that provide
supplies and services internally to other City departments and programs.

Reporting the City’s Fiduciary Responsibilities

The City is an agent for certain assets held for, and under the control of, other organizations and
individuals. All of the City’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate Statement of Fiduciary Net
Position. We exclude these activities from the City’s other financial statements because the City cannot
use these assets to finance its operations. The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in
these funds are used for their intended purposes.

Statement of Net Position

The following is a condensed Statement of Net Position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and
June 30, 2017, which allows for analysis of the City’s net position as a whole.

Table 1
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Current and other Assets S 69,528535|S 66,882,329 S 92,864,143 |S 81,899,684 | S 162,392,678 | $ 148,782,013
Capital Assets 657,251,941 645,128,565 171,075,300 173,551,263 828,327,241 818,679,828

Total Assets 726,780,476 712,010,894 263,939,443 255,450,947 990,719,919 967,461,841
Deferred Outflows of Resources

Pension & OPEB 28,992,849 19,691,409 6,586,741 4,619,769 35,579,590 24,311,178
Long-Term Debt outstanding 220,539,419 153,192,534 96,549,637 74,818,386 317,089,056 228,010,920
Other Liabilities 6,102,834 14,980,129 5,809,595 4,474,800 11,912,429 19,454,929

Total Liabilities 226,642,253 168,172,663 102,359,232 79,293,186 329,001,485 247,465,849
Deferred Inflows of Resources

Pension 1,958,581 3,680,873 304,089 848,963 2,262,670 4,529,836
Net Position

Net Investments in Capital Assets 655,044,577 642,109,428 150,228,905 149,771,777 805,273,482 791,881,205

Restricted 20,499,351 11,100,669 17,516,341 17,399,398 38,015,692 28,500,067

Unrestricted (148,371,437) (93,361,330) 117,617 12,757,392 (148,253,820) (80,603,938)
Total Net Position $ 527,172,491 | $ 559,848,767 | $ 167,862,863 | $ 179,928,567 | $ 695,035,354 | $ 739,777,334




Net position over time may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position, however it
may change dramatically year-to-year as a result of changes in accounting practices. Table 1 shows that
the net position of the government-wide activities decreased by $44.7 million or 6%, from $739,777,334
in 2017 to $695,035,354 in 2018. Governmental Activities net position decreased by 5.8%, from
$559,848,767 at June 30, 2017 to $527,172,491 at June 30, 2018. The City’s net position for business-
type activities decreased by 6.7% from $179,928,567 in 2017 to $167,862,863 in 2018. These changes in
net position are mainly attributable to the application of GASB Statement No. 75, affecting the manner in
which the City recognizes costs related to its “other post-employment benefit” plans (OPEB) for City
employees. Net positions across all funds now reflect Total OPEB Liability, which immediately
recognizes full costs associated with the present value of projected benefit payments attributable to
employees’ past service with no amortization period. Prior to this change, the City measured the Net
OPEB Obligation, which instead focused on the cumulative difference between annual City contributions
and the amortized annual OPEB costs accrued. It is anticipated that GASB 75 will expose net position to
more fluctuations in the future as a result of requirements to immediately recognize certain items (e.g.
plan changes).

Statement of Net Position - Total Primary Government

e Again, this year, the largest portion of total assets consists of capital assets (e.g., land, infrastructure
and equipment), totaling $828.3 million or 83.6% of total assets. These are detailed in Note 4 of the
financial statements.

e Net investment in Capital Assets of $805.3 million represents the City’s investment in infrastructure
and other capital assets, net of the debt issues to construct or acquire those assets.

e Cash and investments comprised of $143.2 million in the City treasury and $4.4 million of restricted
cash and investments held with fiscal agents. These are detailed in Note 2 of the financial statements

¢ Receivables, totaling $12.8 million, consist of accounts and taxes receivable.

e Restricted net position, totaling $38 million, represents resources that are subject to restrictions on
how they may be used. Some funds are restricted to funding construction of specific capital projects,
to service debt obligations, to hold in trust as an endowment, or for other specific uses.

e The amount of ($148,253,820) represents the unrestricted net position deficit, mainly resulting from
the recognition of the net pension liability in fiscal year 2015, in accordance with GASB 68, and the
first-time recognition of total OPEB liability in fiscal year 2018, in accordance with GASB 75.
Additional details can be found in Note 8 as it pertains to GASB 68 and in Note 9 for GASB 75.

¢ Overall investment in capital assets, net of related debt, increased by 1.7%. It should be noted that
the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the capital assets
themselves generally are not used to liquidate these liabilities.

Governmental Activities

e Receivables, totaling $5.1 million, consists mainly of taxes receivable at $4.7 million, with the
remaining $402,000 million in accounts receivable.

e The net position of governmental activities decreased by 5.8%, attributable to the implementation of
GASB 75 and the immediate recognition of accrued actuarial liability for OPEB costs, which
replaces the previous measurement of a pay-as-you go OPEB cost.

e This year, there was an increase of $67.3 million in long-term outstanding debt, due to increases in
net pension liability, and due more significantly to the implementation of GASB 75 in the
measurement of non-pension post-employment benefit (OPEB) obligations. Somewhat
overshadowed by the change in accounting standards for OPEB, City retired debt related to its 2003
Certificates of Participation and Claims Payable dropped by 29.7%. No new contractual debt was
issued by the City for Governmental Activities. There are more details available in Note 5 of the
financial statements.

e Total investment in capital assets remained relatively consistent, with an increase of 2%.
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Business-Type Activities

¢ The net position of business-type activities decreased by 6.7%, attributed to the implementation of
GASB 75 and the immediate recognition of total OPEB Liability, or the accrued actuarial liability
for OPEB costs, which replaces the previous measurement of a pay-as-you-go method under the Net
OPEB Obligation.

e Total capital assets of $171 million represent 20.7% of total capital assets citywide.

e Receivables, totaling $7.7 million, represent a decrease of approximately 40% from the prior year.
This is attributed to a one-time receivable in the amount of $6 million in fiscal year 2016-17 in the
form of a loan awaiting draw down. The balance consists predominantly of accounts receivable of
$7.69 million (which is consistent with prior year figures), and $21,000 in taxes receivable.

e This year, there was an increase of $21.7 million in long-term debt, due mainly to the
implementation of GASB 75, with its effects on total OPEB liability, and recurring increases in net
pension liability. More details are available in Note 5 of the financial statements.

The Statement of Activities reports increases and decreases in the net position. The following is a
condensed Statement of Activities for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017:

Table 2
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Program Revenues
Charges for services: S 16,218,906 | S 15,046,922 § S 54,005,287 | $ 47,351,982 | S 70,224,193 [ $ 62,398,904
Operating grants and contributions 4,469,962 2,911,259 - 4,469,962 2,911,259
Capital grants and contributions 4,533,292 2,257,370 347,871 816,777 4,881,163 3,074,147
General Revenues
Property taxes 30,067,473 28,173,741 66,263 40,199 30,133,736 28,213,940
Sales taxes 17,177,492 16,843,090 - - 17,177,492 16,843,090
Franchise taxes 3,224,053 3,035,317 - - 3,224,053 3,035,317
Other taxes 1,907,344 1,977,985 - 1,907,344 1,977,985
Use of money & property 206,304 212,991 509,882 500,783 716,186 713,774
Other 1,689,135 7,331,734 2,457,912 4,627,943 4,147,047 11,959,677
Intergovernmental (unrestricted) 195,866 196,602 - - 195,866 196,602
Total Revenues 79,689,827 77,987,011 57,387,215 53,337,684 137,077,042 131,324,695
Program Expenses
General government 12,394,000 14,391,456 - - 12,394,000 14,391,456
Public safety 32,240,549 43,263,363 - - 32,240,549 43,263,363
Culture and recreation 4,748,841 4,086,880 - - 4,748,841 4,086,880
Highway and streets 12,854,490 11,271,259 - - 12,854,490 11,271,259
Library 2,000,613 2,304,552 - - 2,000,613 2,304,552
Interest on Long-Term Debt 834,297 936,132 - - 834,297 936,132
Water - - 20,369,100 20,514,340 20,369,100 20,514,340
Disposal - - 12,877,703 12,274,583 12,877,703 12,274,583
Sewer - - 8,851,848 8,979,254 8,851,848 8,979,254
Groves - - 788,554 785,348 788,554 785,348
NP Water - - 125,323 75,761 125,323 75,761
Cemetery - - 861,109 742,740 861,109 742,740
Aviation - - 466,972 434,912 466,972 434,912
Total Expenses 65,072,790 76,253,642 44,340,609 43,806,938 109,413,399 120,060,580
Change in Net Position Before Transfers 14,617,037 1,733,369 13,046,606 9,530,746 27,663,643 11,264,115
Transfers 8,243,110 2,500,914 (8,243,110) (2,500,914)
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 22,860,147 4,234,283 4,803,496 7,029,832 27,663,643 11,264,115
Beginning Net Position 559,848,767 555,582,180 179,928,567 180,521,700 739,777,334 736,103,880
Restatement of Net Position (55,536,423) 32,304 (16,869,200) (7,622,965) (72,405,623) (7,590,661)
Beginning Net Position, as Restated 504,312,344 555,614,484 163,059,367 172,898,735 667,371,711 728,513,219
Ending Net Position $ 527,172,491 | $ 559,848,767 § $ 167,862,863 | $ 179,928,567 | $ 695,035,354 | $ 739,777,334
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Total Primary Government

¢ Total Governmental Activities revenues for fiscal year 2017/2018 increased by 4.4%. This growth is
mainly attributed to significant increases in revenue from charges for services in the Solid Waste &
Water funds of $6 million combined, an increase in operating & capital grant funding of almost $3.4
million, and strong growth in property tax revenues of $1.9 million.

e Sales tax revenue increased slightly by 2%, or $334,000, when compared to prior year.

e Total expenses for the City decreased rather significantly in fiscal year 2017/2018 by $10.6 million.
Most of this decrease is attributed to the settlement of outstanding claims in fiscal year 2016/2017,
during which time the City recognized an $8.6 million adjustment to increase the IBNR (Incurred
but Not Reported) claim liability amount. Because there was no such adjustment this year and based
on an updated actuarial study, this liability expense was significantly reduced.

e Transfers between governmental activities and business-type activities increased by $5.7 million.
This is mainly attributed to above average transfers for expenditures related to project activity in the
City’s Pavement Accelerated Rehabilitation Implementation Strategy (PARIS) program.

Governmental Activities

e Overall, total revenues increased in fiscal year 2017/2018 by $1.7 million, or 2.2%.

0 These increases were attributed to positive growth in property taxes, charges for services,
and increases in funding from capital and operating grants and contributions — all of which
were partially offset by a $5.6 million decrease in other revenue, as last fiscal year’s
amount included a one-time drawdown of approximately $6 million on a loan.

e General government expenses decreased significantly over fiscal year 2016/2017 expenses, by $11.2
million or 14.7%. These decreases are mainly attributed to the settlement of outstanding claims in
fiscal year 2016/2017, during which time the City recognized an $8.6 million adjustment to increase
the IBNR (Incurred but Not Reported) claim liability expense.

e In contrast to the decreases in expenses for general government and public safety, other programs
experienced increases: culture & recreation increased by $662,000, or 16.2%, and highways &
streets spending increased by $1.6 million, or 14%.

Business-Type Activities
¢ Overall, ending net position for the business-type activities decreased by $12.1 million, or
6.7%.
e Comparing fiscal year 2016/2017 and fiscal year 2017/2018, total revenues increased by
$4.05 million, or 7.6%.

0 The increase in revenues is mainly attributable to higher revenue received from
charges for services $6.7 million.

0 These increases were offset by a reduction of approximately $2.2 million in other
revenue.

0 Increased revenue from charges for services in the amount of $4.5 million
occurred predominantly within the water fund, where state mandated restrictions
on water use were ended, and as a result, water use increased. Another $1.4
million in increased charges for service was realized in the Solid Waste Fund,
resulting from a rate increased that began in the fall of 2017.

e Expenses increased slightly from fiscal year 2016/2017 levels by $534,000, or 1.2%. The
programs with the largest increase in expenses were the Solid Waste fund and the
Cemetery Fund at $603,000 and $118,000 respectively.
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Expenses by Function of Governmental Activity

Expenses by Functions of Governmental Activity

Interest on Long-

Highwayand _ Term Debt
streets Library 1%

20%_ 3%\ General
__government
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Culture and /
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7% Public safety
50%
® General government Public safety
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m Library ® |[nterest on Long-Term Debt

e Expenses overall for governmental activities totaled $65.1 million, representing a decrease
fiscal year 2016/2017 expenses of $11.2 million, or 14.7%.

e Expenses for general government comprise 19% of total governmental activities, or $12.4
million. General government includes functions such as human resources, finance
administration, parks, streets, engineering and City Council.

e Expenses for public safety represent 49.6% of total governmental activities in the amount
of $32.2 million. The main operations within public safety are the Police and Fire
Departments.

e Expenses for highway and streets are 19.6% of all governmental activities, or $12.9
million. These expenses include spending on the City’s Pavement Accelerated
Rehabilitation Implementation Strategy (PARIS) program, operations and maintenance as
well as other capital repairs to road infrastructure.

e Culture and recreation, Library, and interest on long-term debt comprise 7.3%, 3.1%, and
1.3% of general government respectively, or $4.7 million, $2 million and $834,000.
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Expenses and Program Revenues : Business Type Activities Fiscal Year Comparison
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e Major differences between revenues and expenses for business-type activities are show in
the two charts above.

0 Fiscal year 2017/2018 saw an increase in Water revenues of $4.5 million, or
20.2%, and a decrease in expenses of $145,000, or 0.7%. These differences are
attributed to the complete removal of state mandated water conservation efforts
and lowered operational expenses.

0 For disposal operations, there was an increase in revenues over fiscal year
2016/2017 in the amount of $1.4 million, or 10.6% and an increase in expenses in
the amount of $603,000, or 4.9%. Increased revenues are a results of a rate
increases the was implemented in fall of 2017.

0 In the sewer fund, revenues increased by $271,000, or 2.9%, and expenses
decreased by $127,000, or 1.4%.

0 Lastly, for nonmajor business-type funds, comprised of operations like the
Hillside Memorial Cemetery, the Aviation fund, and the Nonpotable Water fund,
there were overall increases in operating revenues of $406,000, or 16.6%, and
increases in expenses of $203,000, or 10%.

Expenses by Type for Business-Type Activities

Expenses by Type for Business-Type Activities
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MAJOR FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to provide proper financial management of the
City’s resources and to demonstrate compliance with finance-related accounting standards and
legal pronouncements.

Major Governmental Funds. The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the
end of June 2018, the total fund balance reported for the general fund was $35,734,630, an
increase of $3.03 million, or 9.3%, from the prior year fund balance of $32,698,975. As a
measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it can be useful to compare the total fund balance to
total fund expenditures, which indicates that fund balance is 56.5% of general fund expenditures,
however only $13,592,754 of the $35.7 million fund balance is unassigned. The unassigned fund
balance of $13.6 million, together with the $8.3 million fund balance committed to stabilization
arrangement (contingencies), is the only portion of fund balance readily available for spending
and represents 34.6% of general fund expenditures. Total general fund expenditures this year
were $63.3 million, which is 4.5% greater than the prior year amount of $60.5 million, and total
general fund revenues were $68.6, or 7.7% greater than the prior year amount of $63.7.

Significant changes in the revenues of the City’s General Fund from the prior year are as
follows:

e Sales Taxes increased by $334,000 from prior year, indicating steady but slowing growth
in consumer spending on taxable purchases.

e Property Taxes increased strongly by $1.6 million, primarily due to strong growth in net
taxable value of 5.6% overall.

e Franchise Fees increased by $189,000, or 6.2%. As previously discussed, fees from SCE,
the Gas Company, Verizon and Time Warner have tend to fluctuate year over year and
are closely tied to consumption of their respective commodities.

e Licenses and Permits reflect an increase of $882,000, or 13.9%, mostly due to higher
revenues from business licenses and building permits, plan checks and street permits as
construction activity rose.

e Intergovernmental Revenues increased sharply by $711,000, primarily the result of the
City receiving two significant grant awards: the Development Services Department was
successful in its efforts in obtaining a $600,000 state grant to prepare a Transit
Village/Downtown Specific Plan; and the Fire Department received a grant for over
$430,000 from the Department of Homeland Security’s Assistance to Firefighters Grant
program to purchase 64 new Self Contained Breathing Apparatuses.

e Charges for Services reflect an overall increase of $448,000, or 6.5% from prior year.
While there are variations over and under in each revenue account, the most significant
increases include $366,000 in mutual aid reimbursements and $46,000 in rental property
inspections.
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The Public Facilities Development fund accounts for the collection and related expenditure of
development impact fees designated for constructing new and upgrading existing public
facilities. This fund holds Advances Payable to other funds totaling $9,034,003. The funds and
amounts owed include the General Fund in the amount of $8,542,387, the Open Space Fund and
Park and Open Space Development Fund in the amount of $116,032 each, the Storm Drain
Construction Fund in the amount of $103,821, and the Water Fund Administration in the amount
of $155,731. This is an increase from last year of $182,828 due to additions to the loans for
unpaid interest of $11,256 and additional transfers from the general fund in the amount of
$171,572 to cover the Public Facilities Development fund’s portion of debt service. The increase
in fund balance over last year is a result of an uptick in revenues from development activity,
however such amounts were insufficient to completely cover debt service obligations owed by
the fund.

Major Enterprise Funds. The Water Fund has a total net position of $111,098,443 at the end of
the fiscal year, $9,089,328 of which is unrestricted. The Disposal Fund has a total net position
deficit of ($11,186,140) at the end of the fiscal year; unrestricted net position is a deficit of
($17,799,881). The Sewer Fund has a total net position of $48,560,905 at the end of the fiscal
year; $8,761,572 of which is unrestricted. These funds account for the respective utility services
provided by the City. Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been
addressed in the discussion of the City’s business-type activities.

GENERAL FUND BUDGET

Differences between the final budget and fiscal year 2017/2018 activity of the General Fund can
be briefly summarized as follows:

Total Revenues - $777,728 received in excess of budgeted amounts.

General Government - $1,353,880 decrease in the budget (savings).

Public Safety - $1,029,891 decrease in the budget (savings).

Culture and Recreation - $19,670 increase over the amount set in the budget.
Highways and Streets - $476,413 decrease in the budget (savings).

Library — $30,069 decrease in the budget (savings).

Transfers - $147,420 decrease in the budget (savings).

16



Major deviations between the final budget of the General Fund and its actual operating results
were as follows:

Favorable
(Unfavorable)
Final Budget Actual Amounts Variance
REVENUES
Taxes S 50,700,237 S 51,008,061 S 307,824
License & Permits 6,464,244 7,213,077 748,833
Intergovernmental 1,593,434 1,020,229 (573,205)
Charges for Service 7,430,163 7,509,832 79,669
Use of Money & Property 277,251 156,872 (120,379)
Miscellaneous 976,786 1,733,447 756,661
Transfers in 2,572,409 2,125,072 (447,337)
Proceeds from Sale of Property 1,949,001 1,974,663 25,662
Total Revenues 71,963,525 72,741,253 777,728
EXPENDITURES
General Government 13,473,262 12,119,382 1,353,880
Public Safety 40,826,127 39,796,236 1,029,891
Culture & Recreation 2,812,399 2,832,069 (19,670)
Highways & Streets 5,055,861 4,579,448 476,413
Library 2,019,786 1,989,717 30,069
Transfers 6,220,268 6,072,848 147,420
Capital Outlay 1,470,570 1,813,066 (342,496)
Debt Service 136,924 136,924 -
Total Expenditures $ 72,015,197 S 69,339,690 S 2,675,507

Actual revenues were over the amended budget estimates by $777,728. The largest increase was
in the miscellaneous category at $756,661 — due mainly to recognition of donations formerly
held as deposits that are now reclassified as revenue and restricted General Fund balance
beginning in fiscal year 2017/2018. Use of Money and Property came in under budget by
$120,379 due to lower than anticipated interest income. General Taxes came in higher than
projected by $307,824. This was mainly due to strong growth in property tax revenues and slight
growth in franchise fees.

Total General Fund expenditures ended the year under budget by 3.7%.
General Government expenditures ended the year under budget by 10%.
Public Safety expenditures were under budget by $1,029,887, or 2.5%.

Highways and Streets expenditures were under budget by $476,416, or 9.4%.
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Culture and Recreation was over budget by $19,670, or 0.7%, but this overage is completely
offset by revenue in the Recreation division and is related to pass-through payments to
independent contractors that provide fee-based classes to the public at the City’s Community
Center.

Library expenditures were under budget by $30,069, or 1.5% at year-end. This was largely due
to a reduction in insurance premium costs.

Actual capital expenditures were over budget by $342,496, or 23.3% at year-end. This is due
mainly to one-time purchases of capital equipment with federal grant funds in the Fire
Department and the one-time receipt of donated property that required capitalization in the
Quality of Life Department.

There were no variations from the budget in the Debt Service principal and interest payments.

The overall favorable variance of $2,675,506, or 3.7%, was achieved by careful review and
monitoring of all categories of expenditures, by all departments. With the difficult economic
conditions that have existed in recent years, budget monitoring has become more critical than
ever before, requiring the cooperative efforts of management and staff at every level.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2018, amounted to $828,327,241 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, vehicles,
infrastructure, water stock, rights of way and construction in progress.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year include the following:

The City recognized a net decrease in construction in progress (CIP) totaling $7,652,551, or
78.6%. This significant decrease is the result of several factors. There were various capital assets
and projects placed into service during fiscal year 2017-2018. This was largely a result of the
City’s ongoing Pavement Accelerated Rehabilitation Strategy (PARIS) program, accounting for
almost $7 million of this amount. Other projects included the completion of off-site
improvements at Heritage Park; the addition of new bike lanes; water infrastructure
improvements; Hillside Memorial Park improvements to develop Block 14 & Cremation Garden
monumentation; and installation of Service Club monument signs.

Overall, the City’s net capital assets increased by $9,647,413 for the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2018, or 1.2% over prior year. This increase is after including net depreciation charges
that were $238,584, or 1.7% higher over the prior year.
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Capital assets for the governmental and business-type activities are presented below to illustrate
changes from the prior year:

Increase/

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total (Decrease)
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 % of Change
Land $ 32,858,122 S 30,475,450 $ 28,326,013 $ 28,326,014 $ 61,184,135 $ 58,801,464 4.1%
Buildings & Improvements 33,182,818 34,499,854 104,054,079 102,940,070 137,236,897 137,439,924 (0.1%)
Machinery/Equip./Vehicles 19,186,734 18,744,552 17,832,821 17,143,288 37,019,555 35,887,840 3.2%
Infrastructure 229,015,281 219,760,317 171,862,654 170,673,828 400,877,935 390,434,145 2.7%
Water Stock/Rights 408,125 408,125 9,881,460 9,881,460 10,289,585 10,289,585 0.0%
Rights of Way 463,689,274 448,879,490 - - 463,689,274 448,879,490 3.3%
Construction in Progress 227,452 8,708,072 1,852,151 1,024,082 2,079,603 9,732,154 (78.6%)
Accumulated Depreciation (121,315,865)  (116,347,295) (162,733,878)  (156,437,479) (284,049,743)  (272,784,774) 4.1%
Total $ 657,251,941 $ 645,128,565 $ 171,075,300 $ 173,551,263 $ 828,327,241 $ 818,679,828 1.2%

Internal Service Fund capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, of $264,936, are included
in Governmental Activities.

Additional information on the City’s Capital Assets can be found in Note 4 of the section titled
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

Long-Term Liabilities

Major Long-Term liability events during the current fiscal year include the following:

Beginning in fiscal year 2017/2018, GASB 75 was implemented and replaced GASB 45.
This change marked a shift in the way OPEB liability is measured and introduced new
terminology. GASB 45 measured the Net OPEB Obligation by focusing on the
cumulative difference between annual City contributions and the amortized annual OPEB
costs accrued. This resulted in a measurement based on the concept of pay-as-you-go.
Under GASB 75, Total OPEB Liability immediately recognizes all costs associated with
the present value of projected benefit payments under OPEB attributable to those
employees’ past periods of service with no amortization period, resulting in a
measurement based on accrued actuarial liability.

O As a result of implementing GASB Statement No. 75, a significant increase to
recognized OPEB costs was incurred and represented an increase over last year’s
method of OPEB cost measurement of 195%.

The City experienced a significant decrease of $3.9 million in Claims Payable or 26.6%.
This decrease reflects prior year first-time recognition of accruals in the amounts of $8.5
and $8.1 for general liability and workers’ compensation claims, respectively.

The 2003 Certificates of Participation debt was fully retired.

The 2012A Wastewater Refunding Revenue Bonds were fully retired.

In Fiscal Year 2011, the City began drawing on an approved $13,663,033
State Revolving Fund Loan with the State Department of Public Health for water
treatment plant upgrades; at June 30, 2018, the outstanding balance was $8,568,189.
Long-term liability for Compensated Absences increased by $450,619, or 5%.
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Long-Term Liabilities for governmental and business-type activities are presented below to
illustrate changes from the prior year:

Increase/

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total (Decrease)
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 % of Change
Capital Lease Obligations S 747,927 S 861,169 S - S - S 747,927 S 861,169 (13.1%)
Taxable Pension Bonds 12,452,070 14,596,411 - - 12,452,070 14,596,411 (14.7%)
Certificates of Participation - 595,000 - - - 595,000 (100.0%)
Add:Insurance Premium - 48,006 - - - 48,006 (100.0%)
Revenue Bonds - - 8,820,000 11,045,000 8,820,000 11,045,000 (20.1%)
Add: Unamortized Premium - - 900,331 1,083,322 900,331 1,083,322 (16.9%)
Notes Payable - - 19,440,040 20,929,311 19,440,040 20,929,311 (7.1%)
Leases Payable 1,459,437 1,514,962 - - 1,459,437 1,514,962 (3.7%)
Claims Payable 10,716,466 14,591,560 - - 10,716,466 14,591,560 (26.6%)
Compensated Absences 8,324,134 7,979,140 1,119,431 1,013,806 9,443,565 8,992,946 5.0%
Landfill Closure Liability - - 8,178,007 7,915,480 8,178,007 7,915,480 3.3%
Net OPEB Obligation - 27,635,116 - 15,278,702 - 42,913,818 195.1%

Total OPEB Liability* 88,951,334 - 37,706,715 - 126,658,049 -

Net Pension Liability 97,888,051 85,371,170 20,385,113 17,552,765 118,273,164 102,923,935 14.9%
Total $ 220,539,419 $ 153,192,534 $ 96,549,637 $ 74,818,386 $ 317,089,056 $ 228,010,920 39.1%

Additional information on the City’s long-term liabilities can be found in Notes 5, 6, 8, 9 and 12
of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be sent to the Management Services Department at
CAFR(@cityofredlands.org or to Management Services / Finance Director, 35 Cajon Street, Suite
222, Redlands, CA 92373.

This financial report is also available in electronic format on the City’s website at
http://cityofredlands.org/finance/annualreport. Additional information intended for the business
community is available on the Economic Development web page also located on the City’s
website listed above at http://www.cityofredlands.org/ED.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

Assets
Cash and investments
Cash and investments with fiscal agent
Receivables:
Accounts
Taxes
Internal balances
Prepaid costs
Due from other governments
Inventory
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets, net of depreciation

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred amount related to pensions
Deferred amount related to OPEB
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest
Unearned revenue
Deposits payable
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Net pension liability
Total OPEB liability

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred amount related to pensions

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Quality of life
PEG fees
Public safety
Highway and streets
Capital projects
Debt service
Endowment - nonexpendable
Endowment - expendable
CFD Assessment
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ 60,273,090 $ 82,929,223 $ 143,202,313
2,567,099 1,904,646 4,471,745
401,838 7,686,014 8,087,852
4,660,601 21,210 4,681,811
45,361 (45,361) -
215,753 - 215,753
1,278,516 368,411 1,646,927
86,277 - 86,277
497,182,973 40,059,624 537,242,597
160,068,968 131,015,676 291,084,644
726,780,476 263,939,443 990,719,919
25,780,471 5,418,566 31,199,037
3,212,378 1,168,175 4,380,553
28,992,849 6,586,741 35,579,590
1,785,061 2,997,569 4,782,630
2,357,995 207,254 2,565,249
295,536 220,173 515,709
576,623 85,067 661,690
1,087,619 2,299,532 3,387,151
12,151,692 2,779,288 14,930,980
21,548,342 35,678,521 57,226,863
97,888,051 20,385,113 118,273,164
88,951,334 37,706,715 126,658,049
226,642,253 102,359,232 329,001,485
1,958,581 304,089 2,262,670
655,044,577 150,228,905 805,273,482
647,243 - 647,243
410,675 - 410,675
2,012,553 - 2,012,553
11,058,814 - 11,058,814
1,931,689 17,053,741 18,985,430
2,575,353 462,600 3,037,953
120,061 - 120,061
1,503,321 - 1,503,321
239,642 - 239,642
(148,371,437) 117,617 (148,253,820)

$§ 527,172,491

$ 167,862,863

$ 695,035,354

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2018

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Functions/Programs
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General government $  (12,394,000) $ 10,811,937 $ 132,127  $ 93,626
Public safety (32,240,549) 3,076,343 1,217,011 81,466
Culture and recreation (4,748,841) 303,222 140,030 408,636
Highway and streets (12,854,490) 1,895,996 2,928,794 3,915,663
Library (2,000,613) 131,408 52,000 33,901
Interest on long-term debt (834,297) - - -
Total Governmental Activities (65,072,790) 16,218,906 4,469,962 4,533,292
Business-Type Activities:
Water (20,369,100) 27,030,979 - -
Disposal (12,877,703) 15,110,821 - -
Sewer (8,851,848) 9,611,197 - -
Groves (788,554) 741,397 - -
Non-potable water (125,323) 638,313 - -
Cemetery (861,109) 745,347 - -
Aviation (466,972) 127,233 - 347,871
Total Business-Type Activities (44,340,609) 54,005,287 - 347,871
Total Primary Government $§ (109,413,399) § 70,224,193 $ 4,469,962 $ 4,881,163

General revenues:

Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purpose

Sales taxes
Franchise taxes
Other taxes

Use of money and property

Other

Intergovernmental (unrestricted)
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net position
Net Position at Beginning of Year, as Restated

Net position at End of Year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
(1,356,310) $ - (1,356,310)
(27,865,729) - (27,865,729)
(3,896,953) - (3,896,953)
(4,114,037) - (4,114,037)
(1,783,304) (1,783,304)
(834,297) - (834,297)
(39,850,630) - (39,850,630)
- 6,661,879 6,661,879
- 2,233,118 2,233,118
- 759,349 759,349
- (47,157) (47,157)
- 512,990 512,990
- (115,762) (115,762)
- 8,132 8,132
- 10,012,549 10,012,549
(39,850,630) 10,012,549 (29,838,081)
30,067,473 66,263 30,133,736
17,177,492 - 17,177,492
3,224,053 - 3,224,053
1,907,344 - 1,907,344
206,304 509,882 716,186
1,689,135 2,457,912 4,147,047
195,866 - 195,866
8,243,110 (8,243,110) -
62,710,777 (5,209,053) 57,501,724
22,860,147 4,803,496 27,663,643

504,312,344 163,059,367 667,371,711

§ 527,172,491 § 167,862,863 § 695,035,354

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2018

Assets
Cash and investments
Cash and investments with fiscal agent
Receivables:
Accounts
Taxes
Prepaid costs
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Advances to other funds

Total Assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Unearned revenues
Deposits payable
Due to other funds
Advances from other funds

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources

and Fund Balances

Special Revenue

Fund
Public Other Total
Facilities Governmental Governmental
General Development Funds Funds
$ 24,287,894 $ 566,061 $ 26,518,149 $ 51,372,104
- - 2,567,099 2,567,099
313,349 - 74,858 388,207
4,186,014 - 474,587 4,660,601
192,259 - 3,600 195,859
683,897 - 594,619 1,278,516
674,121 - - 674,121
8,542,387 - 335,885 8,878,272
$ 38,879,921 $ 566,061 $ 30,568,797  $ 70,014,779
$ 1,015,952 $ - $ 312,962 $ 1,328,914
611,480 - 85,582 697,062
156,513 - 420,110 576,623
783,692 - 303,927 1,087,619
- - 473,029 473,029
- 9,034,003 - 9,034,003
2,567,637 9,034,003 1,595,610 13,197,250
577,654 - 175,160 752,814
8,734,646 - 123,661 8,858,307
1,057,918 - 19,321,372 20,379,290
8,285,676 - 8,441,919 16,727,595
4,063,636 - 1,204,854 5,268,490
13,592,754 (8,467,942) (293,779) 4,831,033
35,734,630 (8,467,942) 28,798,027 56,064,715
$ 38,879,921 $ 566,061 $ 30,568,797  $ 70,014,779

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

Capital assets net of depreciation have not been included as financial resources
in governmental fund activity.

Long-term debt, net pension liability and compensated absences that have not
been included in the governmental fund activity:

Capital leases payable $ (747,927)
Taxable pension funding bonds (12,452,070)
I-Bank Sports Park lease (1,459,437)
Net pension liability (93,304,529)
Total OPEB liability (81,251,544)
Compensated absences (7,900,323)

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Deferred inflows related to pensions

Accrued interest payable for the current portion of interest due on Bonds
has not been reported in the governmental funds.

Revenues reported as unavailable revenue in the governmental funds and
recognized in the statement of activities. These are included in the
intergovernmental revenues in the governmental fund activity.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as equipment management and self-insurance, to individual
funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds must be added to
the statement of net position.

Net Position of Governmental Activities

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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56,064,715

656,987,005

(197,115,830)
2,983,922
24,597,106

(1,954,233)

(295,536)

752,814

(14,847,472)

$

527,172,491




CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2018

Special Revenue

Fund
Public Other Total
General Facilities Governmental Governmental
Fund Development Funds Funds
Revenues
Taxes $ 51,008,061 $ - $ 2,600,710 53,608,771
Licenses and permits 7,213,077 204,271 832,174 8,249,522
Intergovernmental 1,020,229 - 3,008,935 4,029,164
Charges for services 7,509,832 - 590,188 8,100,020
Use of money and property 156,872 - 28,738 185,610
Miscellaneous 1,733,447 - 3,133,532 4,866,979
Total Revenues 68,641,518 204,271 10,194,277 79,040,066
Expenditures
Current:
General government 12,119,382 - 711,298 12,830,680
Public safety 39,796,236 - 5,449,969 45,246,205
Culture and recreation 2,832,069 - 38,652 2,870,721
Highway and streets 4,579,448 8,745 2,445,624 7,033,817
Library 1,989,717 - - 1,989,717
Capital outlay 1,813,066 - 4,319,760 6,132,826
Debt service:
Principal retirement 113,242 - 2,930,525 3,043,767
Interest and fiscal charges 23,682 11,256 777,064 812,002
Total Expenditures 63,266,842 20,001 16,672,892 79,959,735
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 5,374,676 184,270 (6,478,615) (919,669)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 2,125,072 - 17,201,742 19,326,814
Transfers out (6,072,848) (304,996) (3,410,360) (9,788,204)
Proceeds from sale of property 1,974,663 - 540 1,975,203
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,973,113) (304,996) 13,791,922 11,513,813
Net change in fund balances 3,401,563 (120,726) 7,313,307 10,594,144
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as Restated 32,333,067 (8,347,216) 21,484,720 45,470,571
Fund Balances, End of Year $ 35,734,630 $ (8,467,942) $§ 28,798,027 $§ 56,064,715

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2018

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 10,594,144

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital projects (outlays) as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, the costs of those assets are allocated over their
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Capital outlay $ 6,132,826
Expenditures classified in various functions are reclassified as capital additions 15,363,287
Depreciation expense (7,444,667)
Disposal of capital assets (1,341,091) 12,710,355

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while repayment of principal of long-term debt consumes
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net position.

Principal repayments on capital leases 113,242
Principal repayments on certificates of participation 595,000
Principal repayment of I-Bank Sports Park lease 55,525
Amortization of bond premiums/discounts 48,006
Principal repayments on taxable pension obligation bonds 2,280,000
Accreted interest on taxable pension obligation bonds (135,659) 2,956,114

Accrued interest for long-term liabilities. This is the net change in accrued
interest for the current period. 65,358

Compensated absences expenses reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds. (317,999)

OPEB contributions are expenditures in the governmental funds, however
OPEB expense is measured as the change in the total OPEB liability and
deferred outflows. (3,073,623)

Pension contributions are expenditures in the governmental funds, however
pension expense is measured as the change in the net pension liability and
amortization of deferred inflows and outflows in the statement of activities.
This amount represents the net change in pension related amounts. (4,370,803)

Revenues reported as unavailable revenue in the governmental funds are
recognized in the statement of activities. (4,505)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as equipment management and self-insurance, to individual funds.
The net revenues (expenses) of the internal service funds is reported with
governmental activities. 4,301,106

&L

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 22,860,147

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

27



CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2018

Assets:
Current:
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Accounts
Taxes
Prepaid costs
Due from other governments
Inventory

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent:
Advances to other funds
Capital assets - net of accumulated depreciation
Cash and investments with fiscal agent

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred outflows related to pensions
Deferred outflows related to OPEB

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Net Position:
Liabilities:
Current:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Interest payable
Unearned revenues
Deposits payable
Due to other funds
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued claims and judgments
Bonds, notes, and capital leases

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent:

Advances from other funds
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued claims and judgments
Bonds, notes, and capital leases
Total OPEB liability
Net pension liability
Landfill closure

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred pension related items

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Net Position

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Other
Enterprise

Water Disposal Sewer Funds
35,438,063 16,132,629 $ 26,761,589 4,596,942
4,219,693 2,096,567 1,306,407 63,347
- - - 21,210
_ - - 368,411
39,657,756 18,229,196 28,067,996 5,049,910
1,234,851 934,007 - -
109,816,895 7,018,240 34,917,108 19,323,057
682,010 1,222,636 - -
111,733,756 9,174,883 34,917,108 19,323,057
151,391,512 27,404,079 62,985,104 24,372,967
2,504,601 1,525,967 1,227,282 160,716
606,727 298,836 217,335 45,277
3,111,328 1,824,803 1,444,617 205,993
154,502,840 29,228,882 $ 64,429,721 24,578,960
2,048,686 547,696 $ 282,837 118,350
92,621 59,326 47,165 8,142
- 220,173 - -
- 84,643 - 424
1,289,271 46,445 13,680 950,136
- - - 201,092
261,856 134,166 146,031 17,663
376,819 1,535,658 307,095 -
4,069,253 2,628,107 796,808 1,295,807
- - - 2,013,127
261,857 134,165 146,032 17,661
11,133,561 13,796,558 2,010,680 -
18,724,991 9,725,863 8,034,511 1,221,350
9,057,662 5,931,887 4,770,811 624,753
- 8,178,007 - -
39,178,071 37,766,480 14,962,034 3,876,891
43,247,324 40,394,587 15,758,842 5,172,698
157,073 20,435 109,974 16,607
98,306,515 - 32,599,333 19,323,057
3,240,000 6,613,741 7,200,000 -
462,600 - - -
9,089,328 (17,799,881) 8,761,572 66,598
111,098,443 (11,186,140) 48,560,905 19,389,655
154,502,840 29,228,882 $ 64,429,721 24,578,960
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Business-Type Governmental

Activities - Activities -
Enterprise Funds Internal
Totals Service Funds

$ 82,929,223 $ 8,900,986
7,686,014 13,631

21,210 -

- 19,894

368,411 -

- 86,277

91,004,858 9,020,788
2,168,858 -
171,075,300 264,936
1,904,646 -
175,148,804 264,936
266,153,662 9,285,724
5,418,566 1,183,365
1,168,175 228,456
6,586,741 1,411,821

$ 272,740,403 $ 10,697,545
$ 2,997,569 $ 456,147
207,254 1,660,933

220,173 -

85,067 -

2,299,532 -

201,092 -

559,716 211,907

- 5,358,233

2,219,572 -
8,789,975 7,687,220
2,013,127 -

559,715 211,904

- 5,358,233

26,940,799 -
37,706,715 7,699,790
20,385,113 4,583,522
8,178,007 -
95,783,476 17,853,449
104,573,451 25,540,669
304,089 4,348
150,228,905 264,936
17,053,741 -

462,600 -
117,617 (15,112,408)
167,862,863 (14,847,472)

$ 272,740,403 $ 10,697,545

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2018

Operating Revenues:
Sales and service charges
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:

Personnel services

Administrative and contractual services
Supplies

Premiums paid out

Depreciation expense

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss):
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):

Interest revenue
Interest expense
Miscellaneous income
Miscellaneous expense

Property taxes
Grants

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Income (Loss) Before Transfers and Contributions

Transfers in
Transfers out
Contributions

Change in Net Position

Net Position/(Deficit):

Beginning of Year, as restated

End of Year

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Other
Enterprise
Water Disposal Sewer Funds

$ 27,030,979 $ 15,110,821 $ 9,611,197 $ 2,252,290
118,855 6 74 590,626
27,149,834 15,110,827 9,611,271 2,842,916
6,807,561 4,621,561 3,544,998 671,860
8,105,231 5,908,180 2,884,059 1,278,404
1,731,436 530,309 845,282 55,989
3,427,956 1,249,520 1,609,079 205,885
20,072,184 12,309,570 8,883,418 2,212,138
7,077,650 2,801,257 727,853 630,778
58,172 346,544 77,950 27,216
(296,736) (568,133) 31,570 (29,820)
142,614 169 5 27,398
(180) - - -

- - - 66,263

- 49,551 - 347,871

(96,130) (171,869) 109,525 438,928
6,981,520 2,629,388 837,378 1,069,706
172,016 - 18,962 667,905
(363,027) (8,700,405) (38,561) -
896,469 89,241 514,911 27,993
7,686,978 (5,981,776) 1,332,690 1,765,604
103,411,465 (5,204,364) 47,228,215 17,624,051
$ 111,098,443 $ (11,186,140) $ 48,560,905 $ 19,389,655

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Business-Type Governmental

Activities - Activities -
Enterprise Funds Internal
Totals Service Funds
$ 54,005,287 $ 15,395,198
709,561 574,767
54,714,848 15,969,965
15,645,980 3,841,574
18,175,874 3,070,469
3,163,016 2,519,047
- 773,356
6,492,440 189,067
43,477,310 10,393,513
11,237,538 5,576,452
509,882 20,154
(863,119) -
170,186 -
(180) -
66,263 -
397,422 -
280,454 20,154
11,517,992 5,596,606
858,883 1,845,000
(9,101,993) (3,140,500)
1,528,614 -
4,803,496 4,301,106
163,059,367 (19,148,578)

$ 167,862,863 $  (14,847,472)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash received from customers and users
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments for claims

Cash paid to employees for services

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities:

Cash transfers in

Cash transfers out
Advances to other funds
Advances from other funds
Intergovernmental

Grants received

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Non-Capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital

and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on long term debt
Interest paid on debt
Cash contributions received from developers

Net Cash Provided (Used) by

Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest received

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and
Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Other
Enterprise
Water Disposal Sewer Funds

29,098,324 $ 20,772,853 $ 10,329,894 $ 2,913,943
(8,621,761) (5,814,020) (3,743,863) (1,574,924)
(5,475,999) (3,847,212) (2,947,208) (574,801)

15,000,564 11,111,621 3,638,823 764,218

172,016 - 18,962 667,905
(363,027) (8,700,405) (38,561) -

97,820 (13,077) - -
. - . (1,131,742)

- - - 66,263

- 49,551 - 642,310

(93,191) (8,663,931) (19,599) 244,736
(2,751,826) (557,484) (85,896) (348,510)

(951,451) (1,656,208) (1,289,604) -
(296,736) (645,038) (19,800) (29,820)

896,469 89,241 514,911 27,993
(3,103,544) (2,769,489) (880,389) (350,337)

58,172 346,544 77,950 27,216

11,862,001 24,745 2,816,785 685,833

24,258,072 17,330,520 23,944,804 3,911,109

36,120,073 $ 17,355,265 $ 26,761,589 $ 4,596,942

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Business-Type Governmental

Activities - Activities -
Enterprise Funds Internal
Totals Service Funds

$ 63,115,014 $ 16,138,857
(19,754,568) (6,311,188)
- (3,875,094)
(12,845,220) (3,281,834)
30,515,226 2,670,741
858,883 1,845,000
(9,101,993) (3,140,500)
84,743 -
(1,131,742) -
66,263 -
691,861 -
(8,531,985) (1,295,500)
(3,743,716) (50,405)
(3,897,263) -
(991,394) -
1,528,614 -
(7,103,759) (50,405)
509,882 20,154
15,389,364 1,344,990
69,444,505 7,555,996

$ 84,833,869 $ 8,900,986

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2018

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Other
Enterprise
Water Disposal Sewer Funds
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 7,077,650 $ 2,801,257 $ 727,853 $ 630,778
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 3,427,956 1,249,520 1,609,079 205,885
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 1,849,349 5,702,069 723,908 10,838
(Increase) decrease in inventory - - - -
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expense 105 - - -
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows (961,654) (531,279) (404,281) (69,758)
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows (242,102) - (127,519) (16,699)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 1,214,801 361,942 (14,522) (219,555)
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll 11,360 9,657 5,511 849
Increase (decrease) in deposits payable 99,141 (7,795) (5,285) 40,089
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue - (32,248) - (876)
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 1,258,489 665,634 662,866 86,805
Increase (decrease) in total OPEB liability 1,219,117 600,461 436,699 90,978
Increase (decrease) in claims and judgments - - - -
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 46,352 29,876 24,514 4,884
Increase (decrease) in landfill closure liability - 262,527 - -
Total Adjustments 7,922,914 8,310,364 2,910,970 133,440
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities $ 15,000,564 $ 11,111,621 $ 3,638,823 $ 764,218
Non-Cash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:
Amortization of premiums on debt $ - $ 182,991 $ - $ -

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Governmental

Activities -
Internal
Totals Service Funds
$ 11,237,538 $ 5,576,452
6,492,440 189,067
8,286,164 168,892
- (1,042)
105 (18,531)
(1,966,972) (408,062)
(386,320) (122,513)
1,342,666 71,257
27,377 (38,194)
126,150 -
(33,124) -
2,673,794 636,843
2,347,255 464,670
- (3,869,358)
105,626 21,260
262,527 -
19,277,688 (2,905,711)
$ 30,515,226 $ 2,670,741
$ 182,991 $ -

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2018

Assets:
Cash and investments

Cash and investments with fiscal agents

Receivables:
Accounts
Note
Accrued interest
Capital assets:

Capital assets, not being depreciated

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred charge on refunding

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued interest
Deposits payable
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities

Net Position:
Held in trust for other purposes

Private-Purpose

Trust Fund
Successor
Agency Agency of the
Funds Former RDA
6,382,568 2,950,263
2,856,052 1,625
- 300,000
- 109,652
540,391 -
- 2,834,569
9,779,011 6,196,109
369,538
526,850 1,842
- 3,218
- 178,161
9,252,161 3,000
- 2,170,000
- 10,269,159
9,779,011 12,625,380
(6,059,733)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2018

Additions:
Taxes
Interest and change in fair value of investments

Total Additions
Deductions:
Administrative expenses

Contractual services
Interest expense

Total Deductions

Change in Net Position

Net Position/(Deficit), Beginning of Year, as Restated

Net Position/(Deficit), End of Year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Private-Purpose
Trust Fund

Successor
Agency of the
Former RDA

$

2,713,151
210,480

2,923,631

250,002
158,129
522,827

930,958

1,992,673

(8,052,406)

$

(6,059,733)
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Reporting Entity

The City of Redlands ("City") is a municipal corporation governed by a five-member city council with the
mayor elected by the council itself. The City was incorporated in 1888 under the general laws of the State of
California and enjoys all the rights and privileges applicable to a General Law City. As required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial statements present the City and
its component units, entities for which the City is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component
units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the City's operations and so data from these
units are combined with data of the City. Each blended component unit has a June 30 year-end.

Blended Component Units

The Redlands Public Improvement Corporation (“Corporation”) was organized in June 1985 pursuant to the
Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law of the State of California, solely for the purpose of providing
financial assistance to the City by acquiring, constructing, improving, developing and installing certain real and
personal property together with appurtenances and appurtenant work for the use, benefit and enjoyment of the
public. The corporation was formed at the request of the City and the directors receive no compensation. The
corporation is presented as a governmental fund type.

The Redlands Financing Authority (“Authority””) was established May 1, 1999, pursuant to the Joint Exercise
of Powers Laws of the State of California. The Authority was created by the former Redevelopment Agency
and the City for the primary purpose of assisting the financing of capital improvements, working capital,
liability and other insurance needs, or projects whenever there are significant public benefits.
Separate financial statements for the blended component units are not prepared.
Related Organizations
The City of Redlands’ officials are also responsible for appointing members of the boards of other
organizations, but the City of Redlands’ accountability for these organizations does not extend beyond making
the appointments. The board of the Friends of the A.K. Smiley Public Library and the Redlands Historical
Museum Association are appointed by the City Council.

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The basic financial statements of the City are composed of the following:

e Government-wide financial statements
e Fund financial statements
e Notes to the basic financial statements
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Government-wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements display information about the reporting government as a whole, except
for its fiduciary activities. These statements include separate columns for the governmental and business-type
activities of the primary government (including the blended component units). Eliminations have been made
in the Statement of Activities so that certain allocated expenses are recorded only once (by the function to which
they were allocated). However, general government expenses have not been allocated as indirect expenses to
the various functions of the City.

Government-wide financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Under the economic resources measurement focus, all (both current and long-term)
economic resources and obligations of the reporting government are reported in the government-wide financial
statements. Basis of accounting refers to when the revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financial statements. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues, expenses, gains, losses,
assets, deferred outflows or resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources resulting from exchange
and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

Program revenues include charges for services, special assessments, and payments made by parties outside of
the reporting government's citizenry if that money is restricted to a particular program. Program revenues are
netted with program expenses in the Statement of Activities to present the net cost of each program.

Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the government-wide financial statements,
rather than reported as expenditure. Proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as a liability in the government-
wide financial statements, rather than as another financing source. Amounts paid to reduce long-term
indebtedness of the reporting government are reported as a reduction of the related liability, rather than as
expenditure.

Fund Financial Statements

The underlying accounting system of the City is organized and operated on the basis of separate funds, each of
which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, fund
equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Governmental resources are allocated to and
accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by
which spending activities are controlled.

Fund financial statements for the primary government's governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds are
presented after the government-wide financial statements. These statements display information about major
funds individually and non-major funds in the aggregate for governmental and enterprise funds. Fiduciary
funds of the City primarily represent assets held by the City in a custodial capacity for other individuals or
organizations.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Governmental Funds

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented using the modified-accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized when they become measurable and available as net current assets.
Measurable means that the amounts can be estimated, or otherwise determined. Available means that the
amounts were collected during the reporting period or soon enough thereafter to be available to finance the
expenditures accrued for the reporting period. The City uses an availability period of 60 days.

Sales taxes, property taxes, franchise taxes, gas taxes, motor vehicle in-lieu, transient occupancy taxes, grants
and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have
been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period to the extent normally collected within the availability
period. Other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available when cash is received by the
government.

Revenue recognition is subject to the measurability and availability criteria for the governmental funds in the
fund financial statements. Exchange transactions are recognized as revenues in the period in which they are
earned (i.e., the related goods or services are provided). Locally imposed derived tax revenues are recognized
as revenues in the period in which the underlying exchange transaction upon which they are based takes place.
Imposed non-exchange transactions are recognized as revenues in the period for which they were imposed. If
the period of use is not specified, they are recognized as revenues when an enforceable legal claim to the
revenues arises or when they are received, whichever occurs first. Government-mandated and voluntary non-
exchange transactions are recognized as revenues when all applicable eligibility requirements have been met.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented using the current financial resources
measurement focus. This means that only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on their
balance sheets. The reported fund balance (net current assets) is considered to be a measure of “available
spendable resources.” Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other financing
sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said
to present a summary of sources and uses of "available spendable resources" during a period.

Non-current portions of long-term receivables due to governmental funds are reported on their balance sheets
in spite of their spending measurement focus. Special reporting treatments are used to indicate; however, that
they should not be considered "available spendable resources," since they do not represent net current assets.
Recognition of governmental fund type revenue represented by non-current receivables is deferred until they
become current receivables.

Because of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for governmental fund types excludes
amounts represented by non-current liabilities. Since they do not affect net current assets, such long-term
amounts are not recognized as governmental fund type expenditures or fund liabilities.

Amounts expended to acquire capital assets are recorded as expenditures in the year that resources were
expended, rather than as fund assets, the proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as other financing sources
rather than as a fund liability. Amounts paid to reduce long-term indebtedness are reported as fund
expenditures.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Continued)

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are combined in a fund, expenditures are considered to be paid
first from restricted resources, and then from unrestricted resources.

Proprietary and Fiduciary Funds

The City's enterprise and internal service funds are proprietary funds. In the fund financial statements,
proprietary and fiduciary funds are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
when they are earned and expenses are recognized when the related goods or services are delivered. In the fund
financial statements, proprietary and fiduciary funds are presented using the economic resources measurement
focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities (whether current or non-current) associated with their activity
are included on their balance sheets. Proprietary and fiduciary fund type operating statements present increases
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City's proprietary
funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost
of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as noncapital revenues and expenses.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated
with principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up
essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies, taxes, and investment earnings result from
non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as
assets in the proprietary fund financial statements, rather than reported as expenditures. Proceeds of long-term
debt are recorded as a liability in the proprietary fund financial statements, rather than as other financing source.
Amounts paid to reduce long-term indebtedness of the proprietary funds are reported as a reduction of the
related liability, rather than as expenditure.

Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve the recording of City revenues
and expenses. Private-purpose trust funds account for the assets and liabilities of other agencies and report
additions such as taxes and deductions such as administrative and contract services.

C. Fund Classification
The City utilizes the following broad categories of funds:
Major Funds

Major funds are those funds which are either material or of particular importance.

Major Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are generally used to account for tax-supported activities.
The following governmental funds met the criteria of a major fund:
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
C. Fund Classification (Continued)
General Fund

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all activities, except
those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Public Facilities Development

The Public Facilities Development Fund is used to account for the collection and related expenditure of
development impact fees restricted for constructing new and upgrading existing public facilities.

Major Proprietary Funds — Proprietary funds are used to report an activity for which a fee is charged to external
users to recover the cost of operation.

Water Fund
The Water Fund is an enterprise fund used to account for water utility services provided by the City.

Disposal Fund

The Disposal Fund is an enterprise fund used to account for refuse disposal utility services provided by the
City.

Sewer Fund
The Sewer Fund is an enterprise fund used to account for waste water utility services provided by the City.
Additionally the government reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted
to expenditures for specific purposes.

Capital Project

Capital project funds are used to account for the expenditures of construction of various capital improvements
projects throughout the City.

Debt Service Funds

Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-
term debt principal and interest.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
C. Fund Classification (Continued)

Internal Service Funds

The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the City's self-insured general liability and workers'
compensation, the cost of maintaining and replacing the City's rolling stock fleet, and information technology
services. City departments are the primary users of these services and are charged a fee on a cost reimbursement
basis.

Permanent Fund

Permanent funds account for and report resources that are restricted to the extent that only earnings, and not
principal, may be used for purposes that support the fund’s designated programs.

Agency Funds

Agency funds are used to account for the City’s Special Deposits and Community Facilities District in a trustee
capacity. The funds are custodial in nature, and do not involve measurement of results of operations.

Private-Purpose Trust Fund

The private purpose trust fund accounts for the assets and liabilities of the former redevelopment agency and is
allocated revenue to pay estimated installment payments of enforceable obligations until obligations of the
former redevelopment agency are paid in full and assets have been liquidated.

D. Investments

For financial reporting purposes, investments are adjusted to their fair value whenever the difference between
fair market value and the carrying amount is material.

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment income reported for that fiscal
year. Investment income includes interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon
the liquidation or sale of investments.

The City pools cash and investments of all funds. Each fund's share in this pool is displayed in the
accompanying financial statements as cash and investments. Investment income earned by the pooled
investments is allocated to the various funds based on each fund's average cash and investment balances.

The City categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on the
valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
E. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid
investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash or so near their maturity that they
present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates. Cash equivalents also
represent the proprietary funds' share in the cash and investment pool of the City. Cash equivalents have an
original maturity date of three months or less from the date of purchase. For purposes of the statement of cash
flows, the entire balance of cash and investments for the proprietary funds is considered cash and cash
equivalents.

F. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, rights of way, structures, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported
in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are recorded at cost where historical records are available and at an estimated original cost where
no historical records exist. Capital assets purchased or constructed in excess of $5,000 is capitalized if it has
an expected useful life of three years or more. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to
the value of the asset's lives are not capitalized.

Major capital outlay for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. For debt-
financed capital assets, interest incurred during the construction phase is reflected in the capitalization value of
the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period. Capital assets
acquired through lease obligations are valued at the present value of future lease payments at the date acquired.
Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated acquisition value at the date of contribution.

Capital assets used in operations are depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method
in the government-wide financial statements and in the fund financial statements of the proprietary funds.
Depreciation is charged as an expense against operations and accumulated depreciation is reported on the
respective balance sheet. The range of lives used for depreciation purposes for each capital asset class is as

follows:

Structures 10-40 years
Equipment 3-25 years
Infrastructure 20-75 years

G. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position and balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City reports deferred outflows
related to pensions, which are reported in Note 8, and OPEB, which are reported in Note 9.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
G. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Continued)

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net
position or fund balance that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The City reports deferred inflows related to pensions on the Statement of Net Position
and unavailable revenues reported on the governmental funds balance sheet. The deferred inflows related to
pensions are described in Note 8. In the governmental funds balance sheet, the unavailable revenue category
arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting. When amounts have been earned, but have not been
received within the availability period, these amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in
the period that the amounts become available.

H. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure
of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an
extension of formal budgetary control in the governmental funds.

I. Fund Equity
In the fund financial statements, government funds report the following fund balance classification:

Nonspendable includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or
(b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted includes amounts that are constrained on the use of resources by either (a) external creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws of regulations of other governments or (b) by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

Committed includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by
formal action of the government’s highest authority, City Council. The formal action that is required to be
taken to establish, modify, or rescind a fund balance commitment is a resolution.

Assigned includes amounts intended to be used by the City for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to
be classified as committed. Pursuant to Resolution 7346, assignments may be made by the City Council or its
designee, the Finance Director. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. Thus,
additional action does not normally have to be taken for the removal of an assignment.

Unassigned includes the residual amounts that have not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific

purposes. This includes the residual General Fund balance and residual fund deficits of other governmental
funds.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

I

Fund Equity (Continued)
Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted resources
(the total of committed, assigned and unassigned fund balance). In order to calculate the amounts to report as
restricted and unrestricted, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied. It is the City’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before
using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund
balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned and
then unassigned fund balance.

Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant
proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted — net position and
unrestricted — net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption
must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the City’s policy to
consider restricted — net position to have been depleted before unrestricted — net position is applied.

Stabilization Arrangement

As described in Chapter 3.06 of the Municipal Code, the City has established a stabilization arrangement
committing a minimum of 12 percent of the sum of the General Fund’s operating expenses and operating
transfers out. The balance at June 30, 2018, is $8,285,676 and is included in committed fund balance. These
funds may be used only when the City is faced with an unforeseen or uncontrollable event which includes but
is not limited to:

1. Local revenue shortfalls due to a major business closure or relocation.

2. Legislative or judicial mandates to provide new or expanded services or programs that, in total, cost
the City $200,000 or more.

3. Natural and civil disasters such as earthquakes, fires, floods, riots and health epidemics.

Inventory

Inventory is valued at cost, using the first-in, first-out method, which approximates market value. Supplies are
recorded as expenditures when they are used rather than when purchased.

Compensated Absences

A total of 10 to 25 days of vacation and 12 days of sick leave per year may be accumulated by each employee.
The City accrues a liability for compensated absences which meets the following criteria:

1. The City's obligation relating to employees' rights to receive compensation for future absences is
attributable to employees' services already rendered.

2. The obligation relates to rights that vest or accumulate.

3. Payment of the compensation is probable.

4. The amount can be reasonably estimated.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

L.

Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agent

The City has monies held by trustees or fiscal agents pledged to the payment or security of certain bonds,
Certificates of Participation and lease obligations. The California Government Code provides that these monies,
in the absence of specific statutory provisions governing the issuance of bonds, certificates or leases, may be
invested in accordance with the ordinance, resolutions or indentures specifying the types of investments its
trustees or fiscal agents may make. These ordinances, resolutions and indentures are generally more restrictive
than the City's general investment policy.

. Property Taxes

With the passage of Proposition 13 in 1978 (Article XIIIA, California State Constitution), property taxes are
limited to one percent of market value, plus additional taxes for repayment of existing or subsequent voter-
approved indebtedness. Under Article XIIIA, the market value of taxable property is subject to a maximum
annual increase of two percent. Market value may be appraised at significantly more than two percent
depending on other factors such as improvements, sale or change of ownership. The City receives a portion of
the one percent general tax levy which is shared by several other local governments including the county and
the school district. The City's share is based on a formula prescribed in Section 26912(b) of the Government
Code. The county apportions property taxes to the City on a scheduled basis which generally adheres to the
actual tax collection periods. The tax lien date is January 1 of each year and covers the ensuing fiscal year's tax
returns. The tax levy date is from July 1 to June 30 of each year. The first installment becomes due on
November 1 with penalties and interest accruing after December 10. The second installment is due no later
than April 10.

Bond Premiums and Discounts

Bond premiums and discounts for government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary financial statements are deferred
and amortized over the term of the bond using the bonds-outstanding method, which approximates the effective
interest method. Bond premiums and discounts are presented as an adjustment to the face amount of the bonds
payable.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the reporting date and revenue and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Pension Plans

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City's
California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) plan and additions to/deductions from the plan's
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable
in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Q. New Accounting Standards

Adopted in the Current Year

GASB Statement No. 75 — In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Statement No. 75 establishes new accounting and financial
reporting requirements for governments whose employees are provided with OPEB, as well as for certain
nonemployer governments that have a legal obligation to provide financial support for OPEB provided to the
employees of other entities. The City implemented this statement effective July 1, 2017. The City recognized
a restatement to beginning net position on the Statement of Activities. See Note 9 for more information.

Effective in Future Fiscal Years

GASB Statement No. 83 — In November 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement
Obligations. The objective of this Statement is to provide financial statement users with information about
asset retirement obligations that were not addressed in GASB Standards by establishing uniform accounting
and financial reporting requirements for these obligations. This Statement is effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2018. The City has not determined the effect on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 84 — In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The
objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for
accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. This Statement is
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The City has not determined the effect on
the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 87 — In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this
Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and
financial reporting for leases; enhancing the comparability of financial statements between governments; and
also enhancing the relevance, reliability (representational faithfulness), and consistency of information about
the leasing activities of governments. This Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2019. The City has not determined the effect on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 88 — In March 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to
Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. The primary objective of this Statement is to
improve the information that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to debt, including
direct borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when
disclosing information related to debt. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2018. The City has not determined its effect on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 89 — In June 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred
before the End of a Construction Period. This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost
incurred before the end of a construction period. This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the
end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial
statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. The requirements of this Statement are
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The City has not determined its effect on
the financial statements.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Q. New Accounting Standards (Continued)

Effective in Future Fiscal Years (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 90 — In August 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests-an
amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and 61. The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the
consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate
organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The City
has not determined its effect on the financial statements.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2018, are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

Statement of net position:

Cash and investments $ 143,202,313
Cash and investments with fiscal agent 4,471,745
Fiduciary funds:
Cash and investments 9,332,831
Cash and investments with fiscal agent 2,857,677
Total cash and investments $ 159,864,566

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2018, consists of the following:

Cash on hand $ 5,500
Investments 159,859,066
Total cash and investments $ 159,864,566
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City's Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California Government Code
and the City's investment policy. The table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code
(or the City's investment policy, if more restrictive) that address interest rate risk and concentration of credit risk.
This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions
of debt agreements of the City, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City's
investment policy.

Authorized Maximum Maximum
Investment Types Authorized by By Investment Maximum Percentage Investment
State Law Policy Maturity Allowed in One Issuer

U.S. Treasury Obligations Yes S years None None
U.S. Agency Securities Yes 5 years None None
Banker's Acceptances Yes 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper Yes 270 days 15% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit Yes 5 years 30% 30%
Repurchase Agreements Yes 7 days None None
Medium-Term Notes Yes 5 years 15% 15%
Mutual Funds Yes N/A 10% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds Yes N/A 10% 10%
LAIF Yes N/A None None
JPA Pools (other investment pools) Yes N/A None None

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investments of debt proceeds held by fiscal agent are governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather than
the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City's investment policy. The table below
identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by fiscal agent. The table also identifies
certain provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment
Investment Type Maturity Allowed in One Issuer

U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 15% 15%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A None None
Investment Contracts 30 years None None
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Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rates. One of the ways that the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination
of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the
portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and

liquidity needed for operations.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City's investments (including investments held by fiscal
agent) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the City's

investments by maturity:

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

12 Months 13 to 24 25 to 36 37 to 48 49 to 60

Investment Type Total Or Less Months Months Months Months
Federal Agency Securities $ 67,003,045 $ 15,260,615 $ 12,819,250 $ 16,727,590 $ 15,270,640 $ = 6,924,950
U.S. Treasury Notes 8,811,220 1,988,520 1,950,240 966,290 1,949,410 1,956,760
Corporate Bonds 20,647,672 6,974,470 6,947,530 2,736,138 3,027,684 961,850
Certificates of Deposit 19,682,104 3,702,887 4,831,376 3,641,497 3,844,791 3,661,553
Mutual Funds 746,997 746,997 - - - -
LAIF 35,566,157 35,566,157 - - - -
Held by Fiscal Agent: - -
Money Market Funds 7,401,871 7,401,871 - - - -
Total 159,859,066 ~$ 71,641,517 $ 26,548,396 $ 24,071,515 $§ 24,092,525 $ 13,505,113

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.
Presented below is the minimum rating required by the California Government Code, the City's investment policy,
or debt agreements, and the actual Moody’s rating as of year-end for each investment type.

Rate of Year End

Minimum Exempt From

Investment Type Total Legal Rating Disclosure AAA/Aa Not Rated
Federal Agency Securities $ 67,003,045 N/A $ - $ 67,003,045 $ -
U.S. Treasury Notes 8,811,220 N/A 8,811,220 -
Corporate Bonds 20,647,672 A - 20,647,672 -
Certificates of Deposit 19,682,104 N/A - - 19,682,104
Mutual Funds 746,997 A - 746,997 -
LAIF 35,566,157 N/A - - 35,566,157

Held by Fiscal Agent:

Money Market Funds 7,401,871 A - 7,401,871 -

Total $ 159,859,066 $ 8,811,220 § 95,799,585 $§ 55,248,261
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Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer
beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. Investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury
securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that represent 5 percent or more of total City investments
are as follows:

Investment Reported

Issuer Type Amount
Freddie Mac Federal agency securities $ 32,233,728
Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) Federal agency securities 12,179,106
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) Federal agency securities 9,873,780
Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) Federal agency securities 12,716,430
Fannie Mae Federal agency securities 11,837,360

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The California Government Code and the City's investment policy do not contain
legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the
following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure
deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a
depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The fair value of the pledged
securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent of the total amount deposited by the public agencies.
California law also allows financial institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes
having a value of 150 percent of the secured public deposits.

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty
(e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of'its Investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the City's investment
policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for
investments. For investments identified herein as held by fiscal agent, the fiscal agent selects the investment under
the terms of the applicable trust agreement, acquires the investment, and holds the investment on behalf of the City.

Investment in State Investment Pool

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by California
Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The City reports
its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LAIF, which is the same as the value of the pool share.
The balance is available for withdrawal on demand, and is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF,
which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. Included in LAIF’s investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage
obligations, mortgage backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain state funds, and floating rate
securities issued by federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, United States Treasury Notes and Bills,
and corporations. At June 30, 2018, these investments matured in an average of 193 days. LAIF is not registered
with the Securities Exchange Commission and is not rated. Deposits and withdrawals from LAIF are made on the
basis of $1 and not fair value. Accordingly, under the fair value hierarchy, the measurement of the City’s
participation in LAIF is based on uncategorized inputs not defined as Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3.
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Fair Value Measurement

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value
of the asset as follows:

e Level 1: Investments reflect prices quoted for identical assets in active markets;
e Level 2: Investments reflect prices that are based on a similar observable inputs;

e Level 3: Investments reflect prices based on unobservable inputs.

The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2018:

Level
Investment Type Totals 1 2
Federal Agency Securities $ 67,003,045 $ - $ 67,003,045
U.S. Treasury Notes 8,811,220 - 8,811,220
Corporate Bonds 20,647,672 - 20,647,672
Certificates of Deposit 19,682,104 - 19,682,104
Mutual Funds 746,997 746,997 -
Total leveled investments $ 746,997 $§ 116,144,041
Uncategorized investments
LAIF 35,566,157
Money Market Funds 7,401,871
Total Investments $ 159,859,066

NOTE 3 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS
A. Due To/From Other Funds

As of June 30, 2018, the City had the following due to/from other funds:

Due to other funds

Nonmajor Nonmajor
Governmental Enterprise
Funds Funds Funds Total
Due from other funds:
General Fund $ 473,029 $ 201,092 $ 674,121

The due to/from other fund balances reflect short-term borrowings to cover negative cash balances at
June 30, 2018.
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B. Advances To/From Other Funds
As of June 30, 2018, advances to/from other funds were as follows:

Advances from other funds

Public Nonmajor
Facilities Proprietary
Funds Fund Funds Total
Advances to other funds:

General Fund $ 8,542,387 $ - $ 8,542,387
Nonmajor governmental funds 335,885 - 335,885
Water fund 155,731 1,079,120 1,234,851
Disposal fund - 934,007 934,007
Total $ 9,034,003 $ 2,013,127 $ 11,047,130

The General Fund has advanced the Public Facilities Development Fund $8,542,387 to provide funding for
capital expenditures and debt service coverage on the COP’s issued for capital facilities. The balance will be
repaid through future development impact fee collections. Additional advances were made to the Public
Facilities Fund to assist in debt service payments on the COP’s. At June 30, 2018, these advances were from
the Open Space Fund for $116,032, the Park and Open Space Fund for $116,032, the Storm Drain Construction
Fund for $103,821, and the Water Fund for $155,731.

The Water Fund and Disposal Fund advanced the Cemetery and Aviation Funds a total of $2,013,127 to provide
funding for capital expenditures.

C. Transfers In/Out:

Transfers in and out for the year ended June 30, 2018, were as follows:

Transfers Out

Public Nonmajor Internal
General Facilities Governmental Service
Funds Fund Development Funds Water Disposal Sewer Fund Total
Transfers In:

General Fund $ - 8 - $ 1,811,842 § 241,653 $ 50,104 $§ 21,473 $ - $ 2,125,072
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 4,227,848 304,996 758,597 102,412 8,650,301 17,088 3,140,500 17,201,742
Water Fund - 172,016 - - - 172,016
Sewer Fund - - - 18,962 - - - 18,962
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds - 667,905 - 667,905
Internal Service Fund 1,845,000 - 1,845,000
Total $ 6,072,848 $§ 304,996 § 3,410,360 § 363,027 $ 8,700,405 § 38,561 $3,140,500 _$22,030,697

Interfund transfers were used for operations, road impacts, fixed asset transfers, deficit repayment, debt
payment, and general administration charges. Additionally, during the fiscal year, the Disposal fund made
transfers totaling $8,650,301, including a one-time transfer of $6,019,500 of debt proceeds, to various nonmajor
governmental funds in order to offset road repair costs incurred by pavement deterioration caused by the solid
waste operations.
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Less accumulated depreciation:

Beginning Ending
Balance, as restated Additions Deletions Balance
Government activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 30,538,612 $ 2,494,033 $ (174,523) $ 32,858,122
Water rights 408,125 - - 408,125
Rights of way 448,879,490 14,809,784 - 463,689,274
Construction in progress 8,454,766 94,943 (8,322,257) 227,452
Total capital assets not being depreciated 488,280,993 17,398,760 (8,496,780) 497,182,973
Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure 219,581,617 10,240,258 (806,594) 229,015,281
Buildings and improvements 34,499,854 724,813 (2,041,849) 33,182,818
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 18,083,020 1,504,946 (401,232) 19,186,734
Total capital assets being depreciated 272,164,491 12,470,017 (3,249,675) 281,384,833

Infrastructure (86,059,041) (4,700,921) 252,583 (90,507,379)

Buildings and improvements (14,757,988) (1,784,770) 1,429,292 (15,113,466)

Machinery, equipment and vehicles (14,948,209) (1,148,043) 401,232 (15,695,020)
Total accumulated depreciation (115,765,238) (7,633,734) 2,083,107 (121,315,865)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 156,399,253 4,836,283 (1,166,568) 160,068,968

Governmental activities:

Capital Assets, Net $ 644,680,246 § 22,235,043 $ (9,663,348) $657,251,941
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Business-type activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Water rights
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Machinery, equipment and vehicles

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Machinery, equipment and vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-type activities:
Capital Assets, Net

Beginning Ending

Balance, as restated Additions Deletions Balance
28,326,013 -3 - $ 28,326,013
9,881,460 - - 9,881,460
1,272,749 1,814,167 (1,234,765) 1,852,151
39,480,222 1,814,167 (1,234,765) 40,059,624
170,673,828 1,398,513 (209,687) 171,862,654
102,940,070 1,114,009 - 104,054,079
17,131,989 738,832 (38,000) 17,832,821
290,745,887 3,251,354 (247,687) 293,749,554
(74,277,457) (3,102,507) 122,650 (77,257,314)
(67,608,460) (2,114,398) - (69,722,858)
(14,516,171) (1,275,535) 38,000 (15,753,706)
(156,402,088) (6,492,440) 160,650 (162,733,878)
134,343,799 (3,241,086) (87,037) 131,015,676
173,824,021 $ (1,426,919) $ (1,321,802) $171,075,300

Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions in the Statement of Activities:

General government
Public safety
Highway and streets
Culture and recreation
Water

Disposal

Sewer

Nonmajor proprietary funds

Internal service

Total

Governmental ~ Business-Type
Activities Activities

$ 305,319 -

863,593 -

4,948,297 -

1,327,458 -

- 3,427,956

- 1,249,520

- 1,609,079

- 205,885

189,067 -

$ 7,633,734 $ 6,492,440
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Governmental Activities

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2018:

Amount
Balance Balance Due within
June 30, 2017 Additions Deletions June 30, 2018 One year
Compensated absences $ 7,979,140 $ 4,562,648 $ 4,217,654 $ 8,324,134 $ 4,162,067
Claims payable 14,591,560 474,222 4,349,316 10,716,466 5,358,233
2007 Series Taxable Pension
Funding Bonds 15,230,000 - 2,280,000 12,950,000 2,457,762
Less: (accreted interest) (633,589) - (135,659) (497,930) -
Certificate of Participation
2003 Lease Revenue Refunding 595,000 - 595,000 - -
Add: unamortized premium 48,006 - 48,006 - -
Capital leases payable 861,169 - 113,242 747,927 116,356
I-Bank Sports Park Lease 1,514,962 - 55,525 1,459,437 57,274
Total Governmental Activities
Long-term Liabilities $ 40,186,248 $ 5,036,870 $ 11,523,084 $ 33,700,034 $ 12,151,692

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities of the
internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position. At year end, $423,811
in compensated absences are included in governmental activities. For the governmental activities, compensated
absences are generally liquidated by the General Fund.

Capital Leases Payable

The City has entered into lease agreements for various equipment purchases. These leases qualify as capital leases
for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of future minimum lease payments
as of the date of inception. The assets acquired under capital leases are classified as machinery, equipment and
vehicles. The total cost was $3,104,363. The outstanding balance at June 30, 2018, is $747,927.

The following schedule summarizes the debt to maturity payments for capital leases:

Year Ending June 30,

2019 $ 136,924
2020 136,924
2021 136,924
2022 136,924
2023 136,924
2024 136,924
Total minimum lease payments 821,544
Less: Amount representing interest (73,617)
Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 747,927
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2007 Taxable Pension Funding Bonds

On August 1, 2007, the City issued $25,862,392 of 2007 Taxable Pension Funding Bonds to refund the City's
obligation to PERS, reimburse the City for its payment of a portion of its fiscal year ended 2008 unfunded liability
and pay the costs of issuance of the bonds. Interest is payable February 1 and August 1 of each year commencing

on February 1, 2008. Interest rate is 5.233 percent with annual principal payments plus accreted value commencing
February 1, 2008. The amount outstanding at June 30, 2018, is $12,950,000.

The annual debt service requirements are as follows:

2007 Taxable Pension

Funding Bonds
Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest

2019 $ 2,515,000 $ 646,859
2020 1,220,000 505,506
2021 1,345,000 441,470
2022 1,480,000 370,656
2023 1,620,000 292,739
2024-2028 1,080,000 1,037,277
2029-2033 1,630,000 906,547
2034-2037 2,060,000 318,716

12,950,000

Less unaccreted interest (497,930)
Totals $ 12,452,070 $ 4,519,770

2003 Lease Revenue Refunding Certificates of Participation

On May 28, 2003, the Redlands Financing Authority issued $16,620,000 of Lease Revenue Refunding Certificates
of Participation. The certificates were issued to retire $18,145,000 outstanding Certificates of Participation dated
in 1993. They represented the interests of the owners thereof in lease payments to be made by the City to the
Redlands Financing Authority for the use and occupancy of certain public capital facilities refinanced with the
proceeds of the prior certificates and the real property upon which they are situated. During the year, the City made
the final debt service payment on the Certificates.

I-Bank Sports Park Lease Payable

On December 1, 2006, the City entered into this agreement for the purpose of obtaining additional funds to complete
the Sports Park project. The City has agreed to pay the amount over thirty years commencing on the date of the
lease, which carries an annual interest rate of 3.15 percent with principal and interest payments due every six months
starting August 1, 2007, and the final payment to be made on August 1, 2036. The City pledged the Community
Center to obtain this loan with [-Bank. At June 30, 2018, the outstanding balance of the I-Bank Sports Park lease
payable balance was $1,459,437.
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The annual debt service requirements are as follows:

Year Ending June 30,

Business-Type Activities

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2037

Total

$ 57,274
59,079

60,940

62,859

64,839

356,150
415,891
382,405

$ 1,459,437

The following is a summary of changes in business-type long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2018:

Compensated absences
Landfill closure

Revenue Bonds:
2012A Wastewater Refunding
Add: unamortized premium
2013A Solid Waste Revenue
Add: unamortized premium

Total

Notes payable:

California Recycled
Water Project

Safe Drinking Water Project

I-Bank Solid Waste

I-Bank City Streets

Hinkley Water Treatment
Plant Upgrade

Total notes payable

Total Business-type Activities

Long-term Liabilities

Amount

Balance Balance Due within

June 30, 2017 Additions Deletions June 30, 2018 One year
$ 1,013,806 $ 1,396,995 $§ 1,291,370 $ 1,119,431 § 559,716
7,915,480 262,527 - 8,178,007 -
990,000 - 990,000 - -
10,055,000 - 1,235,000 8,820,000 1,290,000
1,083,322 - 182,991 900,331 -
21,057,608 1,659,522 3,699,361 19,017,769 1,849,716
2,617,379 - 299,604 2,317,775 307,095
3,251,621 - 309,430 2,942,191 157,436
2,819,801 120,321 2,699,480 123,943
3,030,300 - 117,895 2,912,405 121,715
9,210,210 - 642,021 8,568,189 219,383
20,929,311 - 1,489,271 19,440,040 929,572
$ 41,986,919 $ 1,659,522 § 5,188,632 $ 38,457,809 § 2,779,288
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2012A Wastewater Refunding Revenue Bonds

Wastewater Refunding Revenue Bonds 2012 Series A (issue amount of $4,655,000), consists of serial bonds with
varying interest rates from 2 percent to 4 percent. Interest is payable semiannually on March 1 and September 1.
Serial bonds mature semiannually September 1, 2013 through September 1, 2017. The revenues of the Wastewater
Fund are pledged as security toward the payment of this debt. The net proceeds were used to refinance the 1999A
Wastewater Refunding Revenue Bonds. During the year, the City made the final debt service payment on the
Bonds.

2013A Solid Waste Revenue Bonds

The $13,500,000 of Solid Waste Revenue Bonds, issue of 2013, Series A, consists of serial bonds with varying
interest rates from 3 percent to 5 percent. Interest is payable semiannually on March 1 and September 1. Serial
bonds mature semiannually September 1, 2014 through September 1, 2023. The revenues of the Disposal Fund are
pledged as security toward the payment of this debt. The proceeds were used to finance a portion of the cost of
acquisition and construction of street improvements within the City of Redlands. The amount outstanding at June
30, 2018, was $8,820,000 with an unamortized premium of $900,331.

The annual debt service requirements are as follows:

2013A Solid Waste Revenue

Refunding Bonds
Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest
2019 $ 1,290,000 $ 408,750
2020 1,360,000 342,500
2021 1,430,000 272,750
2022 1,500,000 199,500
2023 1,580,000 122,500
2024 1,660,000 41,500
Totals $ 8,820,000 $ 1,387,500

Pledged Revenues

The City has pledged future solid waste revenues, net of specified operating expenses to repay revenue bonds. Net
revenues are defined in the 2013A (Solid Waste) bond document as operating income, less specified operating
expenses, plus specified non-operating income. The 2013A bonds are payable through 2025. The anticipated
percentage of net revenues, current year net revenues, annual debt service requirements, and total remaining debt
service follows:

Annual Ratio of Remaining
Anticipated Net ~ Annual Net Debt Service Net Revenue to Debt Service
Bond Issuance Revenue % Revenues Requirements Annual Debt Service Requirements
2013A Solid Waste 110% $ 4,397,321 $ 1,700,700 259% $10,207,500
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Notes Payable

California Recycled Water Project

On September 2, 2003, the City entered into a loan agreement with the California Water Resources Control Board
in the amount of $7,918,234 to assist in financing the construction of advanced wastewater treatment facilities at
the existing wastewater treatment plant. The note carries an annual interest rate of 2.5 percent with principal and
interest payments due annually starting November 30, 2005. The amount outstanding at June 30, 2018, was
$2,317,775.

The annual debt service requirements are as follows:

California Recycled Water Project

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest

2019 $ 307,095 $ 57,944

2020 314,772 5,267

2021 322,641 42,398

2022 330,707 34,332

2023 338,975 26,064
2024-2025 703,585 26,493
Totals $ 2,317,775 $ 192,498

Safe Drinking Water Project

On January 30, 2004, the City entered into a loan agreement with the State of California, Department of Water
Resources in the amount of $1,664,876 to assist in financing construction of a project which will enable the City to
meet safe drinking water standards. As of June 30, 2006, the loan had been increased to $6,100,844. The note
carries an annual interest rate of 2.34 percent with principal and interest payments due every six months starting
January 1, 2006. At June 30, 2018, the City has $2,942,191 in outstanding principal.

The annual debt service requirements are as follows:

Safe Drinking Water Project

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest

2019 $ 157,436 $ 34,424

2020 320,419 63,300

2021 327,960 55,758

2022 335,680 48,039

2023 343,580 40,138
2024-2025 1,457,116 77,758
Totals $ 2,942,191 $ 319,417
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Hinckley Water Treatment Plant Upgrade

On June 21, 2011, the City entered into an agreement with the Clean Water State Revolving Fund Control Board
for construction of the Hinckley water treatment plant upgrade. The City may borrow up to $13,663,033 or the
eligible costs of the project, whichever is less. The loan has an interest rate of 2.5017 percent with maturities
through 2034. Principal and interest is due every six months starting January 1, 2011. The outstanding balance at
June 30, 2018, is $8,568,189.

The annual debt service requirements are as follows:

Hinckley Water Treatment Plant

Upgrade
Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest
2019 $ 219,383 $ 107,175
2020 447,033 206,084
2021 458,286 194,830
2022 469,823 183,294
2023 481,650 171,467
2024-2028 2,596,341 669,240
2029-2033 2,940,008 325,573
2034-2035 955,665 24,007
Totals $ 8,568,189 $ 1,881,670

I-Bank Solid Waste

On March 2, 2015, the City entered into an agreement for the purpose of obtaining additional funds to complete the
Solid Waste project. The City has agreed to pay the amount over twenty years commencing on the date of the loan,
which carries an annual interest rate of 3.01 percent with principal and interest payments due every six months
starting August 1, 2015. At June 30, 2018, the outstanding balance of the loan was $2,699,480.

The annual debt service requirements are as follows:

I-Bank Solid Waste

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest

2019 $ 123,943 $ 79,389

2020 127,674 75,602

2021 131,517 71,701

2022 135,475 67,683

2023 139,553 63,544
2024-2028 763,361 251,128
2029-2033 885,374 127,288
2034-2035 392,583 11,904
Totals $ 2,699,480 $ 748,239
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I-Bank City Streets

On July 1, 2016, the City entered into an agreement for the purpose of obtaining funds for the City Streets project.
The City has agreed to pay the amount over twenty years commencing on the date of the loan, which carries an
annual interest rate of 3.24 percent with principal and interest payments due every six months starting August 1,
2018. At June 30, 2018, the outstanding balance of the loan was $2,912,405.

The annual debt service requirements are as follows:

I-Bank City Streets

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest

2019 $ 121,715 $ 92,390

2020 125,659 88,383

2021 129,730 84,245

2022 133,933 79,974

2023 138,273 75,564
2024-2028 761,539 306,509
2029-2033 893,166 172,750
2034-2036 608,390 29,987
Totals $ 2,912,405 $ 929,802

NOTE 6 — CLAIMS PAYABLE

On June 30, 2018, and throughout 2017-2018, the City was self-insured for the first $1,000,000 per occurrence for
commercial general liability and automobile liability. The City purchased excess liability insurance to provide
additional coverage of $10,000,000 per occurrence with a $10,000,000 aggregate. The City also purchased airport
liability insurance including commercial general liability, personal & advertising injury, products completed, and
hanger keepers limit in a single limit liability amount of $10,000,000 per occurrence. For workers’ compensation
and employer's liability, the City was self-insured for $1,000,000 per occurrence with excess coverage of
$25,000,000 for worker's compensation per occurrence with a $25,000,000 aggregate, and $1,000,000 for
employer's liability per occurrence.

At June 30, 2018, $1,872,000 and $8,844,466 have been accrued for general liability and workers’ compensation
claims, respectively. All funds of the City participate in the worker's compensation program and make payments
to the Workers’ Compensation Internal Service Fund based on estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and
current year claims. The Liability Insurance Internal Service Fund receives an annual operating transfer from the
General Fund to cover operating costs including payment of claims. The liability for unpaid claims for general
liability and workers’ compensation is discounted to reflect anticipated future investment earnings, assuming a five
percent interest rate. Settled claims have not exceeded the commercial coverage in the past three years.

The accruals indicated above represent estimates of amounts to be paid for reported claims and incurred but not
reported claims based upon past experience, modified for current trends and information. While the ultimate
amounts of losses incurred through June 30, 2018, are dependent on future developments, based upon information
provided from the City Attorney, outside counsel and others involved with the administration of the programs, the
City's management believes that the aggregate accrual is adequate to cover such losses.
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Reconciliation of the changes in the City’s aggregate liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2018, is as follows:

Claims and
Beginning Changes in Claim
2017-2018 of Year Estimate Payments End of Year
Liability claims $ 6,478,383 $§ (1,124,465) $ (3,481,918) $ 1,872,000
Workers' compensation 8,113,177 1,598,687 (867,398) 8,844,466
Total $ 14,591,560 $ 474,222  $ (4,349,316) $ 10,716,466
Claims and
Beginning of Changes in Claim
2016-2017 Year Estimate Payments End of Year
Liability claims $ 4,821,559 $ 2,226,531 § (569,707) $§ 6,478,383
Workers' compensation 7,042,320 2,393,716 (1,322,859) 8,113,177
Total $ 11,863,879 § 4,620,247 § (1,892,566) $ 14,591,560
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A. Fund Balance Classifications

At June 30, 2018, the City reports the following fund balance classifications:

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Prepaid costs
Corpus of endowment
Advances to other funds
Restricted
Quality of life
PEG fees
Public safety
Police programs and equipment
Street reconstruction/improvement projects
Debt service
Storm drain improvements
Endowment
CFD assessment
Committed
Stabilization agreement

Park and open space acquisition/improvement

Downtown Redlands Business Association
Street reconstruction/improvement projects
Assigned
Public works
Capital projects
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

Other Total
Public Facilities Governmental  Governmental

General Development Funds Funds
$ 192,259 $ - 5 3,600 $ 195,859
- - 120,061 120,061
8,542,387 - - 8,542,387
647,243 - - 647,243
410,675 - - 410,675
- - 631,945 631,945
- - 1,380,608 1,380,608
- - 11,058,814 11,058,814
- - 2,575,353 2,575,353
- - 1,931,689 1,931,689
- - 1,503,321 1,503,321
- - 239,642 239,642
8,285,676 - - 8,285,676
- - 1,433,731 1,433,731
- - 113,209 113,209
- - 6,894,979 6,894,979
869,828 - - 869,828
3,193,808 - 1,204,854 4,398,662
13,592,754 (8,467,942) (293,779) 4,831,033
$ 35,734,630 $ (8,467,942) § 28,798,027 56,064,715

A net deficit of $8,467,942 exists in the Public Facilities Development fund due to unpaid advances owed to
the General Fund for debt service payments made on the Public Facilities Development fund’s behalf. Future
revenues will be used to repay this advance and reduce the fund deficit.
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B. Fund Balance/Net Position Deficits
Refer to Note 1 I for further discussion on fund balance classifications.

At June 30, 2018, the following non-major funds have fund deficits:

Deficit Amount

Special Revenue Funds:

General capital Improvement $ (173,015)

Community Development Block Grant (58,198)

Disaster Recovery (59,110)

Transportation Development Act (3,456)
Enterprise Fund:

Cemetery (1,463,486)
Internal Service Funds:

Liability Self-Insurance (418,090)

Information Technology (2,839,594)

Workers' Compensation Self-Insurance (7,858,938)

Equipment Maintenance (1,216,869)

Utility Billing (2,105,409)

Payroll Clearing (408,572)

Special Revenue Funds

A net deficit of $173,015 exists in the General Capital Improvement Fund. This fund deficit is a result of
expenditures that have not been submitted for grant reimbursement. This net deficit will be eliminated when
the grant funds are received in future years.

A net deficit of $58,198 exists in the Community Development Block Grant Fund. This fund deficit is a result
of expenditures that have not been submitted for grant reimbursement and reimbursements that have not been
received. This net deficit will be eliminated when the grant funds are received in future years.

A net deficit of $59,110 exists in the Disaster Recovery Fund. This fund deficit is a result of grant expenditures
in excess of reimbursement. This net deficit will be eliminated when a transfer is made from the General Fund
during the upcoming fiscal year.

A net deficit of $3,456 exists in the Transportation Development Fund. This fund deficit is a result of
expenditures that have not been submitted for grant reimbursement. This net deficit will be eliminated when
the grant funds are received in future years.

Enterprise Fund
A net deficit of $1,463,486 exists in the Cemetery Fund. This fund deficit is a result of expenditures exceeding

revenues in prior years. The City has implemented the Cemetery Business Plan and has successfully been
increasing revenues. Management expects to continue to carefully monitor this fund and intends to alleviate
this net deficit through increased future user charges and instituting cost containment measures.
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Internal Service Funds

A net deficit of $418,090 exists in the Liability Self-Insurance Fund due to new and existing claims.
Management expects to continue to carefully monitor this fund and intends to alleviate this net deficit through
increased transfers from other funds for cost recovery and instituting cost containment measures.

A net deficit of $2,839,594 exists in the Information Technology Fund. This fund deficit is a result of the City’s
implementation of GASB Statements No. 68 and 75, which required reporting of the fund’s proportionate share
of the City’s net pension liability and other post-employment benefits, respectively. This net pension liability
and other post-employment benefits created the corresponding net deficit, these will be reduced by continued
pension contributions in future years.

A net deficit of $7,858,938 exists in the Workers’ Compensation Self-Insurance Fund due to new and existing
claims. Management expects to continue to carefully monitor this fund and intends to alleviate this net deficit
through increased cost recovery charges, instituting cost containment measures.

A net deficit of $1,216,869 exists in the Equipment Maintenance Fund. This fund deficit is a result of the City’s
implementation of GASB Statement No. 68 and 75 which required reporting of the fund’s proportionate share
of the City’s net pension liability and other post-employment benefits, respectively. This net pension liability
and other post-employment benefits created the corresponding net deficit, these will be reduced by continued
pension contributions in future years.

A net deficit of $2,105,409 exists in the Utility Billing Fund. This fund deficit is a result of the City’s
implementation of GASB Statement No. 68 and 75 which required reporting of the fund’s proportionate share
of the City’s net pension liability and other post-employment benefits, respectively. This net pension liability
and other post-employment benefits created the corresponding net deficit, these will be reduced by continued
pension contributions in future years.

A net deficit of $408,572 exists in the Payroll Clearing Fund. This fund deficit is a result of the City’s

reconciliation of prior years’ employment benefits. This reconciliation created the corresponding net deficit,
this deficit will be reduced by cost recovery reimbursement in future years.
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The City of Redlands participates in the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS), a pension
plan available to all qualified employees. The Safety Plan is a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit
pension plan. The Miscellaneous Plan is an agent multiple employer defined benefit pension plan. A summary of
pension amounts for the City’s plans at June 30, 2018, is presented below:

Safety Miscellaneous
Plan Plan Total
Deferred outflows - pensions $ 19,782,176 $ 11,416,861 $ 31,199,037
Net pension liability 73,979,298 44,293,866 118,273,164
Deferred inflows - pensions 1,879,890 382,780 2,262,670
Pension expense 2,959,523 3,234,681 6,194,204

Plan Descriptions

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the City’s Safety (Police and Fire)
Employee Pension Plan (Safety Plan), a cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan, or the City’s
Miscellaneous Plan, an agent-multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, both administered by CalPERS. The
CalPERS Safety Plan consists of safety pools (referred to as “risk pools”), which are comprised of individual
employer safety rate plans. The risk pools are included within the Public Employees’ Retirement Fund C (PERF
C). For the Miscellaneous Plan, CalPERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for its
participating member employers, and are included within Public Employees’ Retirement Fund A (PERF A). Benefit
provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and may be amended by City resolution. CalPERS issues
publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions,
assumptions and membership information. These reports can be found on the CalPERS website.
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Benefits Provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits
to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service,
equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50
with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service.
The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional
Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public

Employees’ Retirement Law.

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2018, are summarized as follows:

Hire Date

Benefit formula
Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments
Retirement age
Monthly benefits, as a % of
eligible compensation
Required employee contribution rates
Required employer contribution rates

Miscellaneous
Tier 1 PEPRA
Prior to January 1, 2013
January 1, 2013 and after
2.0% @ 55 2.0% @ 62

5 years of service
monthly for life
minimum 50 yrs
1.426% - 2.418%
50 yrs - 63+ yrs,

5 years of service
monthly for life
minimum 52 yrs
1.000% - 2.500%
52 yrs - 67+ yrs,

Hire Date

Benefit formula
Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments
Retirement age
Monthly benefits, as a % of
eligible compensation
Required employee contribution rates
Required employer contribution rates

7.000% 6.500%
18.302% 18.302%
Safety Cost-Sharing Rate Plans
Safety Fire Safety Police PEPRA Police
Prior to Prior to January 1, 2013
January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013 and after
3.0% @ 50 3.0% @ 50 2.7% @ 57

5 years of service
monthly for life

minimum 50 yrs
3.000%, 50+ yrs

9.000%
21.230%
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5 years of service
monthly for life

minimum 50 yrs
3.000%, 50+ yrs

9.000%
21.230%

5 years of service
monthly for life
minimum 50 yrs
2.000% - 2.700%
50 yrs - 57+ yrs,
12.250%
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Employees Covered

As of the valuation date of June 30, 2016, the most recent valuation date, the following employees were covered by
the benefit terms of the Miscellaneous Plan:

Miscellaneous
Active members 312
Transferred members 122
Terminated members 129
Retired members and beneficiaries 465
Total 1,028

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers to be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective
on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan contributions are determined through the
CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is based on the estimated amount
necessary to pay the Plan’s allocated share of the risk pool’s costs of benefits earned by employees during the year,
and any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially
determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. Contributions to the pension plans totaled $6,211,050 for
the Safety Plan and $3,797,896 for the Miscellaneous Pan during the fiscal year.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability — Safety Plan

As of June 30, 2018, the City reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of the collective net pension
liability of the Safety Plan of $73,979,298.

The City’s net pension liability for the Plan was measured as the proportionate share of the collective net pension
liability of the cost-sharing plan. The net pension liability of the Plan was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the
total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of June 30, 2016, rolled forward to June 30, 2017. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based
on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers. The City’s proportionate share of the collective net pension liability
of the Plan as of June 30, 2016, and 2017, were as follows:

Safety
Proportion - June 30, 2016 0.74868%
Proportion - June 30, 2017 0.74597%
Change - Increase (Decrease) -0.00271%
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Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2016, actuarial valuations were determined using the following
assumptions for both Plans:

Valuation Date June 30, 2016
Measurement Date June 30, 2017
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.15%
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service
Investment Rate of Return 7.5% "
Mortality Derived using CalPERS' membership data for all funds

@ Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation.

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016, valuation were
based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period of 1997 to 2011. Further details of
the Experience Study can be found on the CalPERS website.

Change of Assumptions

The discount rate of 7.15 percent used for the June 30, 2017, measurement date was decreased from 7.65 percent
used for the June 30, 2016, measurement date.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent for each plan. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate and that the City’s contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially
determined contributions rates and the employee rate. Based on those assumptions, each pension plan’s fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods
of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

In determining the long-term expected 7.15 percent rate of return on pension plan investments, CalPERS took into
account both short and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Such
cash flows were developed assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on
time and as scheduled in all future years. Using historical returns of all the pension funds’ asset classes, expected
compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years)
using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present
value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single
equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated
using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single
equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.
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The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated
using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.

New Strategic Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1 -10 (1) Years 11+ (2)
Global Equity 17.0% 4.90% 5.38%
Global Fixed Income 19.0% 0.80% 2.27%
Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 0.60% 1.39%
Private Equity 12.0% 6.60% 6.63%
Real Estate 11.0% 2.80% 5.21%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0% 3.90% 5.36%
Liquidity 2.0% -0.40% -0.90%

Total 70.0%

(1) An expected inflation of 2.5 percent used for this period
(2) An expected inflation of 3.0 percent used for this period

Changes in the Net Pension Liability — Miscellaneous Plan

The City’s net pension liability for the Miscellaneous Plan was measured as the total pension liability, less the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of the Miscellaneous Plan was measured as of June
30, 2017, using an annual actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016, rolled forward to June 30, 2017. A summary of
principal assumptions and methods used to determine the net pension liability is shown under the section Actuarial
Assumptions within this note.

The Net Pension Liability for the City’s Miscellaneous as of June 30, 2018, was $44,293,866. The changes in the
Net Pension Liability for the Plan are as follows:

Increase (Decrease) Net Position
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Liability/(Assets)
Liability (a) Net Position (b) (c)=(a)-(b)
Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 145,739,954 $ 107,600,365 $ 38,139,589
Changes Recognized for the Measurement Period
Service Cost 3,278,844 - 3,278,844
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 10,868,639 - 10,868,639
Difference between Expected and
Actual Experience 285,453 - 285,453
Changes of Assumptions 8,600,283 - 8,600,283
Contributions from the Employer - 3,706,235 (3,706,235)
Contributions from the Employee - 1,461,526 (1,461,526)
Net Investment Income - 11,870,046 (11,870,046)
Benefit Payments (8,512,367) (8,512,367) -
Administrative Expense - (158,865) 158,865
Net changes 14,520,852 8,366,575 6,154,277
Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 160,260,806 $ 115,966,940 $ 44,293,866
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Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Safety Plan:

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $2,959,523 for the Safety Plan. At

June 30, 2018, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
from the following sources for the Safety Plan:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date $ 6,211,050 $ -
Change of assumptions 10,012,523 -
Difference between Expected and

Actual Experience 552,806 -
Net Difference between Projected and Actual

Earnings on Pension Plan Investments 2,364,536 -
Changes in proportion and difference between
City's contributions and proportionate share of
contributions 641,261 1,879,890

Total $ 19,782,176 $ 1,879,890

$6,211,050 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date
will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows or deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension
expense as follows:

Deferred
Measurement Period Outflows/(Inflows)
Ended June 30, of Resources
2019 $ 2,446,199
2020 6,620,648
2021 4,007,962
2022 (1,383,573)
Total $ 11,691,236
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Miscellaneous Plan:

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $3,234,681 for the Miscellaneous Plan.
At June 30, 2018, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources for the Miscellaneous Plan

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date $ 3,797,896 $ -
Change of assumptions 5,825,998 -
Difference between Expected and
Actual Experience 193,371 382,780
Net Difference between Projected and Actual
Earnings on Pension Plan Investments 1,599,596 -
Total S 11,416,861 $ 382,780

$3,797,896 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date
will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows or deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension
expense as follows:

Deferred
Measurement Period Outflows/(Inflows)
Ended June 30, of Resources
2019 $ 2,424,613
2020 4,717,145
2021 959,084
2022 (864,659)
Total $ 7,236,183

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of each of the Plans calculated using the discount rate of 7.15
percent, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
1 percentage-point lower (6.15 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (8.15 percent) than the current rate:

Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%

6.15% Rate 7.15% 8.15%
Miscellaneous Plan $ 65,087,890 $ 44,293,866 $ 27,068,217
Safety Plan's proportionate share of
collective net pension liability 109,805,182 73,979,298 44,693,425
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about each pension plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS
financial reports.

NOTE 9 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

In addition to the pension benefits, the City’s defined benefit OPEB plan (Plan) provides medical insurance benefits
to eligible retirees and their spouses in accordance with applicable Memoranda of Understanding and the California
Government Code to all employees who retire from the City. A summary of the OPEB amounts for the City’s plans
is shown below:

Total
Total OPEB liability $126,658,049
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 4,380,553
OPEB expense 4,488,917

Plan Description

The City’s administers a defined benefit OPEB plan (Plan), which provides medical insurance benefits to eligible
retirees and their spouses in accordance with applicable Memoranda of Understanding and the California
Government Code to all employees who retire from the City. The Plan is an agent multiple-employer defined benefit
OPEB plan administered by the City and is governed by the City Council. No assets are accumulated in a trust that
meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement 75.

City’s Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established, and may be amended, by City Council.
The contribution required to be made under City Council and labor agreement requirements is based on a pay-as-
you go basis (i.e., as medical insurance premiums become due). The City allows retirees to participate in the same
medical plan as active employees at the same premium rates. Because the rate is a “blended rate”, payments for the
active employees include an implied subsidy of what would normally be a higher rate for retirees if the retirees were
in a stand-alone health plan.

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the implied subsidy was determined as part of the June 30, 2017, actuarial
valuation. The estimated implied subsidy at June 30, 2018, was $712,837.

GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-Employment Benefits Other
Than Pensions, requires governments to account for other post-employment benefits (OPEB) on an accrual basis,
rather than a pay-as-you-go basis. The effect is the recognition of an actuarially determined expense when a future
retiree earns their post-employment benefits, rather than when they use their post-employment benefits.
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Benefits Provided

After age 65, the City contributes a flat monthly rate of $397 for those employees who retire under the PERS
retirement system, subscribe to the PERS Health Insurance System, and have at least five years of CalPERS service,
in accordance with Government Code. This is a perpetual benefit which is available to all PERS retirees including
eligible dependents of deceased retirees. Annual increases in the monthly rate are limited to $20 and based upon
the annual increase in PERS family premiums. In addition, the City also contributes the entire monthly premium
for health insurance for all employees who retire with the City and have a minimum of 15 or 20 years of cumulative
service with the City, depending on the particular bargaining units. A summary of benefits provided is shown below:

Employee Group Service Medical

Police (RPOA Members)
Employees hired on or after November 4, 2014 with at

397 th i
least 5 years of CalPERS service. 3 pet monti maximum

100% of premium &
Medicare Part B for lifetime
of retiree and spouse

Employees hired prior to November 4, 2014 with at
least 15 years of City service

Firefighters (RPFA and RAFME Members)
Employees hired on or after October 15, 2012 with at

h .
least 5 years of CalPERS service. $397 per month maximum

100% of premium &
Medicare Part B for lifetime
of retiree and spouse

Employees hired prior to October 16, 2012 with at least
15 years (20 years for RPFA members) of City service

Miscellaneous (GEAR, RCSEA, RAMME, and RAME Members)
Employees hired on or after March 11, 2010 with at

397 th i
least 5 years of CalPERS service. 3 pet monti maximum

100% of premium &
Medicare Part B for lifetime
of retiree and spouse

Employees hired prior to March 11, 2010, with at least
20 years (15 years for RAME members) of City service

Miscellaneous (RASME Members)
Employees hired on or after June 2, 2015 with at least

h .
5 years of CalPERS service. $397 per month maximum

100% of premium &
Medicare Part B for lifetime
of retiree and spouse

Employees hired prior to June 2, 2015, with at least 15
years of City service

Miscellaneous (RADD Members)
Employees hired on or after January 1, 2009 with at

397 th i
least 5 years of CalPERS service. $ per month maximum

100% of premium &
Medicare Part B for lifetime
of retiree and spouse

Employees hired prior to January 1, 2009, with at least
15 years of City service
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Dental

None

100% of premium for
lifetime of retiree and
spouse

None
100% of premium for
lifetime of retiree and
spouse
None
100% of premium for
lifetime of retiree and
spouse
None
100% of premium for
lifetime of retiree and
spouse
None
100% of premium for

lifetime of retiree and
spouse

Vision

None

100% of premium for
lifetime of retiree and
spouse

None
100% of premium for
lifetime of retiree and
spouse
None
100% of premium for
lifetime of retiree and
spouse
None
100% of premium for
lifetime of retiree and
spouse
None
100% of premium for

lifetime of retiree and
spouse



CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 9 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)

Some retirees are eligible for a medical bridge program, in which the City contributes the amount of the lowest cost

single premium rate ($404.32 in 2017). This amount is reduced back to $397 after the retiree reaches age 65.
Eligibility for the medical bridge program is as follows:

RADD 3 years of service

RAME 10 years of service
RPOA, RAFME, RASME 15 years of service
RAMME, RCSEA, Teamsters 20 years of service

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At June 30, 2017, the most recent valuation date, the following current and former employees were covered by the
benefit terms under the Plan:

Active employees 442
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 535
Total 977

Total OPEB Liability

The City’s total OPEB liability of $126,658,049 was measured and actuarially valued as of June 30, 2017. A
summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the net pension liability is shown below.

Actuarial Assumptions — The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2017, actuarial valuation was determined using
the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified:

Inflation 2.75%
Salary increases 2.875%
Discount Rate 3.50%

7.00% in the first year, trending

Healthcare Cost Trend Rate down to 3.84% over 58 years.

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability is 3.50%, which is based on the rate of tax-exempt, high-
quality 20-year municipal bonds, as of the valuation date.

Mortality rates were based on the 2017 CalPERS actuarial experience study, which assumed future mortality

improvements using Society of Actuaries (SOA) Scale BB. The Experience Study report can be obtained on the
CalPERS website under Forms and Publications.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 9 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB
Liability
Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 121,839,192
Changes in the year:
Service Cost 4,517,859
Interest on the total OPEB liability 4,351,611
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (3,361,882)
Implicit Rate Subsidy Fulfilled (688,731)
Net changes 4,818,857
Balance at June 30, 2018 $ 126,658,049

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rates — The
following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability would be if
it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.5 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher
(4.5 percent) than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.5%) (3.5%) (4.5%)
Total OPEB Liability $ 148,859,322 $ 126,658,049 $ 109,018,177

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates — The following presents the
total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using
healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (6.00 percent decreasing to 2.84 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (8.00 percent decreasing to 4.84 percent) than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.00% Decreasing to  (7.00% Decreasing to  (8.00% Decreasing to
2.84%) 3.84%) 4.84%)
Total OPEB Liability $ 109,171,568 $ 126,658,049 $ 149,361,239

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OEPB

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the City recognized OPEB expense of $4,488,917. At June 30, 2018, the City
reported deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB from contributions subsequent to the measurement date
of $4,380,553.

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows of
of Resources Resources
OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 3,667,716 $ -
Implicit Rate Subsidy 712,837 -
Total $ 4,380,553 $ -
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10 - CONTINGENCIES

The City is presently involved in other matters of litigation that have arisen in the normal course of the City's
business. City management believes, based upon consultation with the City Attorney, that these cases, in the
aggregate, are not expected to have a material adverse financial impact on the City.

In 1998, the voters of California approved Proposition No. 11 which amended Article XIII, Section 29 of the
California Constitution to allow cities and counties to enter into contracts to apportion sales and use tax revenue,
by ordinance or resolution, and upon approval by a two-thirds vote of the legislative bodies of the parties to the
contract. The City has provided in its contract with the County of San Bernardino that the benefit of receiving the
sales and use tax revenue generated by businesses located in the unincorporated area of the Donut Hole, in exchange
for the City's provision of municipal services, will terminate on December 31, 2003, unless an extension of
the term of the contract beyond December 31, 2003, is consented to by a majority vote of the qualified voters of
the City. The term has been extended beyond December 31, 2003, under the Ordinance No. 2550. The County of
San Bernardino and the City apportion the sales and use tax revenue generated by businesses located in the Donut
Hole generally on the basis of ninety percent (90 percent) of such sales and use tax revenue being provided to the
City and ten percent (10 percent) of such sales and use tax revenue being provided to the County.

NOTE 11 - CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

The following material construction commitments existed at June 30, 2018:

Expenditures to

Contract date as of Remaining
Project Name Amount June 30, 2018 Commitments
PARIS Resurfacing Project (1491-1740) $ 6,855,836 $ - $ 6,855,836
2017 Water CIP 3,876,633 523,906 3,352,727
Redlands Skate Park 1,029,151 109,994 919,157
Local Water Mains 720,000 - 720,000
Redlands Rail Utility Crossings 657,365 - 657,365
Highline/Crafton Pipe Replacement Project 1,472,106 933,104 539,002
Orange Street Signal 292,092 - 292,092

As discussed in Note 1 H, Encumbrances, encumbrance accounting is utilized to the extent necessary to assure
effective budgetary control and accountability and to facility effective cash planning and control. At year end, the
amount of encumbrances expected to be honored upon performance by the vendor in the next year were as follows:

General Fund $ 2,732,083
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 8,663,924
Nonmajor Capital Project Fund 2,578

Total $ 11,398,585
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 12 - SOLID WASTE LANDFILL

State and federal laws and regulations require the City to provide financial assurance for closure and post closure
costs of the California Street Landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and
monitoring functions at the site for fifteen years after closure. Although closure and post closure activities will be
paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the City reports a portion of these closure and
post closure costs as an operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet
date. The $8,187,007 reported as landfill closure and post closure liability at June 30, 2018, represents the
cumulative amount reported to date based on the use of 64.57 percent of the total estimated capacity of the landfill
including final covering. The City will recognize the remaining estimated costs of closure and post closure care of
$4,478,683 as the remaining estimated capacity is filled. These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform
closure and post closure activities in 2018 dollars. The City expects to close the landfill in the year 2042. Actual
costs may differ due to inflation, changes in technology or changes in regulations.

The City is required by state and federal laws and regulations to maintain adequate funds to provide financial
assurance for closure and post closure costs through one of a combination of alternative mechanisms. For closure
costs, the City has established an enterprise fund mechanism with a separate fund, the California Street Landfill
Closure fund. For post closure costs, the City has entered into a Pledge of Revenue Agreement with the California
Integrated Waste Management Board.  The City is in compliance with these requirements. At
June 30, 2018, $6,461,656 is held for landfill closure. The City expects that future inflation costs will be paid from
future annual operating revenues in the enterprise fund. Post closure costs are agreed to be covered by revenue
from solid waste customer billings which is deposited directly into the Disposal enterprise fund.

NOTE 13 -DEBT WITHOUT GOVERNMENT COMMITMENT

The special assessment bonds are secured by valid assessment liens upon certain lands within the special assessment
district and are not direct liabilities of the City and, accordingly, are not included in the accompanying basic
financial statements. The City has no obligation beyond the balances in the designated agency funds for any
delinquent assessment district bond payments. If delinquencies occur beyond the amounts held in the reserve funds
created from bond proceeds, the City has no duty to pay the delinquency out of any available funds of the City.
Neither the faith, credit, nor taxing power of the City is pledged to the payment of the bonds. The City acts solely
as an agent for those paying assessments and for the bondholders.

In September 2001, the City issued for and on behalf of the Community Facilities District No. 2001-1 (Northwest
Development Project) $9,255,000 aggregate principal amount of 2001 Special Tax Bonds to finance the acquisition
of certain public improvements with appurtenant work and incidental expenses within the District. The Bonds were
issued pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 and are payable from proceeds of annual
special tax to be levied on the property within the District. Bonds maturing in the years 2002 to 2015 are serial
bonds payable in annual installments of $170,000 to $355,000 while bonds maturing in the year 2022 in the amount
of $3,175,000 and bonds maturing in the year 2026 in the amount of $2,535,000 are term bonds. The interest rates
on the bonds range from 3.75 percent to 6.45 percent. The outstanding balance at June 30, 2018, was $4,940,000.
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NOTE 13 - DEBT WITHOUT GOVERNMENT COMMITMENT (CONTINUED)

In February 2004, the City issued for and on behalf of the Community Facilities District No. 2003-1 (Redlands
Business Center) $9,545,000 aggregate principal amount of 2004 Special Tax Bonds to finance the acquisition and
construction of certain street improvements, sewers, storm drains, water distribution facilities, and other public
improvements within the District. The Bonds were issued pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act
of 1982 and are payable from proceeds of annual special tax to be levied on the property within the District. Bonds
maturing in the years 2006 to 2021 are serial bonds payable in annual installments of $20,000 to $270,000, while
bonds maturing in the year 2027 in the amount of $2,255,000 and bonds maturing in the year 2033 in the amount
of $5,280,000 are term bonds. The interest rates on the bonds range from 2.5 percent to 5.9 percent. The outstanding
balance at June 30, 2018, was $8,285,000.

NOTE 14 - SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF THE FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

On December 29, 2011, the California Supreme Court upheld Assembly Bill 1X 26 (“the Bill”) that provides for
the dissolution of all redevelopment agencies in the State of California. This action impacted the reporting entity
of the City of Redlands that previously had reported a redevelopment agency within the reporting entity of the City
as a blended component unit.

The Bill provides that upon dissolution of a redevelopment agency, either the city or another unit of local
government will agree to serve as the “successor agency” to hold the assets until they are distributed to other units
of state and local government. On November 1, 2011, the City Council elected to become the Successor Agency
for the former redevelopment agency in accordance with the Bill.

After enactment of the law, which occurred on June 28, 2011, redevelopment agencies in the State of California
cannot enter into new projects, obligations or commitments. Subject to the control of a newly established oversight
board, remaining assets can only be used to pay enforceable obligations in existence at the date of dissolution
(including the completion of any unfinished projects that were subject to legally enforceable contractual
commitments).

In future fiscal years, successor agencies will only be allocated revenue in the amount that is necessary to pay the
estimated annual installment payments on enforceable obligations of the former redevelopment agency until all
enforceable obligations of the prior redevelopment agency have been paid in full and all assets have been liquidated.

The Bill directs the State Controller of the State of California to review the propriety of any transfers of assets
between redevelopment agencies and other public bodies that occurred after January 1, 2011. If the public body
that received such transfers is not contractually committed to a third party for the expenditure or encumbrance of
those assets, the State Controller is required to order the available assets to be transferred to the public body
designated as the successor agency by the Bill.

In accordance with the timeline set forth in the Bill (as modified by the California Supreme Court on December 29,
2011) all redevelopment agencies in the State of California were dissolved and ceased to operate as a legal entity
as of February 1, 2012. After the date of dissolution, the assets and activities of the dissolved redevelopment agency
are reported in a fiduciary fund (private-purpose trust fund) in the financial statements of the City.
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NOTE 14 - SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF THE FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(CONTINUED)

A. Cash and Investments

Cash and investments reported in the accompanying financial statements consisted of the following:

Cash and investments pooled with the City $ 2,950,263
Cash and investments with fiscal agent 1,625

$ 2,951,888

B. Notes Receivable

A note in the amount of $40,000 is receivable in monthly installments of $182 beginning in July 2010, including
interest payments at 0.9 percent due from inception. The note is secured by the deed of trust and assignment of
rents and is guaranteed by the debtor. The full amount will be due in June 2030. An additional note of $150,000
is receivable in monthly installments of $658 beginning in October 2011, including an interest at 0.51 percent
due from inception with annual adjustments to reflect the LAIF rate up to a maximum percentage of 3.17
percent. The note is secured by the deed of trust. The full amount will be due in October 2031. As of June 30,
2018, the notes receivable balance is $109,652.

C. Capital Assets

An analysis of capital assets as of June 30, 2018, follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Fiduciary Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 2,703,143 - $ - $ 2,703,143
Right of way 100,000 - - 100,000
Total capital assets not being depreciated 2,803,143 - - 2,803,143
Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure 38,092 - - 38,092
Less accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure (5,714) (952) - (6,666)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 32,378 (952) - 31,426
Fiduciary activities:
Capital Assets, Net $§ 2835521 § (952) § - $ 2,834,569
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NOTE 14 — SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF THE FORMER REDEVELOPMENT
AGENCY (CONTINUED)

D. Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in the long-term liabilities of the Successor Agency as of
June 30, 2018:

Balance Balance Due within
June 30, 2017 Additions Repayments June 30, 2018 One year
Fiduciary Activities

2016 Refunding Series A $ 11,455,000 $ - § 1,740,000 $ 9,715,000 $ 1,795,000
Add: unamortized premium 993,825 - 195,506 798,319 -
2016 Refunding Series B 2,315,000 - 375,000 1,940,000 375,000
Less: unamortized discount (17,627) - (3,467) (14,160) -
Total $ 14,746,198 $ - $ 2,307,039 $ 12,439,159 $ 2,170,000

2016A & B Tax Allocation Bonds

In March of 2016, the Agency issued $16,610,000 in 2016 Tax Allocation Bonds, Series A and B, with interest
rates ranging from 1.00 percent to 4.00 percent. The proceeds of the bonds were used to refund the 1998A,
2003A and 2007A Tax Allocation Bond, to fund a deposit to a debt service reserve account, and to pay costs
incurred in connection with the issuance, sale and delivery of the Series 2016A & B bonds. Interest is payable
semi-annually on February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing August 1, 2016. Principal is payable on
August 1 each year, commencing August 1, 2016. As of June 30, 2018, the outstanding principal balance on
the bonds is $11,655,000.

The annual debt service requirements are as follows:

2016A & B Tax Allocation Bonds

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest
2019 $ 2,170,000 $ 388,875
2020 2,240,000 309,638
2021 2,330,000 226,363
2022 2,435,000 141,063
2023 2,480,000 44,668
Totals $ 11,655,000 $ 1,110,607

NOTE 15 - TAX ABATEMENTS - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES

GASB Statement No. 77 defines tax abatements as resulting from an agreement between a government and an
individual or entity in which the government promises to forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity promises
to subsequently take a specific action that contributes to the economic development or otherwise benefits the
government or its citizens. According to GASB No. 77, the substance of these agreements meet the definition of
“tax abatements” as the revenues received were not available for general municipal services purposes, but rather
used to effectively reduce the net tax liability of certain taxpayers per the conditions of an agreement.
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NOTE 15 - TAX ABATEMENTS - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES (CONTINUED)

The City offers an economic development incentive program to the entities that propose to locate or expand already
established businesses within the City. This incentive program is expected to provide a stimulus to the City’s
economy, increase the tax base and create jobs. Each of the agreements entered into by the City, provides for a
rebate of taxes paid to the City according to formulas contained in the agreements. These limited term agreements
provide for a sharing of the taxes (percentage rebates) above certain amounts with a maximum rebate not to exceed
the cost of a business’ improvements and/or development impact fees. The City generally expects to receive
increased revenue as a result of these agreements. These incentive agreements require approval by the City Council.

The City currently has six of these agreements in effect. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, under this program
the City had abatements of sales tax totaling $556,243. Pursuant to the Sales and Use Tax law (chapter 8 — Article
1 — section 7056), in order to protect the confidential information of sales taxes collected and abatements provided
to each of the specific agencies, the City has presented the aggregate amount abated during the current fiscal year.

NOTE 16 - RESTATEMENT TO BEGINNING NET POSITION / FUND BALANCE

The City implemented a new accounting standard related to OPEB. The City also analyzed and revised various
policies. The impacts to beginning net position/fund balance are as follows:

Governmental Business-type Successor
Activities Activities Agency
Beginning of the year, as previously reported
Net position $ 559,848,767 $179,928,567 $ (8,352,400)
Adjustment to correct Pauline Stancliff Memorial Trust 21,045 - -
Adjustment to correct receivables - - 300,000
Adjustment to correct capital assets not being depreciated (190,144) 272,759 -
Adjustment to correct capital assets, net of depreciation (258,175) - -
Adjustment to correct deposits payables (451,157) 2,938,799 -
Adjustment to correct PEG Fees previously recognized as revenues 327,464 - -
Adjustment to correct code enforcement citations (191,455) - -
Adjustment to correct beginning total OPEB liability (Note 9) (54,794,001) (20,080,758) -
Beginning of the Year, as Restated $ 504,312,344 $163,059,367 $ (8,052,406)
Nonmajor Other
governmental Internal enterprise
General Fund funds service funds Water Disposal Sewer funds

Beginning of the year, as previously reported
Fund balance/net position $ 32,698,975 $ 21,412,915  $(15,196,041) $111,458,957 §$ (67,426) $ 50,134,660 $ 18,402,376

Adjustment to correct Pauline Stancliff Memorial Trust 21,045 - -
Adjustment to correct capital assets not being depreciated - - 248,667 - 24,092
Adjustment to correct capital assets, net of depreciation - (60,917) - - -
Adjustment to correct deposits payables (501,917) 50,760 - 2,133,382 - 805,417
Adjustment to correct PEG fees previously recognized as revenues 327,464 - - - -
Adjustment to correct code enforcement citations (191,455) - - - - -
Adjustment to correct beginning total OPEB liability (Note 9) - (3,891,620) (10,429,541) (5,136,938) (3,735,954) (778,325)
Beginning of the Year, as Restated $ 32,333,067 $ 21,484,720 $(19,148,578) $103.411.465 $ (5,204,364) $ 47,228,215 _§ 17,624,051
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES BY DEPARTMENT

GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balance, July 1, as Restated

Resources (Inflows):
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous

Transfers in

Proceeds from Sale of Property

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):

General Government
City council
City clerk
City manager
Finance
City attorney
Human resources
Building maintenance
Development services

Public safety
Police
Fire

Culture and recreation
Community services
Parks

Highway and streets
Quality of life
Engineering

Library

Capital outlay

Debt service

Transfers out

Total Charges to Appropriations
Fund Balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 32,333,067 $ 32,333,067 $ 32,333,067 $ -
51,662,750 50,700,237 51,008,061 307,824
6,137,730 6,464,244 7,213,077 748,833
133,000 1,593,434 1,020,229 (573,205)
6,992,606 7,430,163 7,509,832 79,669
242,000 277,251 156,872 (120,379)
364,507 976,786 1,733,447 756,661
2,639,681 2,572,409 2,125,072 (447,337)
30,000 1,949,001 1,974,663 25,662
100,535,341 104,296,592 105,074,320 777,728
301,978 403,123 431,093 (27,970)
238,283 222,794 249,510 (26,716)
1,393,536 1,380,387 1,384,135 (3,748)
2,138,200 2,001,412 1,878,923 122,489
637,317 574,746 627,077 (52,331)
4,030,927 4,014,713 3,651,487 363,226
1,360,710 1,236,821 1,122,174 114,647
3,222,945 3,639,266 2,774,983 864,283
25,838,031 26,037,287 25,705,908 331,379
14,018,541 14,788,840 14,090,328 698,512
980,461 951,926 1,021,374 (69,448)
1,681,727 1,860,473 1,810,695 49,778
3,731,750 3,924,373 3,923,709 664
664,321 1,131,488 655,739 475,749
2,171,130 2,019,786 1,989,717 30,069
363,512 1,470,570 1,813,066 (342,496)
136,924 136,924 136,924 -
5,499,160 6,220,268 6,072,848 147,420
68,409,453 72,015,197 69,339,690 2,675,507
$ 32,125,888 $ 32,281,395 $ 35,734,630 $ 3,453,235
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
PUBLIC FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund Balance, July 1 $ (8,347,216) $ (8,347,216) $ (8,347,216) $ -
Resources:
Licenses and permits - 383,000 204,271 (178,729)
Amounts Available for Appropriations (8,347,216) (7,964,216) (8,142,945) (178,729)
Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Highway and streets 4,769 4,946 8,745 (3,799)
Debt service:
Interest and fiscal charges - - 11,256 (11,256)
Transfers out - 306,720 304,996 1,724
Total Charges to Appropriations 4,769 311,666 324,997 (13,331)
Fund Balance, June 30 $ (8,351,985) $ (8,275,882) $ (8,467,942) $  (192,060)
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN — AGENT MULTIPLE EMPLOYER PLAN
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY
Service Cost
Interest
Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Net Change in Total Pension Liability
Total Pension Liability - Beginning

Total Pension Liability - Ending (a)

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Contribution - Employer
Contribution - Employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expense

Net Change in Fiduciary Net Position
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)
Plan Net Pension Liability/(Assets) - Ending (a) - (b)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
Total Pension Liability

Covered Payroll

Plan Net Pension Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll

2015 2016 2017 2018
$ 2,703,390 $ 2,735,046 $ 2,780,753 $ 3,278,844
9,786,094 10,224,502 10,539,757 10,868,639

- 334,519 (1,148,342) 285,453

- (2,403,446) - 8,600,283

(7,031,419) (7,496,594) (7,929,573) (8,512,367)
5,458,065 3,394,027 4,242,595 14,520,852
132,645,267 138,103,332 141,497,359 145,739,954
$ 138,103,332 $ 141,497,359 $ 145,739,954 $ 160,260,806
$ 2,614,893 $ 2,749,274 $ 3,297,550 $ 3,706,235
1,378,971 1,219,187 1,324,766 1,461,526
16,743,903 2,473,614 602,969 11,870,046
(7,031,419) (7,496,594) (7,929,573) (8,512,367)

- (121,971) (67,266) (158,865)

13,706,348 (1,176,490) (2,771,554) 8,366,575
97,842,061 111,548,409 110,371,919 107,600,365

$ 111,548,409 $ 110,371,919 $ 107,600,365 $ 115,966,940
$ 26,554,923 $ 31,125440 S 38,139,589 $ 44,293,866
80.77% 78.00% 73.83% 72.36%

$ 17,019,956 $ 17,548,793 $ 18,953,660 $ 20,199,995
156.02% 177.37% 201.23% 219.28%

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 68 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2015 was the first year of

implementation; therefore, only four years are shown.

Notes to Schedule:

Benefit Changes: The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan changes which occurred after
June 30, 2014. This applies for voluntary benefit changes as well as any offers of Two Years Additional Service Credit (a.k.a. Golden

Handshakes).

Changes of Assumptions: The discount rate of 7.15 percent used for the June 30, 2017, measurement date was decreased from 7.65 percent

used for the June 30, 2016, measurement date.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

SCHEDULE OF PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN — AGENT MULTIPLE EMPLOYER PLAN
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)

2015 2016 2017 2018
Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 2,749,274 $ 3,297,550 $ 3,705,781 $ 3,797,896
Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution (2,749,274) (3,297,550) (3,705,781) (3,797,896)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - $ - $ - $ -
Covered Payroll $ 17,548,793 $ 18,953,660 $ 20,199,995 $ 19,836,302
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 15.67% 17.40% 18.35% 19.15%

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 68 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2015 was the first year of
implementation, therefore only four years are shown.

Note to Schedule:

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal cost method

Amortization method/period Level percentage of payroll, closed

Assets valuation method Market value

Inflation 2.75%

Salary increases Varies by Entry Age and Service

Payroll growth 3.00%

Investment rate of return 7.50% net of pension plan investment and administrative

expenses, including inflation.

Retirement age The probabilities of retirement are based on the 2014 CalPERS
Experience Study for the Period from 1997 to 2011.

Mortality The probabilities of retirement are based on the 2014 CalPERS
Experience Study for the Period from 1997 to 2011. Pre-
retirement and post-retirement mortality rates include 5 years
of projected mortality improvement using Scale BB published
by the Society of Actuaries.

92



CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

SAFETY PLAN - COST SHARING EMPLOYER PLAN
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)

2015 2016 2017 2018
Proportion of the collective net pension liability 0.68953% 0.73768% 0.74868% 0.74597%
Proportionate share of the collective net pension liability $ 42,905,786 $ 50,633,826 $ 64,784,346 $ 73,979,298
Covered payroll $ 14,292,490 $ 14,342,189 $ 14,604,289 $ 14,827,015
Proportionate share of the collective net pension liability as
a percentage of covered payroll 300.20% 353.04% 443.60% 498.95%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 79.82% 78.40% 74.06% 71.74%

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 68 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2015 was the first year of

implementation; therefore, only four years are shown.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

SCHEDULE OF PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS
COST SHARING MULTIPLE EMPLOYER BENEFIT PLAN
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)

2015 2016 2017 2018
Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 4,246,980 $ 5,126,655 $ 5,886,486 $ 6,211,050
Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution (4,246,980) (5,126,655) (5,886,486) (6,211,050)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - $ - $ - $ -
Covered Payroll $ 14,342,189 $ 14,604,289 $ 14,827,015 $ 14,894,900
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 29.6% 35.1% 39.7% 41.7%

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 68 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2015 was the first year of
implementation; therefore, only four years are shown.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)

TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY
Service Cost
Interest on the total OPEB liability
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Implicit rate subsidy fulfilled

Net Change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability
Covered-Employee Payroll

City's Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll

2018

$ 4,517,859
4,351,611
(3,361,882)
(688,731)

4,818,857
121,839,192

$ 126,658,049

0.00%
§ 32,062,170

395.04%

(M Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 75 is applicable.
Fiscal Year 2018 was the first year of implementation; therefore, only one year is shown.

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement 75.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgets are legally adopted and formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during
the year for all governmental fund types. The budget is prepared on a GAAP (Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles) basis. From the effective date of the budget, the amounts stated therein as proposed expenditures become
appropriations to the various City departments.

The City Council may amend the budget only during a regular meeting, providing that sufficient monies are available
and that expenditures of proceeds of taxes will not be increased beyond the constitutional appropriation limit as
imposed by Article XIIIB of the State Constitution.

The City's formal budgetary process begins at the operating program level. Departmental budgets are comprised of
the various operating program budgets. Operating programs do not cross departmental lines. Individual fund
budgets consist of the departmental budgets; departmental budgets may cross fund lines.

Individual fund budgets are, in all cases where appropriations are required, the same as the appropriation amounts.
In the case of the Governmental Fund types, unexpended budgeted amounts, except for amounts relating to capital
projects, lapse at the end of the budget year. Spending control (legal level) for most funds is established by the
amount of expenditures budgeted at the departmental and fund levels. Accordingly, the General Fund expenditures
are displayed in the supplementary schedules at the department level and the Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital
Projects, and Permanent Funds expenditures are displayed at the function level. Management control is exercised
at the line item level in each operating program. Management can transfer budgeted amounts within operating
programs, departments or funds, provided that such transfers do not increase the overall budget. Appropriations that
increase the budget require City Council approval.

NOTE 2 - EXPENDITURES IN EXCESS OF APPROPRIATIONS

Expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2018, exceeded the appropriations of the following major
funds/departments:

Budget Actual Variance
General Fund:
General Government
City council $ 403,123  §$ 431,093 $ (27,970)
City clerk 222,794 249,510 (26,716)
City manager 1,380,387 1,384,135 (3,748)
City attorney 574,746 627,077 (52,331)
Culture and recreation
Community services 951,926 1,021,374 (69,448)
Capital outlay 1,470,570 1,813,066 (342,496)
Special revenue:
Public Facilities Development
Highway and streets 4,946 8,745 (3,799)
Debt service - Interest and fiscal charges - 11,256 (11,256)
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2018

Special Revenue Funds

Emergency
Service

Household
Hazardous

Waste

State
Gas Tax

Air Quality
Improvement

Traffic
Safety

Assets:
Cash and investments
Cash and investments with
fiscal agent
Receivables:
Accounts
Taxes
Prepaid costs
Due from other governments
Advances to other funds

$ 164,677

14,387
3,600

$

130,251

148,047

$

446,961

22,996

575

35,756

Total Assets

$ 182,664

$

139,038

148,047

469,957

36,331

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll

Unearned revenue

Deposits payable

Due to other funds

93,552
60,307

Total Liabilities

153,859

Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Unavailable revenue

Total Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

3,600
25,205

136,465

148,047

469,957

Total Fund Balance

28,805

136,465

148,047

469,957

Total Liabilities, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and
Fund Balances:

$ 182,664

$

139,038

$

148,047

$

469,957

36,331
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Special Revenue Funds

Downtown General Community
Measure | Open Redlands Parking Capital Development Asset
Space Business Area Authority Improvement Block Grant Forfeiture
$ 2,064,821 505,630 $ 128,085 11,565  § - 8 - 8 1,163,398
. . 4,250 . - . .
310,358 - - - - - -
- - 4,607 - 312,452 111,149 76,379
- 116,032 - - - - -
$ 2,375,179 621,662 $ 136,942 11,565 $ 312,452 $ 111,149  § 1,239,777
- - 13,608 1,044 33,635 6,820 65,861
125 - 2,080 - 470 1,490 -
- - 4,740 - 33,633 - -
. . . 10,262 . . .
- - - - 302,013 108,448 -
125 - 20,428 11,306 369,751 116,758 65,861
- - 3,305 - 115,716 52,589 -
- - 3,305 - 115,716 52,589 -
2,375,054 - - 259 - - 1,173,916
- 621,662 113,209 - - - -
- - - - (173,015) (58,198) -
2,375,054 621,662 113,209 259 (173,015) (58,198) 1,173,916
$ 2,375,179 621,662 $ 136,942 11,565 $ 312,452 $ 111,149  § 1,239,777
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2018

Special Revenue Funds

Supplemental
Police Law Park and Arterial Street Traffic
Grants Enforcement Open Space Construction Signals

Assets:
Cash and investments $ 185,985 §$ 360,087 $ 708,482 $ 3,141,990 § 1,223,302
Cash and investments with

fiscal agent - - - - -
Receivables:

Accounts - - - - -

Taxes - - - - -
Prepaid costs - - - - -
Due from other governments 27,728 - - - -
Advances to other funds - - 116,032 - -

Total Assets $ 213,713 $ 360,087 S 824,514 $ 3,141,990 $ 1,223,302

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 114 - 12,445 - 1,478
Accrued payroll 10,739 1,219 - - -
Unearned revenue 101,305 280,432 - - -
Deposits payable - - - 28,554 210,037
Due to other funds - - - - -

Total Liabilities 112,158 281,651 12,445 28,554 211,515

Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Unavailable revenue - - - - -

Total Deferred Inflows
of Resources - - - - -

Fund Balances:

Nonspendable - - - - -
Restricted 101,555 78,436 - - -
Committed - - 812,069 3,113,436 1,011,787
Assigned - - - - -
Unassigned - - - - -

Total Fund Balance 101,555 78,436 812,069 3,113,436 1,011,787

Total Liabilities, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and
Fund Balances: $ 213,713  § 360,087 $ 824,514  §$ 3,141,990 § 1,223,302
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Special Revenue Funds

Street Landscape
Freeway Lighting CFD 2004-1 Maintenance Disaster Local PARIS
Interchanges District #1 Assessment District Recovery Transportation
$ 2,766,084 -8 265,099 1,199 - % 718,138 $ 7,866,073
59,897 - - - - - -
- 214 400 86 - - -
$ 2,825,981 214§ 265,499 1,285 - S 718,138 § 7,866,073
56,225 - 4,779 999 - 5,764 271
- 189 1,078 252 - 1,053 6,336
- - 20,000 - - 35,074 -
- - - - 59,110 - -
56,225 189 25,857 1,251 59,110 41,891 6,607
- 25 239,642 34 - 676,247 7,859,466
2,769,756 - - - - - -
- - - - (59,110) - -
2,769,756 25 239,642 34 (59,110) 676,247 7,859,466
$ 2,825,981 214§ 265,499 1,285 - S 718,138 § 7,866,073
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2018

Assets:
Cash and investments
Cash and investments with
fiscal agent
Receivables:
Accounts
Taxes
Prepaid costs
Due from other governments
Advances to other funds

Total Assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll

Unearned revenue

Deposits payable

Due to other funds

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Unavailable revenue

Total Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and
Fund Balances:

Special Revenue

Funds Capital Projects Funds Debt Service Funds
Transportation Redlands Public
Development Storm Safety Hall General Debt Improvement

Act Drain Replacement Service Corporation
$ - 1,832,238  § 1,203,468 § 7,159  § -
- - - 2,567,099 -
- - 1,424 - -
- - - 1,095 -
3,552 - - - -
- 103,821 - - -
$ 3,552 1,936,059 $ 1,204,892 § 2575353 § -
- 4,280 38 - -
- 90 - - -
3,458 - - - -
3,458 4,370 38 - -
3,550 - - - -
3,550 - - - -
- 1,931,689 - 2,575,353 -
- - 1,204,854 - -
(3,456) - - - -
(3,456) 1,931,689 1,204,854 2,575,353 -
$ 3,552 1,936,059 § 1,204,892 $§ 2,575,353 § -
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Permanent Funds

Cemetery
Endowment

Simonds
Endowment

Pauline Stancliff

Memorial
Trust

Total
Governmental
Funds

$ 1,565,986

$ 35,759

$ 21,137

$ 26,518,149
2,567,099

74,858
474,587
3,600
594,619
335,885

$ 1,566,486

$ 35,759

$ 21,137

$ 30,568,797

312,962

85,582
420,110
303,927
473,029

1,595,610

175,160

175,160

89,861
1,476,625

10,000
25,759

20,200
937

123,661
19,321,372
8,441,919
1,204,854

(293,779)

1,566,486

35,759

21,137

28,798,027

$ 1,566,486

$ 35,759

$ 21,137

$ 30,568,797
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Revenues:

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Use of money and property
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Highway and streets
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of

Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Proceeds from sale of property

Total Other Financings
Sources (Uses)

Net changes in fund balances
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as Restated

Fund Balances, End of Year

Special Revenue Funds

Household
Emergency Hazardous State Air Quality Traffic
Service Waste Gas Tax Improvement Safety

$ 1,107,061  $ - 8 - - 8 -
- - - - 246,335

- 1,469 1,882,821 89,568 -

2,007 126,857 - - -

- - - 2,532 -

20,015 - - 49,844 -
1,129,083 128,326 1,882,821 141,944 246,335
4,981,882 130,957 - - -

- - - 18,789 -

- - - 74,010 -

4,981,882 130,957 - 92,799 -
(3,852,799) (2,631) 1,882,821 49,145 246,335
3,852,801 - - - -
- - (1,734,774) - (235,792)
3,852,801 - (1,734,774) - (235,792)

2 (2,631) 148,047 49,145 10,543

28,803 139,096 - 420,812 16,158

$ 28,805 _$ 136,465 § 148,047 469,957 § 26,701
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Special Revenue Funds

Downtown General Community
Measure I Open Redlands Parking Capital Development Asset
Space Business Area Authority Improvement Block Grant Forfeiture

$ 1,232,409 $ -8 - 8 - 8 - 8 -3 -
- 74,794 - - - - -

- - 7,568 - 501,911 248,813 -

- 2,143 313,998 - - - -

15,536 3,086 717 10,369 - - 5,765

- - 15,574 - - - 355,343

1,247,945 80,023 337,857 10,369 501,911 248,813 361,108

- - 363,606 16,740 - - -

- - - - - - 153,704

- 1,496 - - - - -

712,230 - - - 268,451 93,702 -
1,195,526 - - - 271,971 133,207 337,026
1,907,756 1,496 363,606 16,740 540,422 226,909 490,730
(659,811) 78,527 (25,749) (6,371) (38,511) 21,904 (129,622)

- - - - 84,041 - -

- - - - 84,041 - -
(659,811) 78,527 (25,749) (6,371) 45,530 21,904 (129,622)
3,034,865 543,135 138,958 6,630 (218,545) (80,102) 1,303,538

$ 2,375,054 § 621,662 $ 113,209 $ 259 8§ (173,015) 8§ (58,198) § 1,173,916
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Special Revenue Funds
Supplemental
Police Law Park and Arterial Street Traffic
Grants Enforcement Open Space Construction Signals
Revenues:
Taxes $ - 3 - 8 - 8 -3 -
Licenses and permits - - 224,384 103,960 9,395
Intergovernmental 92,704 136,135 - - -
Charges for services - - - - -
Use of money and property - 1,134 2,187 623 494
Miscellaneous - - 196,837 - -
Total Revenues 92,704 137,269 423,408 104,583 9,889
Expenditures:
Current:
General government - - - - -
Public safety 84,574 98,852 - - -
Culture and recreation - - 37,136 - -
Highway and streets - - - 6,739 5,700
Capital outlay - - 57,593 - -
Debt service:
Principal retirement - - 55,525 - -
Interest and fiscal charges - - 46,847 - -
Total Expenditures 84,574 98,852 197,101 6,739 5,700
Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 8,130 38,417 226,307 97,844 4,189
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 53 - 5,000 - -
Transfers out - - (100,307) - -
Proceeds from sale of property - 540 - - -
Total Other Financings
Sources (Uses) 53 540 (95,307) - -
Net changes in fund balances 8,183 38,957 131,000 97,844 4,189
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as Restated 93,372 39,479 681,069 3,015,592 1,007,598
Fund Balances, End of Year $ 101,555 § 78,436 $ 812,069 $ 3,113,436  $ 1,011,787
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Special Revenue Funds

Street Landscape
Freeway Lighting CFD 2004-1 Maintenance Disaster Local PARIS
Interchanges District #1 Assessment District Recovery Transportation

$ - 8 24,845  $ 197,211  § 28,550 $ - 8 - 8 -
69,396 - - - - - -

- - - - - 29,115 -

145,183 - - - - - -
1,687 - 1,677 - - 17,664 (77,919)

- - 171,933 - - 2,294,366 -
216,266 24,845 370,821 28,550 - 2,341,145 (77,919)

- - 191,450 57,943 - - -

302,220 25,025 - - - 332,609 545,725

- - - - - 86,874 -

302,220 25,025 191,450 57,943 - 419,483 545,725
(85,954) (180) 179,371 (29,393) - 1,921,662 (623,644)

- - - 29,393 - 961,248 8,483,110

- - (181,933) - - (485,017) -

- - (181,933) 29,393 - 476,231 8,483,110

(85,954) (180) (2,562) - - 2,397,893 7,859,466
2,855,710 205 242,204 34 (59,110) (1,721,646) -

$ 2,769,756 $ 25 $ 239,642 § 34 $ (59,1100 $ 676,247 $ 7,859,466
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Revenues:

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Use of money and property
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Highway and streets
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of

Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Proceeds from sale of property

Total Other Financings
Sources (Uses)

Net changes in fund balances
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as Restated

Fund Balances, End of Year

Special Revenue

Funds Capital Projects Funds Debt Service Funds
Transportation Redlands Public
Development Storm Safety Hall General Debt Improvement

Act Drain Replacement Service Corporation

$ - 8 - 8 - 8 10,634  § -
- 103,910 - - -

18,831 - - - -
93 9,947 29,888 2,996 15

- - 100 - -

18,924 113,857 29,988 13,630 15

- - 81,559 - -

- - - - 20

17,748 116,686 - - -

- - 2,163,553 - -

- - - 2,280,000 595,000

- - - 715,230 14,987

17,748 116,686 2,245,112 2,995,230 610,007
1,176 (2,829) (2,215,124) (2,981,600) (609,992)

- - - 3,140,500 609,992

(4,632) - - - -
(4,632) - - 3,140,500 609,992
(3,456) (2,829) (2,215,124) 158,900 -

- 1,934,518 3,419,978 2,416,453 -

$ (3,456) $ 1,931,689 $ 1,204,854 ' $ 2,575,353 $ -
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Permanent Funds

Pauline Stancliff Total
Cemetery Simonds Memorial Governmental
Endowment Endowment Trust Funds

$ -8 -8 - $ 2,600,710
- - - 832,174

- . - 3,008,935

- - - 590,188

- 155 92 28,738

29,520 - - 3,133,532

29,520 155 92 10,194,277

- - - 711,298
- - - 5,449,969
- . - 38,652
B _ - 2,445,624
) B - 4,319,760

- - - 2,930,525
- - - 777,064

- - - 16,672,892

29,520 155 92 (6,478,615)

. 35,604 - 17,201,742
(667,905) - - (3,410,360)
- - - 540

(667,905) 35,604 - 13,791,922

(638,385) 35,759 92 7,313,307

2,204,871 - 21,045 21,484,720

$ 1,566,486 $ 35,759 $ 21,137 $ 28,798,027
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

EMERGENCY SERVICE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Fund Balance, July 1 $ 28,803 $ 28,803 $ 28,803 $ -
Resources:
Taxes 1,100,000 1,100,000 1,107,061 7,061
Charges for services 6,000 5,000 2,007 (2,993)
Miscellaneous 500 - 20,015 20,015
Transfers in - 4,022,849 3,852,801 (170,048)
Amounts Available for Appropriations 1,135,303 5,156,652 5,010,687 (145,965)
Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Public safety 4,932,712 5,127,849 4,981,882 145,967
Total Charges to Appropriations 4,932,712 5,127,849 4,981,882 145,967
Fund Balance, June 30 $ (3,797,409) $ 28,803 $ 28,805 § 2
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balance, July 1

Resources:
Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Public safety

Total Charges to Appropriations

Fund Balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 139,096 $ 139,096 $ 139,096 $ -
6,000 - 1,469 1,469
107,000 103,500 126,857 23,357
252,096 242,596 267,422 24,826
201,235 142,255 130,957 11,298
201,235 142,255 130,957 11,298
$ 50,861 $ 100,341 $§ 136,465 § 36,124
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
STATE GAS TAX
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balance, July 1

Resources:
Intergovernmental

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Transfers out

Total Charges to Appropriations

Fund Balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

$ - $ - $ -3 -
1,841,092 1,939,288 1,882,821 (56,467)
1,841,092 1,939,288 1,882,821 (56,467)

- 1,929,789 1,734,774 195,015

- 1,929,789 1,734,774 195,015

$ 1,841,092 $ 9,499 $ 148,047 § 138,548
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
AIR QUALITY IMPROVEMENT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balance, July 1

Resources:
Intergovernmental
Use of money and property

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Highway and streets
Capital outlay

Total Charges to Appropriations

Fund Balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

$ 420,812 $ 420,812 $ 420,812 $ -

81,000 87,200 89,568 2,368
- 2,350 2,532 182
501,812 460,518 562,756 102,238
100,000 - 18,789 (18,789)
50,000 191,804 74,010 117,794
150,000 191,804 92,799 99,005

§ 351,812 § 268,714 § 469,957 $ 201,243
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TRAFFIC SAFETY
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balance, July 1

Resources:
Licenses and permits

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Transfers out

Total Charges to Appropriations

Fund Balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 16,158 $ 16,158 $ 16,158  $ -
157,000 133,350 246,335 112,985
173,158 149,508 262,493 112,985
- 135,000 235,792 (100,792)
- 135,000 235,792 (100,792)
$ 173,158 $ 14,508 $ 26,701 $ 12,193
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

MEASURE I (2010)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Fund Balance, July 1 $ 3,034,865 $ 3,034,865 $ 3,034,865 % -
Resources:
Taxes 1,100,000 1,100,000 1,232,409 132,409
Use of money and property 20,000 20,000 15,536 (4,464)
Amounts Available for Appropriations 4,154,865 4,154,865 4,282,810 127,945
Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Highway and streets 318,239 14,716 712,230 (697,514)
Capital outlay 5,000,000 1,895,777 1,195,526 700,251
Total Charges to Appropriations 5,318,239 1,910,493 1,907,756 2,737
Fund Balance, June 30 $ (1,163,374) $ 2,244,372 $ 2,375,054 $§ 130,682

115



CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
OPEN SPACE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balance, July 1

Resources:

Licenses and permits
Charges for services

Use of money and property

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Culture and recreation

Total Charges to Appropriations

Fund Balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

$ 543,135 § 543,135 § 543,135 § -

46,200 65,000 74,794 9,794
- 2,200 2,143 (57)
- 1,900 3,086 1,186

589,335 612,235 623,158 10,923
- - 1,496 (1,496)
- - 1,496 (1,496)

$§ 589,335 § 612,235 § 621,662 § 9,427
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
DOWNTOWN REDLANDS BUSINESS AREA
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Fund Balance, July 1

$ 138,958 § 138,958 § 138,958 §$ -

Resources:

Intergovernmental - 10,000 7,568 (2,432)

Charges for services 270,000 290,000 313,998 23,998

Use of money and property 2,000 750 717 (33)

Miscellaneous 25,000 17,000 15,574 (1,426)
Amounts Available for Appropriations 435,958 456,708 476,815 20,107

Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):

General government 315,319 354,783 363,606 (8,823)

Total Charges to Appropriations 315,319 354,783 363,606 (8,823)

Fund Balance, June 30

§ 120,639 § 101,925 § 113209 § 11,284
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

PARKING AUTHORITY
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Fund Balance, July 1, as Restated $ 6,630 $ 6,630 $ 6,630 $ -
Resources:
Use of money and property 8,000 12,480 10,369 (2,111)
Amounts Available for Appropriations 14,630 19,110 16,999 (2,111)
Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
General government 20,470 20,210 16,740 3,470
Total Charges to Appropriations 20,470 20,210 16,740 3,470
Fund Balance, June 30 $ (5,840) $ (1,100) S 259 § 1,359
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Fund Balance, July 1 $ (218,545) $ (218,545) $ (218,545) $ -
Resources:
Intergovernmental - 6,259,363 501,911 (5,757,452)
Transfers in - 79,409 84,041 4,632
Amounts Available for Appropriations (218,545) 6,120,227 367,407 (5,752,820)
Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Highway and streets 224,997 525,223 268,451 256,772
Capital outlay 7,718,208 5,647,382 271,971 5,375,411
Total Charges to Appropriations 7,943,205 6,172,605 540,422 5,632,183
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 8,161,750) $  (52,378) $ (173,015 $ (120,637)
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balance, July 1

Resources:
Intergovernmental

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Highway and streets
Capital outlay

Total Charges to Appropriations

Fund Balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ (80,102) $ (80,102) § (80,102) $ -
- 655,704 248,813 (406,891)
(80,102) 575,602 168,711 (406,891)
112,057 121,475 93,702 27,773
232,873 459,735 133,207 326,528
344,930 581,210 226,909 354,301
$ (425,032) $ (5,608) $  (58,198) $  (52,590)
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

ASSET FORFEITURE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Fund Balance, July 1 $ 1,303,538 $ 1,303,538 $ 1,303,538 % -
Resources:
Use of money and property 500 5,167 5,765 598
Miscellaneous - 56,129 355,343 299,214
Amounts Available for Appropriations 1,304,038 1,364,834 1,664,646 299,812
Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Public safety 257,913 212,383 153,704 58,679
Capital outlay 197,669 383,004 337,026 45,978
Total Charges to Appropriations 455,582 595,387 490,730 104,657
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 848,456 $ 769,447 $ 1,173,916 $ 404,469
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
POLICE GRANTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balance, July 1

Resources:
Intergovernmental
Transfers in

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Public safety
Capital outlay

Total Charges to Appropriations

Fund Balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

$ 93,372 $ 93,372 $ 93,372  § -
136,190 238,671 92,704 (145,967)

- - 53 53
229,562 332,043 186,129 (145,914)

129,597 196,867 84,574 112,293

- 37,790 - 37,790

129,597 234,657 84,574 150,083

$ 99,965 $ 97,386 § 101,555 § 4,169
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SUPPLEMENTAL LAW ENFORCEMENT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balance, July 1

Resources:

Intergovernmental

Use of money and property
Proceeds from sale of property

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Public safety

Total Charges to Appropriations

Fund Balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

$ 39,479 $ 39,479 $ 39,479  $ -

114,000 114,000 136,135 22,135
6,500 6,500 1,134 (5,366)

- - 540 540
159,979 159,979 177,288 17,309
120,217 151,008 98,852 52,156
120,217 151,008 98,852 52,156

$ 39,762 $ 8,971 $ 78,436 $ 69,465
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

PARK AND OPEN SPACE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balance, July 1

Resources:

Licenses and permits

Use of money and property
Miscellaneous

Transfers in

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Transfers out

Total Charges to Appropriations

Fund Balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
681,069 $ 681,009 $§ 681,009 § -
- 174,398 224,384 49,986
- 2,000 2,187 187
- 776,286 196,837 (579,449)
- - 5,000 5,000
681,069 1,633,753 1,109,477 (524,276)
31,720 145,257 37,136 108,121
- 1,200,623 57,593 1,143,030
55,525 55,525 55,525 -
46,847 46,847 46,847 -
- - 100,307 (100,307)
134,092 1,448,252 297,408 1,150,844
546,977 $§ 185,501 $§ 812,069 $§ 626,568
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
ARTERIAL STREET CONSTRUCTION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balance, July 1

Resources:
Licenses and permits
Use of money and property

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Highway and streets

Total Charges to Appropriations

Fund Balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 3,015,592 $ 3,015,592 $ 3,015,592 $ -
138,600 62,057 103,960 41,903
10,181 - 623 623
3,164,373 3,077,649 3,120,175 42,526
1,513 4,946 6,739 (1,793)
1,513 4,946 6,739 (1,793)
$ 3,162,860 $ 3,072,703 $ 3,113,436 $ 40,733
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TRAFFIC SIGNALS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Fund Balance, July 1 $ 1,007,598 $ 1,007,598 $ 1,007,598 $ -
Resources:
Licenses and permits - 15,000 9,395 (5,605)
Use of money and property 4,929 4,929 494 (4,435)
Amounts Available for Appropriations 1,012,527 1,027,527 1,017,487 (10,040)
Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Highway and streets - 162,326 5,700 156,626
Total Charges to Appropriations - 162,326 5,700 156,626
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 1,012,527 $ 865,201 $ 1,011,787 $§ 146,586
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FREEWAY INTERCHANGES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balance, July 1

Resources:

Licenses and permits
Charges for services

Use of money and property

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Highway and streets
Capital outlay

Total Charges to Appropriations

Fund Balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 1,007,598 $ 1,007,598 $ 2,855,710 § 1,848,112
- 200,000 69,396 (130,604)
- 85,285 145,183 59,898
10,625 10,625 1,687 (8,938)
1,018,223 1,303,508 3,071,976 1,768,468
141,302 154,416 302,220 (147,804)
1,032,589 - - -
1,173,891 154,416 302,220 (147,804)
$ (155,668) $ 1,149,092 $ 2,769,756  $ 1,620,664
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
STREET LIGHTING DISTRICT #1
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balance, July 1

Resources:
Taxes
Transfers in

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Highway and streets

Total Charges to Appropriations

Fund Balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 205 $ 205 $ 205 $ -
25,500 25,428 24,845 (583)
- 5,700 - (5,700)
25,705 31,333 25,050 (6,283)
29,181 28,298 25,025 3,273
29,181 28,298 25,025 3,273
$ (3,476) $ 3,035 $ 25  §$ (3,010)
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

CFD 2004-1 ASSESSMENT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balance, July 1

Resources:

Taxes

Charges for services

Use of money and property
Miscellaneous

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
General government
Transfers out

Total Charges to Appropriations

Fund Balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

$ 242,204 $ 242,204 $ 242204 $ -
180,000 185,000 197,211 12,211
- 171,933 - (171,933)

4,000 - 1,677 1,677

- - 171,933 171,933

426,204 599,137 613,025 13,888
189,690 225,211 191,450 33,761

- 181,933 181,933 -

189,690 407,144 373,383 33,761

$ 236,514 $ 191,993 $ 239,642 $ 47,649
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balance, July 1

Resources:
Taxes
Transfers in

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
General government

Total Charges to Appropriations

Fund Balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

$ 34 $ 34 34 8 -
28,000 29,308 28,550 (758)
- 40,000 29,393 (10,607)
28,034 69,342 57,977 (11,365)
41,387 56,307 57,943 (1,636)
41,387 56,307 57,943 (1,636)
$§  (13,353) $ 13,035 34 § (13,001
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

DISASTER RECOVERY
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Fund Balance, July 1 $ (59,1100 $ (59,1100 $ (59,110) $ -
Resources:
Intergovernmental - - - -
Amounts Available for Appropriations (59,110) (59,110) (59,110) -
Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
General government - - - -
Total Charges to Appropriations - - - -
Fund Balance, June 30 $ (59,1100 $ (59,1100 $ (59,110) § -
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

LOCAL TRANSPORTATION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balance, July 1

Resources:

Intergovernmental
Use of money and property

Miscellaneous
Transfers in

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Highway and streets

Capital outlay
Transfers out

Total Charges to Appropriations

Fund Balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ (1,721,646) $ (1,721,646) $ (1,721,646) $ -
3,001,720 292,455 29,115 (263,340)
- 10,758 17,664 6,906
- 2,197,138 2,294,366 97,228
- 1,081,374 961,248 (120,126)
1,280,074 1,860,079 1,580,747 (279,332)
481,861 1,104,775 332,609 772,166
763,922 458,882 86,874 372,008
- 413,309 485,017 (71,708)
1,245,783 1,976,966 904,500 1,072,466
$ 34,291 $§ (116,887) % 676,247 $ 793,134
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

PARIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Variance with
Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund Balance, July 1 $ - $ - $ - $ -
Resources:
Use of money and property - - (77,919) (77,919)
Transfers in - 8,423,206 8,483,110 59,904
Amounts Available for Appropriations - 8,423,206 8,405,191 (18,015)
Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Highway and streets - 533,985 545,725 (11,740)
Capital outlay - 7,500,000 - 7,500,000
Total Charges to Appropriations - 8,033,985 545,725 7,488,260
Fund Balance, June 30 $ - $ 389,221 $ 7,859,466 $ 7,470,245
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Variance with
Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund Balance, July 1 $ - $ - $ - $ -
Resources:
Intergovernmental - 1,348,728 18,831 (1,329,897)
Use of money and property - - 93 93
Amounts Available for Appropriations - 1,348,728 18,924 (1,329,804)
Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Highway and streets - 1,344,095 17,748 1,326,347
Transfers out - - 4,632 (4,632)
Total Charges to Appropriations - 1,344,095 22,380 1,321,715
Fund Balance, June 30 $ - $ 4,633 $ (3,456) $ (8,089)
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

STORM DRAIN
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Fund Balance, July 1 $ 1,934,518 $ 1,934,518 $ 1,934,518 §$ -
Resources:
Licenses and permits - 91,307 103,910 12,603
Use of money and property - 15,000 9,947 (5,053)
Amounts Available for Appropriations 1,934,518 2,040,825 2,048,375 7,550
Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Highway and streets 58,009 29,114 116,686 (87,572)
Capital outlay - 92,254 - 92,254
Total Charges to Appropriations 58,009 121,368 116,686 4,682
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 1,876,509 $ 1,919,457 $ 1,931,689 § 12,232
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SAFETY HALL REPLACEMENT

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Fund Balance, July 1 $ 3,419,978 $ 3,419,978 $ 3,419,978 $ -
Resources:
Use of money and property 1,000 13,367 29,888 16,521
Miscellaneous - - 100 100
Amounts Available for Appropriations 3,420,978 3,433,345 3,449,966 16,621
Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
General government - 43,300 81,559 (38,259)
Capital outlay 750,000 2,201,534 2,163,553 37,981
Total Charges to Appropriations 750,000 2,244,834 2,245,112 (278)
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 2,670,978 $ 1,188,511 $ 1,204,854 §$ 16,343

136



CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL DEBT SERVICE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balance, July 1

Resources:

Taxes

Use of money and property
Transfers in

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Debt service:

Principal retirement

Interest and fiscal charges

Total Charges to Appropriations

Fund Balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 2,416,453 $ 2,416,453 $ 2,416,453 § -
- 6,800 10,634 3,834
- 1,000 2,996 1,996
- 2,996,375 3,140,500 144,125
2,416,453 5,420,628 5,570,583 149,955
2,280,000 2,280,000 2,280,000 -
716,375 716,375 715,230 1,145
2,996,375 2,996,375 2,995,230 1,145
$  (579,922) § 2,424,253 $ 2,575,353 § 151,100
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

REDLANDS PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balance, July 1

Resources:
Use of money and property
Transfers in

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Culture and recreation
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total Charges to Appropriations

Fund Balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ - $ - -3 -
- 19 15 4
- 613,438 609,992 (3,446)
- 613,457 610,007 (3,450)
- 20 20 -
595,000 595,000 595,000 -
18,437 18,437 14,987 3,450
613,437 613,457 610,007 3,450
$ (613,437) § - - $ -
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CEMETERY ENDOWMENT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balance, July 1

Resources:
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriations (Outflow):
Transfers out

Total Charges to Appropriations

Fund Balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

$ 2,204,871 $ 2,204,871 $ 2,204,871 $ -

- 300 - (300)

- 65,000 29,520 (35,480)

2,204,871 2,270,171 2,234,391 (35,780)

- - 667,905 (667,905)

- - 667,905 (667,905)

$ 2,204,871 $ 2,270,171 $ 1,566,486 $§ (703,685)
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

SIMONDS ENDOWMENT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Fund Balance, July 1 $ - $ - $ - 8 -
Resources:
Use of money and property - - 155 155
Transfers in - - 35,604 35,604
Amounts Available for Appropriations - - 35,759 35,759
Fund Balance, June 30 $ - $ - $ 35759 $ 35,759
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
PAULINE STANCLIFF TRUST

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Fund Balance, July 1, as Restated $ 21,045 $ 21,045 $ 21,045 $ -
Resources:

Use of money and property - - 92 92
Amounts Available for Appropriations 21,045 21,045 21,137 92
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 21,045 $ 21,045 $ 21,137  $ 92
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITON
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2018
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Non-Potable
Groves Water Cemetery Aviation Totals
Assets:
Current:

Cash and investments $ 53,147 $ 3,457,901 $ 1,085,894 §$ - $ 4,596,942

Receivables:

Accounts - - 62,603 744 63,347
Taxes - - - 21,210 21,210

Due from other governments - - - 368,411 368,411

Total Current Assets 53,147 3,457,901 1,148,497 390,365 5,049,910
Noncurrent:

Capital assets - net of accumulated depreciation 13,901,910 - 753,909 4,667,238 19,323,057
Total Noncurrent Assets 13,901,910 - 753,909 4,667,238 19,323,057
Total Assets 13,955,057 3,457,901 1,902,406 5,057,603 24,372,967

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred pension related items 8,161 12,989 104,086 35,480 160,716

Deferred OPEB related items - - 36,222 9,055 45,277
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 8,161 12,989 140,308 44,535 205,993
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows

of Resources $ 13,963,218 $ 3,470,890 $ 2,042,714 § 5,102,138 $ 24,578,960
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Net Position:
Liabilities:
Current:

Accounts payable $ 68,258 $ 1,393 $ 19,089 $ 29,610 $ 118,350

Accrued payroll - 1,503 6,533 106 8,142

Unearned revenue - - - 424 424

Deposits payable - - 948,705 1,431 950,136

Due to other funds - - - 201,092 201,092

Accrued compensated absences 42 369 16,810 442 17,663
Total Current Liabilities 68,300 3,265 991,137 233,105 1,295,807

Noncurrent:

Advances from other funds - - 1,079,120 934,007 2,013,127

Accrued compensated absences 41 368 16,810 442 17,661

Total OPEB liability - - 1,008,322 213,028 1,221,350

Net pension liability 31,722 50,496 404,615 137,920 624,753
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 31,763 50,864 2,508,867 1,285,397 3,876,891
Total Liabilities 100,063 54,129 3,500,004 1,518,502 5,172,698

Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Deferred pension related items 2,407 1,438 6,196 0,566 16,607
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 13,901,910 - 753,909 4,667,238 19,323,057
Unrestricted (41,162) 3,415,323 (2,217,395) (1,090,168) 66,598
Total Net Position 13,860,748 3,415,323 (1,463,486) 3,577,070 19,389,655
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position $ 13,963,218 $ 3,470,890 $ 2,042,714 § 5,102,138  $ 24,578,960
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Non-Potable

Operating Revenues:
Sales and services charges
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:

Personnel services

Administrative and contractual services
Supplies

Depreciation expense

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest revenue

Interest expense

Miscellaneous income

Property taxes

Grants

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before Transfers
and Contributions

Transfers in
Contributions

Changes in Net Position

Net Position:

Beginning of Year, as Restated

End of Year

Groves Water Cemetery Aviation Totals
741,397 $ 638,313 745,347 127,233 ' $ 2,252,290
214,708 - 214,588 161,330 590,626
956,105 638,313 959,935 288,563 2,842,916

2,317 90,927 483,893 94,723 671,860
765,284 34,396 310,853 167,871 1,278,404
5,000 - 35,000 15,989 55,989
15,953 - 14,620 175,312 205,885
788,554 125,323 844,366 453,895 2,212,138
167,551 512,990 115,569 (165,332) 630,778
(3,490) 14,002 16,498 206 27,216

- - (16,743) (13,077) (29,820)

- - 26,805 593 27,398

- - - 66,263 66,263

- - - 347,871 347,871

(3,490) 14,002 26,560 401,856 438,928
164,061 526,992 142,129 236,524 1,069,706

- - 667,905 - 667,905

- 27,993 - - 27.993

164,061 554,985 810,034 236,524 1,765,604
13,696,687 2,860,338 (2,273,520) 3,340,546 17,624,051
13,860,748 $ 3,415,323 (1,463,486) 3,577,070 ~$ 19,389,655
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash received from customers

Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid to employees for services

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Non-Capital
Financing Activities:
Cash transfers in
Cash transfers out
Advances from other funds
Intergovernmental
Grants received

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Non-Capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and
Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Interest paid on long-term debt
Cash contributions received from developers

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital
and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest received

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expense
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll
Increase (decrease) in deposits payable
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability
Increase (decrease) in total OPEB liability
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities

Non-Cash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities:

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Non-Potable

Groves Water Cemetery Aviation Totals
992,804 $ 638,313 $ 993,419 $ 289,407 $ 2,913,943
(719,105) (35,180) (375,662) (444,977) (1,574,924)

(1,018) (85,631) (413,610) (74,542) (574,801)
272,681 517,502 204,147 (230,112) 764,218
- - 667,905 - 667,905
(216,044) - (767,905) (147,793) (1,131,742)
- - - 66,263 66,263

- - - 642,310 642,310
(216,044) - (100,000) 560,780 244,736
- - (30,713) (317,797) (348,510)

- - (16,743) (13,077) (29,820)

- 27,993 - - 27,993

- 27,993 (47,456) (330,874) (350,337)
(3,490) 14,002 16,498 206 27,216
(3,490) 14,002 16,498 206 27,216
53,147 559,497 73,189 - 685,833
- 2,898,404 1,012,705 - 3,911,109
53,147 $ 3,457,901 $ 1,085,894 $ - $ 4,596,942
167,551 $ 512,990 $ 115,569 $ (165,332)  $ 630,778
15,953 - 14,620 175,312 205,885
36,699 - (6,605) (19,256) 10,838
(1,243) (1,978) (52,077) (14,460) (69,758)
(848) (1,350) (10,815) (3,686) (16,699)
51,179 (784) (29,809) (240,141) (219,555)
(1,018) 946 701 220 849

) - 40,089 - 40,089

- - - (876) (876)

4,408 7,016 56,218 19,163 86,805

- - 72,782 18,196 90,978

- 662 3,474 748 4,884
105,130 4,512 88,578 (64,780) 133,440
272,681 $ 517,502 $ 204,147 $ (230,112) $ 764,218

During fiscal year 2017-2018, there were no non-cash investing, capital and financing activities.
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2018

Assets:
Current:
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Accounts
Prepaid costs
Inventory

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent:
Capital assets - net of
accumulated depreciation

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred pension related items
Deferred OPEB related items

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position:
Liabilities
Current:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll

Accrued compensated absences

Accrued claims and judgements

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent:
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued claims and judgements
Total OPEB liability
Net pension liability

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred pension related items

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Net Position:

Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds

Workers'

Liability Information Compensation Equipment

Self-Insurance Technology Self-Insurance Maintenance
$ 1,988,319 $ 1,313,348 $ 1,469,168 1,263,662
- - - 6,236
- 17,773 - -
- - - 86,277
1,988,319 1,331,121 1,469,168 1,356,175
- 159,572 - 105,364
1,988,319 1,490,693 1,469,168 1,461,539
76,249 410,704 103,145 266,035
9,055 83,567 9,055 45,279
85,304 494,271 112,200 311,314
$ 2,073,623 $ 1,984,964 $§ 1,581,368 1,772,853
$ 41,981 $ 55,456 $ 1,120 340,646
1,996 17,019 4,417 10,374
817 90,795 3,800 34,706
936,000 - 4,422,233 -
980,794 163,270 4,431,570 385,726
818 90,793 3,800 34,705
936,000 - 4,422,233 -
292,083 2,972,275 202,136 1,523,730
289,763 1,596,533 391,018 1,034,158
1,518,664 4,659,601 5,019,187 2,592,593
2,499,458 4,822,871 9,450,757 2,978,319
(7,745) 1,687 10,451) 11,403
- 159,572 - 105,364
(418,090) (2,999,166) (7,858,938) (1,322,233)
(418,090) (2,839,594) (7,858,938) (1,216,869)

$ 2,073,623 $ 1,984,964 $ 1,581,368 1,772,853
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Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds

Utility Payroll
Billing Clearing Total

$ 1,665,009 $ 1,201,480 $ 8,900,986

3,487 3,908 13,631
- 2,121 19,894

- - 86,277
1,668,496 1,207,509 9,020,788
- - 264,936
1,668,496 1,207,509 9,285,724
327,232 - 1,183,365
81,500 - 228,456
408,732 - 1,411,821

$ 2,077,228 $§ 1,207,509 $ 10,697,545

$ 15,182 § 1,762 S 456,147
12,808 1,614,319 1,660,933
81,789 - 211,907

. - 5,358,233

109,779 1,616,081 7,687,220
81,788 - 211,904

- - 5,358,233
2,709,566 - 7,699,790
1,272,050 - 4,583,522
4,063,404 - 17,853,449
4,173,183 1,616,081 25,540,669
9,454 : 4,348

- - 264,936
(2,105,409) (408,572) (15,112,408)
(2,105,409) (408,572) (14,847,472

$§ 2077228 § 1,207,509 § 10,697,545
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Operating Revenues:
Sales and service charges
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses:
Personnel services
Administrative and contractual services
Supplies
Premiums paid out
Depreciation expense

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest revenue

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Income (Loss) Before Transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Changes in Net Position
Net Position:
Beginning of Year, as Restated

End of Fiscal Year

Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds

Workers'

Liability Information Compensation Equipment

Self-Insurance Technology Self-Insurance Maintenance
$ - § 3,718,851 $ 2209914 $ 5385615
26,780 - - -
26,780 3,718,851 2,209,914 5,385,615
220,575 1,369,983 482,409 803,368
(3,272,989) 1,817,229 2,010,008 1,583,885
100 118,772 2,947 2,392,574
613,609 - 159,747 -
- 157,036 - 32,031
(2,438,705) 3,463,020 2,655,111 4,811,858
2,465,485 255,831 (445,197) 573,757
15,279 107 2,100 (7,329)
15,279 107 2,100 (7,329)
2,480,764 255,938 (443,097) 566,428
1,845,000 - - -
4,325,764 255,938 (443,097) 566,428
(4,743,854) (3,095,532) (7,415,841) (1,783,297)
$ (418,090) ~§ (2.839,594) $ (7.858,938) $ (1,216,869)
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Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds

Utility Payroll
Billing Clearing Total

$ 940,318 $ 3,140,500 $ 15,395,198

547,987 - 574,767
1,488,305 3,140,500 15,969,965
965,239 - 3,841,574
932,336 - 3,070,469
4,654 - 2,519,047
- - 773,356
- - 189,067
1,902,229 - 10,393,513
(413,924) 3,140,500 5,576,452
9,997 - 20,154
9,997 - 20,154
(403,927) 3,140,500 5,596,606
B B, 1,845,000
- (3,140,500) (3,140,500)
(403,927) - 4,301,106
(1,701,482) (408.,572) (19,148,578)

S (2,105409) S8 (408,572) $ (14,847,472)
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers and users
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments for claims
Cash paid to employees for services
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Non-Capital
Financing Activities:
Cash transfers in
Cash transfers out
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Non-Capital Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Capital and
Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital
and Related Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest received

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net

Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in prepaids

(Increase) decrease in inventory

(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability
Increase (decrease) in total OPEB liability
Increase (decrease) in claims and judgments
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities

Non-Cash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities:
During fiscal year 2017-2018, there were no non-cash

investing, capital and financing activities.

Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds

Workers'
Liability Information Compensation Equipment
Self-Insurance Technology Self-Insurance Maintenance
$ 26,780 $ 3,718,851 $ 2209914 $ 5,557,822
2,568,521 (1,986,861) (2,188,594) (3,773,516)
(4,606,383) - 731,289 -
(189,254) (1,154,750) (441,796) (674,210)
(2,200,336) 577,240 310,813 1,110,096
1,845,000 - - -
1,845,000 - - -
- (50,405) - -
- (50,405) - -
15,279 107 2,100 (7,329)
15,279 107 2,100 (7,329)
(340,057) 526,942 312,913 1,102,767
2,328,376 786,406 1,156,255 160,895
$§ 1,988,319 $ 1,313,348 § 1,469,168 $§ 1,263,662
$ 2,465,485 $ 255,831 $ (445,197) $ 573,757
- 157,036 - 32,031
- - - 172,207
- (17,773) - -
- - - (1,042)
(20,409) (146,127) (24,378) (85,803)
(7,745) (42,674) (10,451) (27,642)
(90,759) (33,087) (15,892) 203,985
(345) (1,221) (117) 2,200
40,260 221,825 54,329 143,688
18,196 173,537 18,196 90,979
(4,606,383) - 731,289 5,736
1,364 9,893 3,034 -
(4,665,821) 321,409 756,010 536,339
$ (2,200,336) $ 577,240 $ 310,813 § 1,110,096
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Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds

Utility Payroll
Billing Clearing Total
$ 1,488,898 § 3,136,592 § 16,138,857
(926,331) (4,407) (6,311,188)
- - (3,875,094)
(782,780) (39,044) (3,281,834)
(220,213) 3,093,141 2,670,741
- - 1,845,000
- (3,140,500) (3,140,500)
- (3,140,500) (1,295,500)
- - (50,405)
- - (50,405)
9,997 - 20,154
9,997 - 20,154
(210,216) (47,359) 1,344,990
1,875,225 1,248,839 7,555,996
$ 1,665,009 $§ 1,201,480 $§ 8,900,986
$ (413,924) § 3,140,500 § 5,576,452
- - 189,067
593 (3,908) 168,892
- (758) (18,531)
- - (1,042)
(131,345) - (408,062)
(34,001) - (122,513)
10,659 (3,649) 71,257
333 (39,044) (38,194)
176,741 - 636,843
163,762 - 464,670
- - (3,869,358)
6,969 - 21,260
193,711 (47,359) (2,905,711)
$ (220,213) § 3,093,141 $§ 2,670,741
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CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2018

Assets:
Cash and investments
Cash and investments with fiscal agents
Receivables:
Accrued interest

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deposits payable

Total Liabilities

152

Community
Special Facilities

Deposits District Trust Totals
6,382,568 $ - 6,382,568
- 2,856,052 2,856,052
540,391 - 540,391
6,922,959 $ 2,856,052 9,779,011
524,356 $ 2,494 526,850
6,398,603 2,853,558 9,252,161
6,922,959 $ 2,856,052 9,779,011




CITY OF REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Special Deposits

Assets:
Cash and investments
Receivables:

Accrued interest

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deposits payable

Total Liabilities

Community Facilities District Trust

Assets:
Cash and investments with fiscal agents

Liabilities:
Deposits payable

Total - All Agency Funds

Assets:
Cash and investments
Cash and investments with fiscal agents
Receivables:
Accrued interest

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deposits payable

Total Liabilities

Balance Balance

July 1, 2017 Additions Deletions June 30, 2018
4,635,205 10,054,307 8,306,944 $ 6,382,568
381,277 553,100 393,986 540,391
5,016,482 10,607,407 8,700,930 $§ 6,922,959
333,231 8,475,838 8,284,713  $ 524,356
4,683,251 6,945,422 5,230,070 6,398,603
5,016,482 15,421,260 13,514,783 $ 6,922,959
2,807,857 1,493,093 1,444,898 $§ 2,856,052
2,807,857 1,551,476 1,505,775 $ 2,853,558
4,635,205 10,054,307 8,306,944 § 6,382,568
2,807,857 1,493,093 1,444,898 2,856,052
381,277 553,100 393,986 540,391
7,824,339 12,100,500 10,145,828 $§ 9,779,011
333,231 8,475,838 8,284,713  $ 524,356
7,491,108 8,496,898 6,735,845 9,252,161
7,824,339 16,972,736 15,020,558 $ 9,776,517
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STATISTICAL SECTION
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Redlands comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information
says about the government's overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends 157

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the government's
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 163

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government's most significant
local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity 168
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
government's current levels of outstanding debt and the government's ability to issue additional
debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 174

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the government's financial activities take place.

Operating Information 173
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the

information in the government's financial report relates to the services the government provides
and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.

157



*(soSueyo ued *3°9) swoy UIL}IID JO UONIUF0II AjeIpAWL
JO J[nsal & Se 21Ny Y} Ul SUONENJON[J a10W 0} A1033180 90UR[Rq PUN SIY) 950dXa [[IM G/ gSVD eyl pajedionue si i
“ANMqer] gadO pAZiIoweun J99[J1 0} JOPIO UT JUdWwIe)S SIy) AQ A[OSIOADE PR)0dJje Sem dduE[eq pPunj PoIdLNsaIun) YL
"810T “0€ dun( papud 1eak [easiy oYy 10J G/ gSVD peuswd[dur spue[pay] Jo LD oy (€)
“Ayqiqer] uorsuad JaU 103[J01 0 JOPIO UT JUAWRILIS STY) Aq A[OSIOAPE PI)OJJe Sem ddue[eq Pun, PAIOINsaIun) YL
"S10T “0€ dun( papud 1eak [easiy oYy 10J 89 gSVD pejuswd(dur spue[pay] Jo K1) oy ()
"9]qe[IBAE 10U ST ¢ gSVD Jo uonejuawraydur a1 03 Jo11d uoneuLIoyu]
"€00T “0€ dun( papud 1eak [easly oy} 10J ¢ gSVD peuswd[dur spuelpay] Jo L1 sy (1)

‘HLON

PSEGE0S69  PECLLL6EL  088°EOT9EL  T6IFIOTPL  SOS6IT°608  TI6SLTL8L  LEEHIST08L  SHPS'ETH'ELL TSEHEL'6SL  6¥S0S6°SSL JuowurRA03 Arewtid [ejo L,
(0z8°csTsyl)  (8€6°€09°08)  (I¥TTys89)  (0€8°8TT'8S) 61T°186°61 €0STTI°ST €SP 6LETE 6070167  69S°80T°CH  8TH6T9°9S PaLYSAIUN)
769°610°8€ L90°005°8T SEI'196°81 1S1°662°0T 0£€0°691°CT L1T'SLS 0T 189°%6€°€T 989°890°6C  STLOLY'TE  LOTIEY'bE paloLISYY
T8V ELT'S08  SOTISS'T6L  986°V89°S8L  OLS'LSS'08L  9ST696°99L  THTISSTYL  €0TO6L'YTL  0S9'bPY'669  LSOSSI'P9  #16°688°499 sjosse [epded ur paysoAu]

JUSWIUIIA0S ATewuLd

€98°798°L9T  L9S'8T6'6LT  00LTTS08T  TTH'8TST8I €ELOTTTOT  €hY'LPb'661  LIHI0861 0TV LLY'88T  TOI'889°I8T  TIEHTI'LLI sanIAnoe adK)-ssauisng [e30L
LIOLTT T6ELSLTI 0TI°€STEl TTI'ES6°TT 6vT°001° 1Y L19°%01°TS T0L61T 19 01F'80%°€S  HSI'ELL'SY  TEO6II'LY palIsaIuN
IYE91S LI 86€°66€°L1 009°C0L°€ L60'TLYY 009°20L°€ 0rE9IY SST1°6SCY S68°CITY SE€9°991°Y SLEOTIY paRLISY
S06°8TTOST  LLL'TLL'6VT  086°S9S°€91 €OTH06'PST  88CIVLST  98Y°9T6°9p1 LTESESTET STT°968°0ET €OV SPLIET  SO6+H8E9TT sjosse [erded ur pajssAu]

:sanIAnoe odA)-ssaursng

16V TLILTS  LIL8PS'6SS  08I°T8S'SSS  69L°680°09S  TLLTO6909  6ISTE8L8S  €91°0SST8S  STIOV6P8S  6SI°9V0'SLS  LETOTESLS SOTTATIOR [BJUSLIUIOAOT [€J0],
(LevtLesyn)  (oge19ec6e)  (19¢€°66L°T18)  (TS6181°18)  (0€0°611°10)  (b11T8697)  (6¥T0¥8°80)  (10T°86%°8)  (S8S499°T)  96£01S6 poloLysaIuf)
1S€°66%°0T 699°001°TT GES°8STST $S0F8S°ST 0799781 LL8'8ST0T 9TS‘SET61 16L°SS8%YT  060°70€°8T  TE€8°01€°0€ paroLIsRY
LLS'PP0OSS9  8TH60ITHY  900°611°TT9  L99°€89°ST9  TLE'SSS'609  9SL°bSOP6S  988PSTT6S  SES88S°89S  ¥S9°90HTSS  600°50S°8ES sjosse [epded ur paysoAu]

SAMIAT)OR [BJUSWUIIAOLD)

(810C L10T 910¢ Stz ¥10T €102 7102 110T 010T 600¢

(Sununosde Jo siseq [enIdoL)
SIBQ X [BOSI] U9], Ise]

jusuodwo)) Aq uonIsod PN
SANVIAHY 40 ALID

158



81€°SLS 6L 01€78€89 78€°9€6'%9 18S°STI6L 1S1°916°€L €9€°TL8TY TI0'L8T'T9 095°055°S9 759°9€8°99 SPL1T0°06
8SI°ESE TS 6SL'891°8% LTL'YOL Y 00L°0ET°TS 006156 6 9SS SILSY 856 1St T 887°899°6€ PE8°COV'LE 099°9LT° T
1L8°LYE LLL'9T8 681°26€ 6Tr €65 985°cer'E LLY'EETT LO6°1T8°T 960°1€S $09°096 681°6TL'S
- - - 000°081 000°081 S8THT 10€°1 0r6°1L8 666981 ¥TSTOL
€ET'LTL S06°€8 955°80S 112°66% Y167SS TTLETS 6vE VLY LOT'OLS 168°6TS -
LYESHL YEE00L Y16°L0S LLS'86L LOLObL 0ST'ILY 8LEBLL 9€1°TEY 99T°1SS 0L9°6EY
€1€8€9 SI0PIS L66°19% LY 6vE 896°1LE 0S6°17€ 0Tr11E £26°09¢€ 8611 £26'80€
LO6E THL 918°SLS P1TSI Y9l $0L91 76581 12L11 S10°1C 00€°T6T 86€VST
L6T119% PLTOVE 6 87156 788°889°6 OVL'9LS6 1€7°260°6 159°€59°8 LLL00T'S 6LL0SY'L LEL'LLO'L
128°011°S1 €S6°LS9°ET LITHOS €T L90°L88°T1 69L°€TYTT 1L¥°699°01 TET6LOOT 696°€10°01 81L°€68°8 9r8°1€9°6
6L6°0€0°LT SS96LY'TT 901°€L8'81 88S°L1TTT TIsest'eT 8L0°0S€°TT 666°61£°0T STE999°81 T66'816°L1 €LETEISI
091°2TT’sT 16$°S12°0T SSOIPIIT 188°788°LT 1STH95°€T LOS9ST'LT #S0°SEL ST TLTT88'ST 0T8°TEY 6T S80°SHL LY
6T EEST 0LELST'T 120°9%€°1 618°999‘t WSYLITT 916°'L86 00°9%1°1 70T'88%'8 SPEISTI 0¥T'S6£6T
796°69%"t 6ST'116°C £98°965°S Y6£°L09°8 T60°S61°L 98T°TE0Y LT8091°9 709°€88°S YE6'870°01 €L1°850°01
80t 1€l T50°5T1 860°€E 0LT'€E 00T°s€ TIEYe 980°S€¢ 9St'HE €EEYH W8TLY
966°568°1 L8TT9€°T Ir1°60T° 1 9P 189°1 S96°91L°1 Y9E691°1 THEETI'T 115°606 $68°6ST°T 900°98C°1
TTTE0E WI6IL S1€°98C 661°56T 98€°967 029°€re 020°02T 820°€6T ¥Sy'Tee LIT°LLT
€PE°9L0°E 018969°C 65S°€0¥'€ L99°SL6T 0SL916°T 126°L0%°1 TE6'P6E°T Oy TILT §SS0EET 08€°06€°T
LE6TIS0T 1ETHPI01 LS9OLT'6 9G€°6T9°01 9LE98T 01 88€°181°6 £78%59°8 1£0°795°8 SO8°TITS LE]06T'S
66€°€17°601 085°090°0C1 ILISIT9CT  9PETHSTTIL  TE9'SILTO  #8ELIGYIL  TILTTY'L6 T8IEPP €0l ¥SS9TETIT  L66618°TIL
609°0VE v 8€6°908°CY TTETL09°Sy  8SS°99S° Ty HBITTOLOF  TLETIVIS 6VE106°€E  0L9°106F7€ 9157026t LSTTSL'SE
TL6'99Y L6 rey TSI°18 €8€°¢L L68°18 €6€°L61 068°€0C 1Syl 086°T1¥ -
601°198 ObLTHL 6TS° 118 6£8°689 884°0€9 1L6900°C1 8LS 1+6 809°959 POELIL €91°6TL
€TesTl 19L°SL 16840€°1 €TT189 919°¢c6Y 20t°SSS 11L°Tes SPP'E0S 676761 S¥0°TTS
PSS88L 87E'S8L 880°609 190°€€€ TIo0'Iey 0L6°L1E 10s°s€€ ¥$8°L8T TEL'0ST SILOLE
878°168°8 ¥ST6L6'8 189568 L68°0£0°8 L61°50S°8 S€0°080°8 1€5°€P9°L 0L9°T88°L 140°888°L €50°120°8
€0L°LLYTL €85 PLTTL 0¥9°TLICI LS6°10T°TI YOO IEITT 6€6°€1€°01 0bL'ST6'8 65E°LIT6 LYTYrE6 9TEIPF 01
001°69€°0C 0bEY1$°0T 1S1°6€9°1¢C 861°96S°61 0L6°LEY'61 799°6€1°0T  86€°8TEST €61°11T°91 ELI'EIRST $$6'999°G1
06L°TLO'S9 9 ESTIL 6+8°919°08 88L°GL6'69 8779019 T10°90€°€9 €9€°17L°€9 TIS THS 89 8€0°90t"9L 0L LIOLL
L6TYES T€1°9€6 1L8°€TI’T LES'LOT'T 950°L¥t'1 876°68S°1 1S1°021°C 79T°9st'E 865°L569 ¥r8°SEE’y
£19°000°C TSSH0ET TL6'ET0T TSL6T6T 9SL°ET6'T £7E°896°1 $SS0T8°T 69T+96°1 601°L91°C 876°780°C
0677$8°CI 6STILTTI SLOP6S'ST 9LT'EH0TI 9%6°C00°t #81°6€8°9 SSH'S9T'8 $ST08€°6 ILT°T6E8 PIL°8%9°8
178°8¥LY 088°980°t T THS'E 0TL'PSS‘E 029°1+0°€ 855°L66°T SPE0I8T 080°67€°€ 1€0°019°¢ L9T1T0Y
6¥S0rTTE €9€°€9T° ¢t 112,60y 899026 0% TLL'SETOF TTILTO0Y 010°9€0°6€ Th6°L8S 8E £9t°200°0% S18°500°8€
00076€°CT 9SH16E V1 8LY'SETII SES6TT01 86T €T 01 LL8'E88°6 8188916 SOL'E08TT 999°LLT'ST TS1°EL6'61
810 L10T 9102 S10T ¥10T €10T 414 110T 0102 600T

(Sununoosoe Jo siseq [enIode)
SIBD A RIS US, IS8T
uonisod 19N Wl saduey)
SANVIddd 40 ALD

sonuoAdl wegoid
JuswuioAoS Arewrnd [ejo
sonuoAdl wedod
sanianoe ad4j-ssaursng [ejo [
suonnqLyuod pue sjuels reyde)
suonnquod pue syuerd Suneredo
oM dN
SOA0ID)
A1930110)
UONRIAY
I0MOS
[esodsiq
100
:SOJTAIOS 10J SaTIeYD)
:sonIANOE odK)-ssoursng
sonuoAdl wedoid
SONIATIOR [RJUSWIUIOAOS [B)0],
suonnquuod pue syuers [ede)
suonnqyuod pue syueld Suneredo
Areiqry
s1021s pue KemySIH
UONELIIOdI PUB 21NN
Kyayes o1qng
JUOWIUIIAOS [RIOUAD)
:SOJTAIOS 10J SaTIey))
:SOITATIOE [BIUSUIUIOAOD)
1SONUALT WeIS0I g

sosuadxa juswuronoS Arewrnd [ejo
sasuadxa senianoe odA)-ssaursnq [ejo],
™M dN
SOAOID)
K1010w0)
UONRIAY
10MOS
[esodsiq
191 A\
:sonIAnoe odKy-ssaursng
30SUadX0 SANIATIO [RJUSWIUIOAOS [€J0],
5051eYd [OSI) puE 1S1)U]
Areiqry
s10a1s pue KemySIH
UOT)BOIORI PUB I[N
Kyayes o1qng
JUOWIUIIAOS [BIOUAD)
ISONIATIO [BJUSUIULIOAOD)
:sosuadxy

159



*(so3ueyo ueyd "3-9) SWoI UILLIA JO UONIUT0IAT AJRIPIWLT
Joj[nsal & se a1myng oY) ul suonenjon|y aiow oy K1033)e0 ooue[eq puny siy) 0sodxa [[ImM ¢/ SO Jey pajedionue st j|
*KNNIqerT g9d0 POZIIOWRUN 109]JA1 0) JOPIO Ul JUIWAL)S SIY) Aq A[9SIOAPE PIJOJJe Seam ddUB[eg Pun pajoLIsaIun Ay ],
"810T “0€ dunf papud 1eak [e3s1y dY) 10J G/ SV paruswd[dut spue[pay Jo A1D oy, (z)
“Kyiqer] uotsuad 19U 109[Jo1 0} JOPIO UI JUSWREIS SIY) AQ A[OSIOAPE PIJIJJe Sem doUR[eg PUN PAJOLISAIUN Y,
"ST0T “0€ dunf papud 1eak [e3s1 dY) 10J 89 SV parudwd[duwt spue[pay Jo A1d oy (1)
"d]qe[IeAR J0U SI ¢ SV Jo uonejuawaldur ayj 0 Joud uoneuLIoyuy
"€00€ ‘0€ dunf papud 1eak [edsyy oY) 10§ ¢ gSVO paruswa[dur spueppay jo A1) oy L

“HLON

juoururonod Arewnd ejo],
soniAnoe odK)-ssaursng
SOIIATIOR [EJUSUIUIOAOD)

uonisod jou ur saguey)

juowuoA03 Arewnd [ejo],
san1Anoe adAy-ssaursnq [ejo,
SIOJSUBI],
ured Areurpioenxyg
syosse [eided Jo ofes uo uren
2RO
Ky1odoid 2p Ksuows jo asn)
soxe} Ayxedoig
:so1IANOE odK)-ssoursng
5OIATIOR [RJUSWIUIIAOS [R10],
SIoJSUel],
(81 210N) Aoud3e juowdo[oadpay jo
uonn[ossIp uo (ssof)/ures Areurpioenxg
sjosse [ej1deo Jo aes uo (ssof)/uren
RWo
(P21011)SAIUN) [BIUSWIUIDAOSIIU]
Ky1odoxd 2p Ksuow Jo asn)
soxe) 1410
SOXB) OSIYIURIL]
SoxXe) So[eg
soxe} Ayredoig
1Soxe],
:SOTATIOE [BIUSUIUIOAOD)

:uonsod jou U SAFURYD IOYIO PUER SINUIAI [BISUID)

€79°€99°LT SLIH9TTI (F69°€1T°S) SSH6TT 81 8ETYLYIT  6EF9ITL TTS'TSIE  668°8LYTI T08°€8L°E €LOLIYIE

961°€08"t 7€8°670°L (TTL'9007)  (Lyb'secy) 06T°69L°C 650°T16°1 0€0°6£7°6 0€STIE9 088°€90°7 LS6°6Y9°8

L¥1°098°CC €8T HETY (2L6'90T°€) 206'79STC  8¥6'FO1°61 08€40€°S 61°680°CC  69€°L91°9 (8L0°082) 9I1°L9LTT

YTL10S LS S8E0P6°T9 $60°890°9S 022°959°0S 61L°€TI0S 09%°19T°6S TTTH96°L9 1TSILE0S TOL'ELT'SY STESITYS
(€50°60T°S) 110°899°C (LT1°002) (685°666°€1)  (9TH 18+°9) SLYLOS'L 127888 AL 7950851 $SS°STIT
O1T°€rT8) (¥16°005C) (661°98%t)  (069°€1T91)  (0SEFS9'01)  (806°1+8°S)  (TLE'9S8) (STT°ELS) 6trrS 895°0S

- - - - 891420°C - - - - -

- - - 0v8‘y PEE'ST 897°9€L°6 6v6'v€ 005915 - -

TI6'LSH'T €6°'LT9Y 996°116°C LLI'TST'L 69v°TE0°1 L9£°989°¢ 88716 TW9°'TT6 - -

788°60S €8L°00S L66°SEE’T 658°126 9G€°€S0°T SLY'S81 6¥LLSL L8L019 1€0°88%°1 S9L°6T0°C

€97°99 661°0% 601°8¢€ STT'SE L6S V€ €LY 808°LE 860°89 780°8¢ 12T°sy

LLL'OTLTY YLETLT09 TTT8IT9S 608°S5979 SH1°509°9S S8SESHIS 108°SL0°L9 609°9T8°8% 0r1°€69°9% 1LL°680°CS
011°€rT'8 #16°00S°C 66198t 069°€TT°91 0SES9°01 806°178°S TL69S8 SII'ELS (6¥+7S) (895°05)

- - - - - - 89T vy 1T - - -

- - - - - 9IT°IST - - - -

SE1689°1 PEL'IEEL 85TS01°1 PE1'SE0°1 091689 090°96+°C 9YT'ELT TW8TH9 - -

998°S61 209961 L8LYET S8EYTY ¥L6°S91 9€8°¢S1 9L8°S91 898°08% €LEOLE 1At a%34
$0€90T 166CIT 688°008 LTH LY 69T°LIS TL6'8S £55°699 01€°L9 Y61°9%L ELLYSET
PHELO6T S86°LL6'T LTSTOLT 819°189°1 9LS ELY'T TTOEIE’T TLL'B6I'T 1L9°690°1 EPSLITT L90FSET
£50%7TC LTESE0E 1LS°6L0°E 789°6EL'E PIT1°SETE 120°€58°C 65¥°978°C 909°LTT'E 9€8°988°C 990°9LY'S
TOV'LLI'LT 060°€78°91 96S PHE 81 670°0%0°91 01T61T'ST LIS 6%0°ST 6T €06°CI #68°060°C1 0ST699°T1 76879811
€LY L90°0€ IVL'ELT8T S6EYTH9T $T8°LST'ST 765°0594C €E1°9€5°€T 90 17L°9T £0€°860°0€ £6£°L06°6T L91°929°0¢
(180°8€8°67)  (0LT°9L9°1S)  (68L°18T19)  (S9L°9zr'ze)  (I8¥'6¥T'80)  (120°SH0°TS)  (00L°¢€v'9€)  (2T9T68°LE) (006687 vy)  (TST86LTT)
6¥ST10°01 128°19¢t (S65°908°1) W1¥99°6 91L°0ST'6 (918°668°S) 609°05S°8 819°99L% 8IE°€8YT €0 7S 9
(0€9°058°6€)  (160°8€0°9S)  (F61°SLY6S)  (L06°060°TH)  (L61°00S°LE)  (SOT6YI9P)  (60€°986F)  (0VT'659°TH)  (81T€L6'9Y)  (SS9°TTE6T)

810 L10T 9102 S10T ¥10T €10T 414 110T 0102 600T

(Sununoosoe Jo siseq [enIode)
SIBD A RIS US, IS8T
uonisod 19N Wl saduey)
SANVIddd 40 ALID

(sosuadxo) sonusaal jou [eJ0],
sonIAnoe odK)-ssaursng
SOIIIAIIOR [BJUSWIUIOAOD)
:(sesuadxo) sonuoAdl JON

160



*Kypiqer] uotsuad Jou 109[jo1 0) JOPIO UT JUSWL)S SIY} Aq A[OSIOAPE PJOJJJe SEM ddUR[eg PuUn,] PAJOLSAIU() YL

"$10T “0€ dunf papud 1eak [eosyy Sup 10§ 89 GSVO pajuswadu spue[pay Jo 1D YL (1)
"aoueeq punj jo Surodor oy saSueyd yorym 107 Ul $§ gSVO payuswaidur spue[pay Jo A1) oyl

G80°0€E°0T  669°S90°CT  YSO'LI6TI  60L°09LFT  9SI'6LLOT  L8LTS'LT  SOSH6TLL  €069v6PC  120°8L9°6T  SPI°S80°9¢
(tze19L'e)  (LeL'oLy'or)  (089°¢ss'6)  (8LT6¥8°L)  (89T°L8L8)  (19¥°108°8)  (8SET1L'L)  (SL8°66E°T) - -
¥S8°P0T1 8L6°61H°€E - - - - - - - -
616°1v7'8 8YT°E10°8 661°C1TL £65°869°9 1¥0918°9 0S0°126°S 19€°609°S LLY'E61°9 - -
TLETTE6L  €0L°€9S°6 GES'8ST'ST  +SO'P8S'ST  0IS°S9€'8T  10T°8S0°0C  ISISE0°61  SE6F09°61 - -
199°€T1 LIS 6£ST - ove‘LTE €L8VSE L6678 1S€°19¢ 991°8tS - -
- - - - - - - - TSTTULTT S99TLLT
- - - - - - - - €98°LL6 Y16°815°€
- - - - - - - - €6S°8F9°ST  TTYH06°61
- - - - - - - - CIE6LLOT  +P6°888°01
0€9PEL'SE  SL6869TE  16L°89ITE  SSSOISTE  8L9°LVE'ST  860°8LY'ST  SOTLITET  SEI6IYIT  ObP'OSLLT  OPI‘T98'8I
YSLTOSET  €ELLTOEL  LPI'PSKFEL  OSHFOISHI  16€98S°TI  SIT9II°0I  L9L'ELL'6 0S9°L9L8 - -
9€9°€90 Y 916°0€1°C 0v8°L9TT P6L €881 - - - - - -
9.9°68T°8 TEETTI'S TEETTI'S TSI°SE6°L ¥S9°€06°L IV IPP9°L 11€°668°9 11€°509°9 - -
816°LSO°1 - - - - - - - - -
9b9°vEL8 ¥66°L1S8 TLYPTE'S 65T 18Y°L €€9°LS8°L 6€8°LIL'L LT1°865°9 YLI°9¥0%9 - -
- - - - - - - - S18°708°S €TL688'L
- - - - - - - - STO'LY6 1T LIPTLE°0T
810¢ L10T 910T S10T ¥10T €102 T10T 110T 010 600¢

(Sununoosoe Jo siseq [enIode PIIJIPO)

SIBO A [BOSI,] US] Ise]

Spun,f [EJUSWIULIOAOL) JO SadUE[eq punj

SANVIAAY 40 ALID

‘HLON

SpUNJ [BIUSWUIOAOT IO [[E [BI0]

pausisseun)

paudissy

ponrwwo))

PaloInsaY

d1qepuadsuoN
puny s3oafoxd 1eyde)
punj 9o1AI3S 1991
punj onuoAal [e10ads

:u1 patodal ‘paAIdsaIUN

PoAIOSIY

:Spunj [BJUSWIUISA0S JOI0 [[Y

punj [e1ouss [ejo],
paugisseun)
pausissy
ponIwwo))
PpaloImsay
J1qepuadsuoN
poAIesaIun)
PoAIOSIY

:punj [eIousn)

161



'$011089780 2ImIpuadxa [BUOHOUNY AY) UIPIM PIUTEIU0D $19sse pazi[endes 10J sormipuadxa (q pue suonisod 10U JO SJUSWIE)S SPIM-IUSWIUIOA0S
ay 10§ pazijended Juaixs 0)) Aepno [epdes (e ssay saxmpuadxa (80 are yorym saxmipuadxo jeydesuou £q jsa1erur pue edrourid jo wns oy Surpiaip £q pajenore) .

*soBueyo oy 109[Jo1 0} S[€30) Jeak Joud Jsnfpe pue yorq oF 10u PIp A1) oY) YOIYM I0J SUOHEOIISSL[O] ONUIALI JO JOQUINU € 210M I} [ (T U]

‘HLON
%T'S %6°S %L %1'8 %56 %E6 %S €l %1p1 %LTI %6'11 , saanypuadxo [eydesuou
Jo aSeyudorad e se 991A1S 199
PPIP6S 0T LTE008 (208°881) 0EP PPP'T 6¥6°S80°T SLT61ST (6TT°606%)  (cTs'L66'D)  (pT881§°L)  (TI1°TST'9) SadUE[Rq puUNy UI SFUEYD JON
EISCISTIL  989FFI0I  [8L°TOS9 0L9°9L8°ST  80T'LSLOL  TIL'€8EL  (LL0'806T)  0TO8Y'I 9€7°ST8°1 TTIET (sasn) s201m0S

Suroueury 19Y)0 [BJ0],
- - - - - - - - - - Juode MOI0Sd Puoq Jurpunjal 0} Judwkeg

- - - (616001) - - - - - - SIUDUILLIIAOD) J2YJO 0} SUONNQLIUOY)
- - - - - - - - 866111 - ased] [endeo Jo spaadoId
- - - - (569°€€) L8S°8 (178°0€) - - - SJUSWIONEISOY

- - - - - - (ZStesy's) - - - (81 210N) Aouage Juawdojoaapay jo
€0T'SL6' 018°CLT9 681°11€ £80°91 ST9S8I1 0S¢ - - - - s19s5e [e)1dE JO J[BS WOLJ SPIdS0I]
($0T'88L°6)  (60T'8SSTT)  (LvT'oTL'e)  (STr'086°€D)  (SH9°L81°0T)  (PISLOETT)  (SHP066°01)  (99€°690°€T)  (6SLPISTI)  (8¥9°9¥E°0T) 0 SIoysuel],
PIS9TE6T  S80°0EK'ST  6€8°T16ST €6 1H6'6T  €T6T6LOT  68ST8Y'BT  199°99S°€T  98€6VLPT  LO6I'STTHT  064°8S9°1T Ul SIOJSUEL],

:(sasn) sednos Suroueuly 12YO

(699°616) (6serree)  (€85°169°9)  (ovTTer'yD)  (6STTL9®)  (LeSy98%)  (TST100T)  (Trs189°€)  (09THre'6)  ($S6°€9S°L) sanypuadxa
(1opun) I9AO SINUIAL
JO (Kouarorjop) ssaoxyg

SEL6S6'6L  900°ST6P8  TEI'S9T6L  €ISLYSL8  S99°ELELL  OI0TT06'L9  OL6OVH'S9  6ETSIECTL  TIT099PL  609°L8T08 SaIIpuadxa [e10],
200°CI8 11L°9L6 P8EBST‘T T00°EPE T 997°681°1 LO6TLY‘T P09°LILT L10°€8L'E 9657€8°€ 9LYLEEY SOBIRYD [2ISY PUE JSAIU]
LILEV0'E €59°GI1°E €TTLY6'E YLV TOLE 0P6°816°€ 8Y8°ILLE PP1°9€9°S PTI00b'S 968°T61°S 8LETPS Y [edioutig
190IAIAS 199
978°TE19 8SIOLY'ST  €T8ISYIT  STOOPI‘CT  LTSTIEW'El  S86°0LY'L 0LTILI‘E T1¥°€0b°S L9T°089°€ 9I8°LI8'S &Kepno [ende)
- - - - - - 18b°vTS S60°LLL 879Vt - siuowked ysnoay-ssed YO
- - - - - - - 768°167 881°68€°C - uonedqo AVYAS
L1L°686°1 L09TH6' r'606°1 €6SvT8°1 809°TIL‘1 96L°TIL1 0LETTL T $60°€58°1 16£°986°1 L16°820°C Kreiqry
LIS€E0°L 01T 119°C €TTI8Y'T 199°16L°C T68°1€9°C £0£°00%°C 168°121°C $98°10L°T 6LV 06T 0STHES’s UONEAIOAI PUE dIm[n))
12L0L8'T 780°569°S 0604€0°S LETLOT'Y LOTE16'S 69Ty 989°0ST't POIIS9' 9ETIELY STH P8y 1001 pue AemysSH
SOTOPT'SY  TIS'SSLTY  9SE'LEEOF  899°168°LE  SO9°EEYLE  LEY'6I99E  THSTOS'SE  P8S96LYE  1€8°9LSSE  bSS6ISSE Kiayes orqng
089°0€8°T  TLLISETL 068 SI6TI  €SETHOTL  0TPTISOL  THO'080°01  T86°88L°6 P66°90STT  669°€ESPT  €65°€99°61 JUSWIUIDAOF [2IOUIL)
Juarmy)
saimipuadxyg
990°0v0°6L  LV9°08SSL  8PSELSTL  ELTSIVEL  90VTOL'®Y  €LP9E0°E9  SISGEPE9  L69€89LY9  1S6SIESY  SS9ETLTL SONUAAAI [BJO,
6L6998°F 129°856°€ 96L°S8L'E 6L6006°1 8YETLY'I 1€57L6'T €76°7€9 €19°97T1 0T9°TEIT TL6YITT clile)
019°681 175161 POS‘LIL 10€°1€r LLE 16 965°CS TL0°9T9 01€LE9 0€6°L61°1 680°655°C Auadoxd pue Kouow Jo asn)
020001°8 068V8H°L 8EL69Y'L S60°€8T°L 0LS981°L €POTIL9 LLIYE69 108°€40°L 861°CEY'9 SEPIP6'Y SOOIAIDS 10J SaBIRYD
P91°620°t L9T99T'Y PS8°LEY'E TSTT09°S PLE'SOE9 81L'SSHy 08€°LY6°S 818°0€0°L 209°61T°S £€86°197°9 [BIUSWIUIAOS U]
TTSOYT'8 966°T8H°8 LIS ITEL SLYTRSTT  SPT899°8 768°060°9 098°829°S 68L°09LY 1$591T°s Y20°TTHL syuwed pue sosuodI]
1LL'809'ES  TEE'96I°IS 6801496y €LISIOOF  TOV'8LS'PP  €69°ISLTH  988°699°€y  99€PL6'9Y  0SO°9I8‘SH  TSI6IE6H soxe]
1SONUAAY
810C L10T 910C S10T 10T €10 T10T 110T 010T 600T

(Sununodoe Jo siseq [ENIOOR PalJIpoOU)
SIBO A [BOSI] UQ], I5e]

Spun,j [EJUSWUIDAOL) JO SIOUR[RE pun, ul saguey)

SANV1ddd 40 ALID

162



uorsIAl(g Xe[ A119do1d - 19[[01U0)-10}IpNY AJUNo)) OUIPIEUIdg UeS
‘ouj ‘sonsnels [ediorunyy eruIoje)
(au0)) 2 UaI0)) “IPH BIA) J0SSISSY AJUNO)) OUIPIBUIdG UBS  :90INOS

"I9)JRAIOY) SIBIA pUR €1/710T 189 A [BOSI] 9y} 0 BIWIOJI[E)) JO 9)e)S ) Wolj Juowdo[ordpay pajeuru[d jels oy} ‘97 1XdV Jo [eaoxrdde oy yiip

"9A0QE PAQLISIP suoneyI dYy) 03 393(qns st pue ‘Au1odord 9jqexe) Jo anjeA JoxIeW [ENJOE Ay} 0} J92dsal PIM ‘O[qe[ieAr A[JULIND BJep AJuo ay) s)udsaidol 2A0qe UMOYS elep uonen[eA passasse oy, "pjos Auodoid ayy Jo 2ouid aseyoind
AU} J& PIsSAsSe-I ST ANJBA PIssasse mau Y} ‘Jurod Jey) 1y “IoUMO MU B 0} PJOS SI 1 Jey} Ui} ) Je passasse-a1 AJuo s1 A1odoid ‘suondooxo may uay (% JO 9SeaIoul WNWIXEU & 0) PAII]) , J0joe] Uone[jul, ue Aq pasearour aq Aewr
Ky1odoid Jo onyea passosse oy ‘Teok yoeyg "paxe) Suraq A1rodoid oy Jo onjea possasse oyy uodn paseq ‘o1 Jo djer wnWIUIW (€10} € 0) soxe) Aodoxd pajrwur] yorym ‘¢ 1 uonisodord passed erurojie)) o 91els Y3 Jo SI9I0A Y} ‘g/6] UI

‘HLON
LL8ITO ILLTYE6 - - - - ILLTYE'6 (§9z°9L) 121°82€ S16°060°6 810C
LLBITO 0€8°8¥8°8 - - - - 0£8°878°8 (808°9L) ¥TT60€ vIv'919°8 L10T
LLBITO 9TTILE'S - - - - 9TTILE'S (0€0°tL) 65€°LEE L68TIT'8 910T
€161T°0 6L6°996°L - - - - 6L6°996°L (€€0°5L) ¥9€°91€ 8¥9°STL L S10T
LT6TT0 SSL'8YSL - - - - SSL8YS L (zss9L) 80V €l€ 6C6°11€°L ¥10¢
0S¥8T°0 9€1°0S€°L - - - - 9€1°05€°L (950°8L) 8S1°10€ YE0'LTI'L £10T
£ve8T0 908°0T1°L LSY96L (zs0°9) 876°86 185°C0L 6¥EYTE9 (6£T°6L) vTe681 YITYIT9 T1oc
0118C0 L10'LIT'L €80°86L (891°9) 0TT'66 1€0°70L ¥€6'89t°9 (L61°08) STH00T 90L8¥€%9 1102
I¥9LT0 0SS €St'L LTOTSL (661°5) LL6TS 6¥T'S0L €TS1L9%9 (16L°6L) 89¥°TET 9%8°815°9 010T
8¥¥LTO 816°109°L 950°vIS (r9L) SLT'SS SPS9SH T98°L80°L (reL'6L) 8¥6°1€T 8%9°5€69 600C
ey anjep anjep suondwaxg paInoasun) FETGRES anjep suondwoxg paInoasun) FEGRES 0€ aunf
XeJ, 1001 Passassy Passassy 1SS0 passassy 1SS0 popug
el J|qexe], J|qexe], J|qexe], IBO X [eISL]
[e10], Koua3y uawdo[aadpay A1)

(sIe[1Op JO SpuBSNOY) UuI)
SIBQ & [BOSI] USJ, ISe]

Ky1odoxd o[qexe] JO An[eA [ENOY PIIBWINSH PUE AN[EA PISSISSY
SANVIATY 40 ALID

163



(u0)) 29 ULI0)) “TPH BIA) J0SSISSY AJUNO)) OUIPILUIOY UBS  :99IN0S

"9A0QE PAQLIISIP SUONBIIWI] Y3 0 303[qns SI pue

‘K11odoid ajqexe) Jo anjea jodIeW [BNIOR AU 03 10adSal )Im ‘D[qe[leA. AJJUSLIND BB AUO dY) Sjuasaidal oroqe
umoys eiep uonenyea passasse oy, plos A11odoid oy Jo oo1d aseyoind Jy) JB passISSe-AI ST AN[BA PISSISSE
mau g} qurod 1By} Iy "IOUMO MIU B 0} PIOS ST I Jey} W} oY) J& PIssasse-a1 AJuo st A11adoid ‘suondooxd

MJ I (%7 JO 9SBAIOUT WNWIXEW B 0) PAJIWI]) ,J0JOB] UOHJR[JUL,, UB AQ pasearoul 9q Aew A11adoid jo

onJeA passasse ) ‘1eak yoey ‘poxe) Suroq A11odoid oy Jo anfea passasse Yy} uodn paseq ‘o4 JO 93BT WNWIUILT
[e101 & 0} soxe) Aj1odold pajrw] yorym ‘g1 uonisodord passed eIuIojife)) JO 91eIS oY) JO SIANO0A U} ‘§/6] U]

LL8IT0 LL8IT0 LL8IT0 €1612°0 LT6TTO 0S80 £VE8T0 011820 1¥9L2°0 8Y¥LT0
1LLTYE'6 0£8°818°8 9TTILE'S 6L6996°L S8L8YS L 9E1°0S€EL 908°0Z1°L LI0°L9T'L 0SS ESHL 816 109°L
(s97°9L) (808°9L) (0€0°vL) (€€0°sL) (zssoL) (950°8L) (16T°+8) (59¢°s8) (066°t8) (86%°08)
9€0°61+°6 8€9°76'8 95T°0S+°8 ZI0TH0'8 LEESTYL T61°8TY L L60°S0T°L T8E°TSEL 0PS8ES°L 91+T89°L
- - - - - 600°L 608°C - - -

121°8c¢ YT 60¢ 6SE°LESE v9€91¢€ 80t €€ 8S1°10€ PEE'L6T 9L5°80€ £98°€TE £22°06C
€LT'EE9 TSLELEI SSI°TE9 8E0°ELS 69T°168 ¥S1°019 0629 9T6°LY9 TE8%99 605°56S
62£°00C SLE60T SOE‘LLT €9L°1€T 1L0v€T 0TT6YC 201°6YC PP1°69C 8LS°LOE 8TEEIE
8L9°6 808°C¢ 0TS°TE 796°1¢€ T88°I€ 9L €SPTE LY TE v98°I¢€ 165°0€
910°LT S6¥°9C $8L€T 06£°TT LIT0T 890°61 €TI91 SILY1 6LEV] 698°L1
1Lv°9T 0$L°9T 169°9T vr8°0¢€ 6LITY T6T°LT L96°9T vL8°0€ LOETE SYO‘Ob
88I°L1 €67°91 TLI91 608°S1 906°S1 €80°v1 068°€1 868°¢1 661 Y09y 1
Tas €Is S0 8LV 861 88t 664°C oLy 1Ly 08€‘1

- - - - - - - - - vIL
6L8°091°1 €50°5€0°1 L80°06L 096VLL LOT'SLY L8619 LET6Y9 YT ISL €YTTEL 699789
PPE0P0°T SY1°886 £90°656 8TI‘I¥6 LEE0T6 6L1°616 LEL 606 ¥00°6£6 £€5°506 L69°8T8
SIT'SE6'S 0ETEY9°S v19°65€°S 9LTT01°S €6V I8LY  TOL'E09Y  P06'SLED 9€0vrEY 1LO‘TISY L8L 998}
810C L10T 910T S10CT v10T €10 70T T10C 0102 600C

(sxe[jop jo spuesnoy) ur)
SIBQ X [BOSI US] ISB]

odA 1 Jofely £q K110doid ojqexe] Jo onjeA [enOY PAjewn)sq Pue dN[eA PIssISSY
SANVIJdy 40 ALID

‘HLON

ey 10211(] [BIOL

onjeA PIssIsSy d[qexe],
suonduwoxy :sso

onJeA passassy [e10L
UMOUUN)
paInoasun
KreyrunuoN 74dS
pueT JUBOBA
[euoT}BaIdY
SNOJUB[[QISTIA
pajesiuy
[euonmusuy
JUSWIUIIAOD)

we A1q
[ersnpuy
[e10IoWIWO))

[e1UaPISaY

K103918)

164



CITY OF REDLANDS

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
(Rate per $100 of assessed value)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
City Share of Basic Levy (1) 0.21878 0.21878 0.21878 0.21878 0.21878 0.21878 0.21878 0.21878 0.21878 0.21878
Overlapping Rates: (2)
County General Fund 0.14600 0.14600 0.14600 0.14600 0.14600 0.14600 0.14600 0.14600 0.14600 0.14600
County Superintendent 0.00750 0.00750 0.00750 0.00750 0.00750 0.00750 0.00750 0.00750 0.00750 0.00750

Inland Empire Joint Resource Conservation District 0.00050 0.00050 0.00050 0.00050 0.00050 0.00050 0.00050 0.00050 0.00050 0.00050

Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund 0.22110 0.22110 0.22110 0.22110 0.22110 0.22110 0.22110 0.22110 0.22110 0.22110
Flood Control Zone 3 0.02560 0.02560 0.02560 0.02560 0.02560 0.02560 0.02560 0.02560 0.02560 0.02560
Flood Control Zone 8 0.00088 0.00088 0.00088 0.00088 0.00088 0.00088 0.00088 0.00088 0.00088 0.00088
Redlands Unified 0.30160 0.30160 0.30160 0.30160 0.30160 0.30160 0.30160 0.30160 0.30160 0.30160
San Bernardino Community College 0.05130 0.05130 0.05130 0.05130 0.05130 0.05130 0.05130 0.05130 0.05130 0.05130
San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water 0.02630 0.02630 0.02630 0.02630 0.02630 0.02630 0.02630 0.02640 0.02640 0.02640

San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District 0.00044 0.00044 0.00044 0.00044 0.00044 0.00044 0.00044 0.00044 0.00044 0.00044

Total Proposition 13 Rate 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00010 1.00010 1.00010
Redlands Debt Service 0.00990 0.01060 0.01080 0.01110 0.01090 0.01050 - - - -
Redlands Unified 0.05190 0.05410 0.06170 0.05820 0.06410 0.06290 0.05940 0.05670 0.05240 0.04940
San Bernardino Community College 0.03930 0.02800 0.04670 0.03730 0.04590 0.04190 0.03930 0.04030 0.03500 0.03760
San Bernardino Unified 0.06780 0.07470 0.08840 0.09780 0.09980 0.13500 0.10810 0.11820 0.07950 0.10070
San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water 0.16500 0.16500 0.16500 0.16500 0.16250 0.16250 0.16250 0.16250 0.16250 0.15250

Total Voter Approved Rate 0.33390 0.33240 0.37260 0.36940 0.38320 0.41280 0.36930 0.37770 0.32940 0.34020

Total Direct and Overlapping Rate 1.33390 1.33240 1.37260 1.36940 1.38320 1.41280 1.36930 1.37780 1.32950 1.34020

City Share of 1% Levy Per Prop 13 3) 0.21878 0.21878 0.21878 0.21878 0.21878 0.21878 0.21878 0.21878 0.21878 0.21878
Redlands Debt Service 0.00990 0.01060 0.01080 0.01110 0.01090 0.01050 - - - -

RDA Incremental Rate (4) 1.17490 1.17560 1.17580 1.17610 - - - - - -

City Direct Rate (5) 0.27448 0.27641 0.28110 0.28343 0.28450 0.22927 0.21913 0.21877 0.21877 0.21877
NOTES:

(1 In 1978, California voters passed Proposition 13, which sets the property tax rate at a 1.00% fixed
amount. This 1.00% is shared by all taxing agencies in which the subject property resides. In addition to the
1.00% fixed amount, property owners are charged taxes as a percentage of assessed property values for the
payment of various voter approved items.

(2 Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply to property owners within the
City. Not all overlapping rates apply to all city property owners.

3) City's Share of 1% Levy is based on the City's share of the general fund tax rate area with the largest net
taxable value within the city. ERAF general fund tax shifts may not be included in tax ratio figures.

(4 RDA rate is based on the largest TDA tax rate area (TRA) and includes only rates from indebtedness prior
to 1989 per California State Statute. RDA direct and overlapping rates are applied only to the incremental
property values. With the approval of ABX1 26, the State eliminated Redevelopment from the State of
California for the Fiscal Year 2012/13 and years thereafter.

(5) Because basic and debt rates vary by tax rate area, individual rates cannot be summed. Total Direct Rate
is the weighted average of all individual direct rates applied by the government preparing the statistical

Source: San Bernardino County Assessor (via HAL, Coren & Cone)
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CITY OF REDLANDS
Principal Property Tax Payers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

In $1,000
2018 2009
Total Percentage of Total Percentage of
Net Taxable Total City Net Taxable Total City
Assessed Net Taxable Assessed Net Taxable
Taxpayer Value Assessed Value Value Assessed Value
Southern California Edison Company $ 632,939 6.77% - N/A
Prologis LP* $ 193,099 2.07% $ 92,900 1.21%
Ashley Furniture Industries Inc $ 107,831 1.15%
NYS New LLC $ 94,695 1.01% - N/A
IIT Redlands DC LP $ 93,359 1.00%
Bre Piper MF Parkview Terrace $ 89,472 0.96%
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Assoc** $ 86,967 0.93% - N/A
AMB Institutional Alliance Fund 111 $ 86,547 0.93% $ 87,398 1.14%
BRE California Redlands LLC $ 72,433 0.78% - N/A
2301 W. San Bernardino Ave Invest Group $ 58,371 0.62% $ 51,999 0.68%
Mountainview Power Company - N/A $ 593,500 7.72%
Evans Withycombe Residential - N/A $ 70,596 0.92%
Catellus Operating LP - N/A $ 52,020 0.68%
NYS, LLC - N/A $ 46,351 0.60%
Redlands Business Center LLC - N/A $ 45,820 0.60%
US Industrial REIT 1T - N/A $ 40,800 0.53%
Mountainview Industrial Center LLC - N/A $ 36,143 0.47%
Top Ten Total $ 1,515,713 16.22% $ 1,117,527 14.54%
City Total Net Taxable Assessed Value $ 9,342,770 $ 7,683,409

* Formerly known as Prologis-A4 CA IILFE
** Pending appeals on parcels

Source: San Bernardino County Assessor (via HAL, Coren & Cone’
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CITY OF REDLANDS

Property Tax Levies and Collections'

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Collected within the
Fiscal Taxes Levied Fiscal Year of Levy2 Subsequent Years Total Collections to Date’
Year Ended for the Percent Collections Percent
June 30 Fiscal Year Amount of Levy  of Prior Years Amount of Levy
2007 26,404,200 25,513,769  96.63% 1,292,499 26,806,268 101.52%
2009 29,041,866 27,732,874  95.49% 1,820,062 29,552,936 101.76%
2010 27,857,389 27,284,416  97.94% 1,625,142 28,909,558  103.78%
2011 29,341,082 27,744,927  94.56% 1,437,741 29,182,668  99.46%
2012 28,198,322 26,757,388  94.89% 722,821 27,480,209  97.45%
2013 29,365,178 28,237,555  96.16% 725,114 28,962,669  98.63%
2014 29,697,798 29,620,584  99.74% 834,306 30,454,890 102.55%
2015 30,236,660 30,224,565  99.96% 618,909 30,843,474 102.01%
2016 31,245,233 31,220,237  99.92% 593,784 31,814,021 101.82%
2017 33,814,971 33,547,833  99.21% 561,371 34,109,204  100.87%
2018 35,648,742 35,417,025  99.35% 585,973 36,002,998  100.99%
NOTE:

1'The amounts presented include City property taxes and Redevelopment Agency tax increment, as

well as amounts collected by the City and Redevelopment Agency that were passed-through to other
agencies. The State dissolved the redevelopment agency effective in 2012. This resulted in the City
having to issue a refund of increment received that the County deemed as excess.

2 Subsequent Years Collections of Prior Years may include delinquent tax payments from multiple
prior years which are not identified separately by the County of San Bernardino. Any tax system
changes required to identify and track this information would have to be developed in the County’s tax
system and subsequently included in reports provided to the City. At this time it is not known when or
if the County will make such a change.

Source: City of Redlands, San Bernardino County Auditor-Controller/Treasurer/Tax Collector
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CITY OF REDLANDS
Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(In Thousands, except Per Capita)

Outstanding General Bonded Debt

Fiscal Year General Taxable Tax Percent of

Ended Obligation Pension Allocation  Certificates of Assessed Per

June 30 Bonds Bonds Bonds Participation Total Value ! Capita
2009 2,695 25,627 36,080 13,007 77,409 1.01% 1,085
2010 2,195 24,774 34,185 11,544 72,698 0.96% 1,016
2011 1,680 23,789 32,210 10,021 67,700 0.92% 941
2012 1,145 22,668 - 8,448 32,261 0.45% 464
2013 585 21,400 - 6,800 28,785 0.39% 412
2014 - 19,967 - 5,077 25,044 0.28% 358
2015 - 18,367 - 3,299 21,666 0.27% 310
2016 - 16,582 - 1,466 18,048 0.15% 265
2017 - 14,596 - 643 15,239 0.17% 220
2018 - 12,452 - - 12,452 0.13% 176

NOTE:

General bonded debt is debt payable with governmental fund resources and general obligation bonds recorded in enterprise
funds (of which, the City has none).

As a result of the dissolution of the redevelopment agency in 2012, the outstanding $30,150,000 indebtedness of the
former redevelopment agency was transferred to the Successor Agency.

! Assessed value has been used because the actual value of taxable property is not readily available in the State
of California.
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CITY OF REDLANDS

Direct and Overlapping Debt

June 30, 2018

Net Taxable 2017-2018 Assessed Valuation

Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt:
San Bernardino Community College District
Redlands Unified School District
San Bernardino City Unified School District
City of Redlands Community Facilities District No. 2001-1
City of Redlands Community Facilities District No. 2003-1
Total Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt

Overlapping General Fund Debt:
San Bernardino County General Fund Obligations
San Bernardino County Pension Obligations
San Bernardino County Flood Control District General Fund Obligations
Redlands Unified School District Certificates of Participation
San Bernardino City Unified School District
Yucaipa-Calimesa Joint Unified School District Authority
Total Overlapping General Fund Debt

Overlapping Tax Increment Debt
City of Redlands Tax Allocation Bonds
San Bernardino County Inland Valley Tax Allocation Bonds
Total Overlapping Tax Increment Debt

Total Gross Overlapping General Fund Debt
Less: Redlands Unified School District Self-Supporting Qualified Zone Academy Bonds®
Total Net Overlapping General Fund Debt

Total Gross Overlapping Debt
Total Net Overlapping Debt

Direct Tax and Assessment Debt:
City of Redlands

Direct General Fund Debt:
City of Redlands General Fund Obligations
City of Redlands Pension Obligations
Total Direct General Fund Debt

Direct Loan/Capital Lease Debt:
I-Bank Sports Park Lease
Capital Leases -Equipment
Total Direct General Fund Debt

Total Direct Debt

Total Gross Direct and Overlapping Debt®
Total Net Direct and Overlapping Debt 3

$ 9,342,770,314

Estimated
Share of
Percentage Outstanding Overlapping
Applicable ' Debt 06/30/18 Debt
14.164% $ 440,458,530 62,386,546
57.478% 77,808,830 44,722,959
0.021% 249,489,446 52,393
100.000% 4,940,000 4,940,000
100.000% 8,285,000 8,285,000
780,981,806 120,386,898
4.502% $ 368,015,000 16,568,035
4.502% 336,106,248 15,131,503
4.502% 68,325,000 3,075,992
57.478% 5,000,000 2,873,900
0.021% 47,750,000 10,028
0.703% 8,025,000 56,416
833,221,248 37,715,874
100% $ 11,655,000 11,655,000
9.103% 239,870,000 21,835,366
251,525,000 33,490,366
1,084,746,248 71,206,240
(1,332,730)
69,873,510
191,593,138
190,260,408
100.000% _$ - -
100.000% - -
100.000% 12,452,070 12,452,070
12,452,070
100.000% $ 1,459,437 1,459,437
100.000% 747,927 747,927
2,207,364 2,207,364
14,659,434

percentage is multiplied by the total debt outstanding for the overlapping district resulting in the City's share of debt.

Sources: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.
San Bernardino County Assessor (via HAL, Coren & Cone)
San Bernardino County Auditor-Controller - Property Tax Division
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Academy Bond Annual Payment of $276,888 is subtracted from balance originally $5 million issued 2004
Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue, and tax allocation bonds.

The overlapping district's assessed valuation located within the City is divided by the total assessed valuation of the overlapping district. That

206,252,572
204,919,842
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CITY OF REDLANDS
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Calendar Years

Per
Personal Capita
Calendar Population Income Personal Unemployment
Year (D) (In Thousands) Income (2) Rate (3)
2008 71,339 2,078,671 29,138 5.8%
2009 71,532 2,039,266 28,508 9.6%
2010 71,926 2,198,418 30,565 10.5%
2011 69,498 2,167,990 31,195 9.7%
2012 69,813 2,248,258 32,204 7.0%
2013 69,882 2,265,714 32,422 6.0%
2014 69,814 2,243,752 32,139 4.7%
2015 68,040 2,192,657 32,226 3.0%
2016 69,211 2,195,442 31,721 3.3%
2017 70,851 2,494,168 35,203 3.1%
Sources: (1) State of California, Department of Finance - Demographic Research Unit

(2) U.S Department of Commerce U.S Census Bureau
(3) State of California, Employment Development Department
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City of Redlands
Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2018 2009
Percent of Percent of
Number of Total Number of Total
Employer Employees Employment Employees Employment

ESRI 2,525 7.05% 1,300 3.92%
Redlands Unified School District* 2,006 5.60% 1,820 5.48%
Redlands Community Hospital 1,635 4.57% 1,300 3.92%
Beaver Medical Group (aka Epic Mgmt) 995 2.78% 420 1.27%
Amazon Fullfillment Center (Redlands)** 600 1.68% 0.00%
University of Redlands 584 1.63% 560 1.69%
City of Redlands 569 558 1.68%
Loma Linda University BMC 364 1.02%
La-Z-Boy, Inc 363 400 1.20%
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. 247 0.69% 470 1.42%
United States Postal Service 1,400 4.22%
Verizon/GTE 570 1.72%
Total of Top Employers 9,888 27.62% 8,798 26.50%
Total Employees in City(1) 35,800 33,200
County Pocket Employers (2):
Burlington Coat Factory Distribution Center 699 1.95%
Amazon Fulfillment Center 600 1.68%
Superior Buidling Products 410 1.15%
Caddo Hardware 375 1.05%
Target 280 0.78%
Kohls Retail Store 166 0.46%
JCPenney 155 0.43%
Becton Dickinson Distribution 100 0.28%

Total Employees 2,785 7.78%

*Count includes PT/FT, classified, certificated, admin.
**Previous year combined County and City totals

NOTES:

(1) The City of Redlands fully encapsulates a county pocket containing Citrus Plaza and a significant industrial area
which is home to a number of distribution centers and logistics companies.

The City of Redlands has choosen to list some of the significant employers within this area as it is believed that it
employs Redlands residents and contibutes to the financial well being of the city.

(2) "Total Employment" as used above represents the total employment of all employers located within City limits.
These are estimates based on the response received from the employer.
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CITY OF REDLANDS

City Employees
by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2000 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Full-time employees:
City clerk's office - - - - - 1 1 1 1 1
City manager's office 6 5 5 6 6 7 7 9 11 12
City treasurer's office - - - - - - - - - -
Development services 17 15 16 20 20 19 21 22 22 21
Finance 24 21 21 21 22 24 25 26 27 24
Fire 64 61 60 60 61 58 60 60 60 61
Human resources 4 4 5 5 5 7 7 8 10 9
Library 20 17 15 15 16 16 16 17 17 18
Management information systems 14 11 8 9 9 9 9 - - -
Department of Innovation & Tech 10 9 10
Municipal utilities and engineering:
Administration 26 23 23 24 28 28 34 34 34 33
Water 45 48 47 47 49 49 50 49 49 50
Wastewater 24 24 23 24 24 24 24 24 24 24
Police 159 133 129 131 111 113 121 122 122 126
Quality of life
Administration, parks & streets 47 37 39 42 46 48 52 56 56 62
Equipment maintenance 11 11 9 7 6 6 6 5 5 5
Solid waste 37 38 34 33 33 32 32 33 33 33
Cemetery 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 4 4
Redevelopment 10 5 4 - - - - - - -
511 456 441 447 439 444 469 480 484 493
Part-time employees 45 40 47 64 81 81 88 87 87 90
At-will employees - - - - - - - - - -
Grant-funded employeesl 3 11 7 12 12 10 10 10 10
Limited Term Position - - - - - - - 1 1 4
Total 559 507 495 523 532 535 567 578 582 594

! Includes both full & part time positions.

Reorganizations in 2008 and 2016 created new departments, moved divisions and transferred employees. Historical data has been
changed to reflect some but not all of these reorganizations.

Source: City of Redlands Budget
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